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Louis XlIl Holdings Limited is building a new destination on Macau’s

Cotai Strip to house a unique collection of rare and exclusive luxury

experiences.

BT =SBARAFTNEMBEKEAEITE— A =AR  RETE
—ZIBAES - BEEENER -

‘1%35&




CONTENTS
H &%

Business Overview
EHME

Financial Highlights
BBRE

Business Highlights
EHRE

Chairmen’s Statement
EFREBES

Chief Executive Officer’s Report
THRERE
Biography of Directors
EEEEBT

Biography of Senior Management
SREEEREREN

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

Corporate Social Responsibility Report
TEMSEERS

Directors’ Report

EERBES

Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZEENRES

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBEmRK

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
mEeBaRHEMPEEER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
eI R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERBR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e Rk M EE

Financial Summary

BB

Corporate Information
REER

10

14

24

29

30

57

69

93

95

96

97

99

101

103

221

222



Business Overview

Louis Xlll Holdings Limited is a hospitality, entertainment and construction group

that combines a unique extreme luxury hotel and entertainment development

on Macau's Cotai Strip and the Hong Kong-based legacy business of Paul Y.

Engineering Group Limited (“PYE").
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LOUIS XllI
The Market

Macau, the special administrative region ("Macau”) of the People’s
Republic of China, is the biggest casino market in the world
generating gross gaming revenues ["GGR") in 2013 of US$45.3
billion representing an 18.6% increase over 2012. Macau
generated approximately 7 times the gaming revenues of the Las
Vegas Strip while GGR per visifor was approximately 8 times that
of las Vegas. GCR per visitor has increased at an annual growth
rate of approximately 26% per annum since 2005. In the first half
of 2014, Macau gaming revenues rose by 12.6% over the same

period in 2013.

The Property

When it opens in mid-2016 on the Cotai Strip, the Louis XIII hotel
and entertainment complex will house a unique collection of rare
and exclusive luxury experiences. Designed by infernationally
acclaimed luxury architect, Pefer Marino, it will include a hotel with
about 200 duplex suites, an invitation-only “Atelier” offering only
couture, bespoke and limited edition products from the major luxury
brands and the only branch of a legendary Paris insfitution of haute
cuisine.
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Louis XIIl Hotel Exterior Facade Concept
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Business Overview

Hotel Development of Louis XIII
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The Hotel

With a gross floor area of approximately 945,000 square feet,
the hotel is designed to ensure the highest level of luxury and
privacy, Louis XlIl will offer approximately 171 duplex suites with
an average size of 2,000 square feet, 29 villas of ranging in
size from approximately 4,000 square feet to 12,000 square
feet including a royal villa of over 20,000 square feet. Guests
will arrive in one of the hotel's fleet of signaturered Rolls-Royce
limousines with the option for private check in. All guests will arrive
in their rooms via lifts that open directly info the suites.

The "Atelier”

The complex will house the world's first by-invitation-only “Atelier”.
For the first time under one roof, clients will have the rare
opportunity fo view and purchase in complete privacy couture,
bespoke and limited-edition products presented by the most
prestigious luxury brands in the world — products and services that
the top European Fashion and jewellery houses currently deliver
only to top VIP customers in their headquarter maisons and ateliers.

The Restaurant

The fabled L'Ambroisie in Paris, which has held three Michelin
stars since 1988, will open its only other property in the louis
Xl hotel complex. With only approximately 38 seafs, the
crifically acclaimed Paris restaurant is one of the most soughtafter
reservations in the world.

PYE

PYE is a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company. PYE fraces its
origins to Shanghai in 1946 and has played a major role in
shaping the skyline and world-class infrastructure of Hong Kong for
the past six decades.

As one of the leading management contracting companies in Hong
Kong and Macau, PYE offers total engineering and development
management solutions with the capability to support its clients from
conceptual planning to design, valuation construction, overall
project management, fitting-out, commissioning and facilities
management in all forms of project delivery.

In Hong Kong, PYE is responsible for consfructing such maijor
commercial buildings as the Centre, Cheung Kong Cenire,
landmark East and the Hong Kong Club Building. It's major
infrastructure  projects include, the Airfields of Hong Kong
Infernational Airport, the North Lantau Expressway, Ting Kau
Bridge and the Hong Kong Cross Harbour Tunnel.

In Macau, PYE is responsible for constructing the Altira Macau and
is now constructing Studio City in the resort segment. In residential
property, PYE is now constructing over 5 million square feet of
luxury residential and has government projects totaling over 3
million square feet which have been practically completed.
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Financial Highlights

%R

Percentage
2014 2013 change
(restated)
(E%))
PYE segment turover REZENHEER
[HK$ million) (BEB%ET) 9,243.9 7.131.6 +30%
PYE segment profit REZENE
[HK$'million) wmA (E8BIT) 221.0 126.6 +/74%
Earnings before interest RErF 2 RBLAT
and tax (HK$ million) aF(5EBT) 13.4 39.1 -66%
(Loss) profit for the year affributable S R B4 F B
o shareholders (HK$ million) (B18) % (8B T) (50.6) 17.6 -388%
Shares outstanding (million) BT (A ER) 450 355* +27%
Net asset value per share (HK$) SBREEFEGET) 8.9 8.6* +3%
(Loss) earnings per share (HK cents) % (E518) B F G
— Besie — A (12.9) 16.8* 77%
Total assets (HK$'million) wEEBE(BEBT) 9,003.5 6,677.3 +35%
Net current assets (HK$ million) TEEEFE(EEET) 1,432.7 1,071.5 +34%
Net cash (HK$ million) BeFm(a&En) 1,371.7 747.5 +84%
Equity atiributable PR BR R 1
to shareholders (HK$ million) (B8B%ET) 3,983.2 3,048.6 +31%
Operating cash inflow KEEBREMA
[HK$ million) (BEB%ET) 561.4 186.4 +201%
Net cash inflow FREM/A
(HK$'million) (HEBT) 683.3 1,041.9 -34%
Current ratio Tt Eh L & 1.33 1.35 1%
Gearing ratio ERBELE 0.17 0.20 -15%
long term debt/equity ratio REGE EARL X 0.06 0.07 -14%

* The figures have been adjusted refrospectively fo reflect the impact of share consolidation effected on 27 May 2013.

OALEFEFRENAE  URMR T -=FRA -+ RETZIRNEHZIRE -
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(Loss) Earnings per share — Basic* (Loss) Profit for the year Net asset value per share*

Bk (E51E) B —HXK attributable to shareholders EREEFE"
REREEFE (B518) &7
HK cents HK$'million HKS$
il BEBT s
80 74.0 60 12+
44.7 10.5
45+ 1ol 95 10.0
60 - 301 303 : a5 BB
496 499 30 :
17.6 sl
401 12
0 6
20+ 16.8 aalk
15 AL
0 30k
. 45} 2r
20L (129 ol (50.6) 0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
PYE segment turnover PYE segment profit
REREDHELER RERZEDEHm A
HK$'million HK$'million
AEET BEAT
9,600 - 9,243.9 250 -
221.0
8,000~ 7,131.6¢ 200+
6,400 - 150
i 126.6%
4,800 4,404.47 4,540.7° 111.3¢
3,644.9¢ 100 F 95.6" g9 4
3,200
1,600 F 20
0 0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

The figures have been resfated to reflect the change in accounting for the Group's joint arrangements.
BFCEIINRRAEER S ELH 2 5T EE -
The figures have been adjusted retrospectively to reflect the impact of share consolidation effected on 27 May 2013.
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Business Highlights
EBRHE

LOUIS X
August 2013

e Completion of the definitive agreement with L'Ambroisie fo
open the first L'Ambroisie outside the original in Paris in the
Group's Macau hotel

o Received formal consent from the Government of Macau to
begin work on the diaphragm wall of the Macau hotel

November 2013

e Placement of shares, raising approximately HK$593.14
million

December 2013

e  Placement of shares and convertible bonds, raising

approximately HK$441.27 million

April 2014

e Enfered info a team loan facility of up to HK$3,045 million
with a Mainland China-based bank

May 2014

®  Received approval from the Government of Macau for its
general building plans for the Macau hotel

June 2014

e Commenced preparation work on the building superstructure
of the Macau hotel

8 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report
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PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP

Construction management contracting projects secured during the
year:

Hong Kong

e Urban renewal project at Castle Peak Road (K21) at Sham
Shui Po, Kowloon, Hong Kong

®  Main contract works for the proposed hotel development at
no. 7 Morefon Terrace, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Macau

®  The proposed comprehensive development for Louis Xl Hotel
at Coloane, Macau

o Foundation works (lots 7 & 10) for the Concordia
Development at Coloane, Macau*

Singapore

e ATTIC development with a swimming pool at no. 11
lorong N Telok Kurau & no. 25 lorong M Telok Kurau,
Singapore

People’s Republic of China

®  Main confract works for residential development at Xujing,
Shanghai

®  Main confract works for residential development at laguna
Verona, Dongguan

Project being carried out through a joint venture
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CHAIRMEN'S
STATEMENT
B

Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr. and Mr Stephen Hung Peter Lee Coker Jr. 5t 4 J it K B 6 4
Joint Chairmen Gy

] 0 Louis XIll Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report



Dear Shareholders,

In November and December 2013, we announced a fund raisings
through which we placed approximately HK$1,034 million in
shares and convertible bonds. In April 2014, we entered info a
loan facility of up to HK$3,045 million with a Mainland Chinese
bank. Together with the HK$3,200 million we raised in February
2013 and anticipated additional debt financing we believe we
will have sufficient funding to complefe our hotel project in Macau (the
“Project”).

UNIQUE HOTEL PROJECT IN MACAU

We have made substantial progress in development of the Project
since last financial yearend. In August 2013, we received formal
approval for the diaphragm wall foundation works and are now
nearing completion of these works in line with our schedule.

We have formally appointed internationally acclaimed architect
Peter Marino as the Executive Design Theme Architect and the
Inferior Design Theme Consultant. Mr. Marino is the principal of
Peter Marino Architect PLLC, an architecture, planning and design
firm based in New York City, whose clients include some of the
most iconic names in the fashion and art worlds. He is responsible
for the flagship stores of many of the world's leading luxury brands
Christian  Dior,

Zegna, Craff and loewe. We are extremely pleased with the

including Chanel, Llouis Vuitton, Ermenegildo

iconic structure that Mr. Marino has created for the Project.

We have substantially complefed the hiring of our senior executive
team including the heads of Resort Operations, Food & Beverage,
Retail Operations, Information Technology, Engineering and
Investor Relations,

Al have been
infimately involved in the design and development process to

Faciliies Management, Guest Relations,

Finance, Surveillance and Human Resources.
ensure that the Project is not only unique but also supports the high
level of service and functionality our guests will expect.
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Chairman's Statement
TEHREE

CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING
BUSINESS

As a result of the adoption of new accounting standard for joint
arrangements, certain unincorporated joint ventures of Paul Y.
Engineering Group Llimited ("PYE") were reclassified as joint
operations in the year ended 31 March 2014. Accordingly,
comparative figures have been resfated fo reflect the change.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the segment turnover at
PYE including joint operations increased approximately 30% fo
approximately HK$9,244 million from approximately HK$7,132
million in 2013 due to PYE's strong order book in hand. PYE's
segment profit increased approximately 74% to approximately
HK$221 million. Segment operating profit margin increased from
1.8% in 2013 to 2.4% in 2014 due primarily to improvements
in administrative efficiency and careful risk management in
the confract tendering process. We congratulate PYE on its
achievements particularly in light of the fightening market for
professional staff and skilled labor.

PYE is a stable business that continues to benefit from its strong
market position as one of the leading management contractors
in Hong Kong and Macau. PYE is working closely in partnership
with the Company on our Macau hotel and entertainment project,
allowing the Company fo benefit from PYE's expertise and to
closely control cost and timing.

] 2 Louis XlIl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

We recorded a basic loss per share of 12.9 HK cents in 2014
versus basic earnings per share of 16.8 HK cents in 2013. As
mentioned in our annual report for 2013, comparability of our
consolidated annual results with that of prior years will continue
to be challenging due to our new business direction. Despite the
strong performance of PYE, we expect consolidated losses tfo
confinue unfil our Project is operational and generating revenue.
We encourage shareholders to review the segment information in
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statfements to obtain a clearer
picture of how PYE is performing independently from our hotel
development activities.

Again, as at yearend 31 March 2014, we will not pay a
dividend as profits will be retained to fund capital expenditure and
pre-opening expenses for our Project.

Finally, we thank our employees for their dedication and hard

work, and our shareholders, customers and business parners for
their continued support.

Stephen Hung and Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Joint Chairmen

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased fo report the annual results of Louis Xlll Holdings
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2014, together with comparative
figures for 2013. The consolidated statements of profit or loss,
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, financial position,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Group, all of which are
audited, fogether with explanatory notes, are set out on pages 95
to 220 of this report. The annual results have been reviewed by
the Company's Audit Committee.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
AND POSITIONS

Hotel Development

The Group is building an exclusive luxury hotel and entertainment
complex, expected to be completed in the first half of 2016, on
a site of some 65,000 square feet located on the Cotai Strip
in Macau. The directors believe that the the completion of hotel
followed by a fully operational hotel in Macau with provision
of ancillary refail and entertainment facilities will, in due course,
generate strong cash flows for the benefit of all shareholders.

For the year ended 31 March 2014

segment recorded assets of approximately HK$2,951 million and

, the hotel development

liabilities of approximately HK$499 million, mainly the cost of land
and hotel under development in Macau and the liability portion
of convertible bonds issued for financing the hotel development.
Also included in segment liabilities are amounts due to Paul Y.
Engineering Group Llimited ("PYE") in respect of construction
of the Macau project. There was no segment profit from hotel
development for the year ended 31 March 2014

On 15 November 2013 and 16 December 2013, the Company
raised approximately HK$1,034 million by way of a general
mandate placing, o specific mandate placing and a convertible
bonds subscription which is infended to be applied towards the
construction of the hotel and other aspects of developing the hotel
project in Macau.

13 January 2014, New Concordia Hotel Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and the developer of the hotel
in Macau, accepted an offer from a Mainland Chino-based
bank for a term loan facility of up to HK$3,045 million, which
is infended to be used principally for construction of the hotel in
Macau. The loan facility is for a ferm of six years commencing from
the dafe of the first draw down, subject to the terms and conditions
of the relevant facility agreement.
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Chief Executive Officer's Report

THARSEE

Engineering Business — PYE (51% Owned)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the demand for
engineering and construction services remained sfrong in both
Hong Kong and Macau as a result of a significant increase in
capifal investment by governments and invesfors. As one of the
major parficipants in this market, PYE and ifs subsidiaries ("PYE
Group”] successfully secured new confracts of approximately
HK$6,336 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 including
approximately HK$3,849 million for the Group's hotel project in
Macau.

As a result of the adoption of new accounting standard for joint
arrangements, certain unincorporated joint ventures of the Group
were reclassified as joint operations in the year ended 31 March
2014. Accordingly, comparative figures have been restated
to reflect the change. For the year ended 31 March 2014
segment revenue at PYE Group increased approximately 30% fo
approximately HK$9,244 million from approximately HK$7,132
million in 2013. Segment operating profit increased approximately
74% to approximately HK$221 million (2013: HK$127 million)
as a result of contribution from Macau projects that generate higher
margins.

The Group

For year ended 31 March 2014,
consolidated turnover including joint operations of approximately
HK$8,580 million (2013: HK$7,132 million), representing an
increase of approximately 20% from that of last year as a result of
the strong order book in hand. Taking into account the Group's

the Group recorded

share of turnover of associates and joint ventures, furnover would
be approximately HK$ 10,089 million (2013: HK$7,784 million),
representing an increase of approximately 30% primarily due to
the rise in the portion of the Group's business being conducted
through ifs unconsolidated associates and joint ventures.

Gross profit increased approximately 28% to approximately
HK$289 million (2013: HK$226 million) roughly in line with
revenue. Cross profit margin increased slightly to 3.4% (2013
3.2%).

loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year was
approximately HK$51 million (2013: Profit of approximately
HK$18 million] resulting mainly from: i) the fullyear impact of
the dramafic increase in the share of profit attributable to non-
controlling shareholders following the distribution in specie of
49% of PYE in March 2013, ii) operating costs associated with
hotel development, and iii) recognition of a loss of approximately
HK$27 million from a long outstanding receivable related to a
PRC consfruction project of our subsidiary, PYE. Basic loss per

share was 12.9 HK cents.

] 6 Louis XlIl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report
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The Group maintained a strong financial position with tofal assets
increasing by approximately 35% to approximately HK$9,004
million. Current assets were HK$5,840 million, or approximately
1.3 times the current liabilities. The equity atiributable to owners
of the Company increased to approximately HK$3,983 million or
31% primarily due to the placing of shares and convertible bonds
for hotel development.

Net cash flow from operating activities was approximately
HK$561 million and net cash oufflow in respect of investing
activities was approximately HK$948 million. Net cash inflow
in respect of financing activities was approximately HK$ 1,070
million, resulting in a nef increase in cash and cash equivalents of

about HK$683 million for the Group for the year.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Hotel Development

The Group has made substantial progress in development of its
hotel project in Macau during the year ended 31 March 2014,
In August 2013, the Group received formal approval for the
foundation works which are now nearing completion.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group made a
number of key hires substantially filling out its senior executive feam
for its hotel development business. The key hires are specialized
in Resort Operations, Food and Beverage, Refail Operations,
Information Technology, Engineering and Facilities Management,
Guest Relations, Investor Relations, Human Resources, Marketing,
Finance and Surveillance.

In May 2013, the Group formally appointed internationally
acclaimed architect Peter Marino as the Executive Design Theme
Architect and the Interior Design Theme Consultant. Mr. Marino
is the principal of Peter Marino Architect PLLC, an architecture,
planning and design firm based in New York City, whose clients
include some of the most iconic names in the fashion and art
worlds. He is responsible for the flagship stores of many of the
world’s leading luxury brands including Chanel, Louis Vuitton,
Christian Dior, Ermenegildo Zegna, Graff and loewe. We are
extremely pleased with the iconic structure that Mr. Marino has
created for the Group’s Macau hotel.

In August 2013, the Group's completed the definitive agreement
with L'Ambroisie to open the first L'Ambroisie outside the original in
Paris in the Group's Macau hotel.
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THERBRS

Engineering Business — PYE (51% owned)

Management Confracting division remained the core business
and the major confributor of revenue this year. Tumover of this
division amounted to approximately HK$9,238 million (2013:
HK$7,125 million), including approximately HK$663 million (201 3:
Nil] for the Group's hotel project in Macau, up by about 30%.
It reported an operating profit of approximately HK$218 million
(2013: HK$ 116 million), including approximately HK$36 million
(2013: Nil) for the Group's hotel project in Macau, an increase
of 88%. As at 31 March 2014, the value of contracts on hand
was approximately HK$26,490 million, while the value of work
remaining had stood at approximately HK$ 14,455 million.

During the vyear under review, the Management Contracting
division secured new construction confracts with an aggregate
value of approximately HK$6,334 million (2013: HK$13,222
million), representing a decrease of approximately 52% as a result
of the cautious tendering approach adopted. Subsequent to the
yearend, the division secured further contracts of approximately
HK$9 million. Set out below are some of the new contracts
secured during the year and up fo the date of this report:

®  The proposed comprehensive development for Louis Xl Hotel
at Coloane, Macau

e Urban renewal project ot Castle Peak Road (K21) at Sham
Shui Po, Kowloon, Hong Kong

° Foundation works (lots /7 & 10) for the Concordia
Development at Coloane, Macau*

e ATTIC development with a swimming pool af no. 11 Lorong
N Telok Kurau & no.25 Lorong M Telok Kurau, Singapore

®  Main contract works for residential development at Xujing,
Shanghai

®  Main contract works for the proposed hotel development at
no. 7 Morefon Terrace, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

®  Main confract works for residential development af Laguna
Verona, Dongguan

Project being carried out through a joint venture

Commerciol
Development at

3 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong
BRETRTmET
SHMERERIAR
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The Property Development Management division reported a profit
of approximately HK$2 million for the year under review. The
value of contracts on hand for Property Development Management
division at the yearend was approximately HK$2 million.

The Property Investment division also reported a profit, through
its joint venture, of approximately HK$1 million for the year
under review. The joint venture holds an investment property in
Hangzhou, the Pioneer Technology Building, which is a 20,000
square meter office building. The building contributed rental
income of about HK$ 12 million (2013: HK$11 million) during the
year and was almost fully leased out as at 31 March 2014.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Below are the events of the Group occurring aofter the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of approval for issuing the
consolidated financial statements on 20 June 2014:

@)  On 11 April 2014, the Company entered info documents
relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$3,045 million
with @ Mainland China-based bank for its construction
project of hotel in Macau. The loan facility is for a term of
six years commencing from the date of the first draw down,
subject to the terms and conditions of the relevant facility
agreement;

(b) In May 2014, the Group received approval from the
Government of Macau  for its general building plans for the
hotel under development; and

() InJune 2014, the Group commenced preparafion work on
the building superstructure of the hotel under development.

The Beaumount,
Tseung Kwan O,
Hong Kong
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Under its prudent funding and freasury policies, the Group
maintains a variety of credit facilities to meet requirements for
working capital. At 31 March 2014, cash, bank balances and
deposits stood at approximately HK$2,055 million, of which
approximately HK$1,781 million, HK$217 million, HK$26
million, HK$27 million and HK$4 million were denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi, Macau Patacas, Singapore Dollars
and Japanese Yen respectively. The Group had fotal borrowings of
approximately HK$444 million at yearend of which approximately
HK$441 million are repayable within one year. In addition, the
Group dlso has outstanding convertible bonds with a face value
of approximately HK$ 1,463 million and a liability component
as at 31 March 2014 of approximately HK$240 million. The
convertible bonds mature in February, 2025.

All of the Group's borrowings, other than the convertible bonds,
as at 31 March 2014 bear interest at floating rates and are
denominated either in Hong Kong Dollars or Renminbi. The
Renminbi borrowings are directly tied in with the Group's business
in the Mainland China. The convertible bonds are interest free. The
Group's gearing rafio, based on total borrowings of approximately
HK$684 million and equity aftributable to owners of the Company
of around HK$3,983 million, decreased from approximately 0.20
at 31 March 2013 to about 0.17 at 31 March 2014 due fo
primarily the equity and convertible bond placings.

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 1,768 fullime employees, including the Directors
of the Group but excluding contracted casual labour in Macau, as
at 31 March 2014. The Group offers competfitive remuneration
packages based on overall market rates, employee performance,
and the performance of the Group. Remuneration packages are
comprised of salary, performancebased bonuses, and other
benefits including fraining, provident funds and medical coverage.
Three share incentive schemes [namely share option scheme, share
award scheme and share financing plan) are in place to mofivate
and reward eligible employees.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group pledged property, plant and
equipment and bank deposits of approximately HK$82 million and
HK$16 million, respectively, and charged the Group's benefits
over certain construction confracts to secure the general banking
facilities granted fo the Group.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had confingent liabilities in respect of indemnities of
approximately HK$6 million given to banks for performance bonds
granfed to an associate and confingent liabilities in respect of
corporate guarantees of approximately HK$20 million given to a
bank for banking facilities granted to an associate as at 31 March

2014.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has expenditure contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and hotel under
development of approximately HK$8 million and HK$123 million
respectively. The Group also has expenditure authorised for but nof
confracted in respect of hotel under development of approximately

HK$3,053 million.

SECURITIES IN ISSUE

During the year, an aggregate of 94,933,676 shares were
issued, which include 89,242,500 shares issued by way of
placing and 5,691,176 shares (adjusted for the effect of share
consolidation which fook effect on 27 May 2013 issued by way
of conversion of convertible bonds.

As at 31 March 2014, there were 449,596,510 shares in
issue. Additional shares may be issued by way of: (i) exercise
of share options of the Company for up to 27,726,000
shares of the Company depending on the fulfilment of vesting
condifions affached to the options; (ii] exchange for up to 10%
of the shares in Falloncroft Investments Limited (“Falloncroft”) for
up fo 88,235,294 shares of the Company depending on the
ultimate equity capitalisation of Falloncroft and achievement of
certain performance targets related to hotel development; and {iii)
conversion of two 2025 convertible bonds which if fully converted
would result in the issuance of 214,048,053 shares of the
Company.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the

year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of
the Company’s listed securities.

OUTLOOK

Hotel Development

Clobal economic activity has continued fo strengthen although
less robustly than previously expected. There are three main
risk areas: (i) increasing emerging markets risk due to the less
accommodative global financial environment; (i) below-target
inflation in advanced counfries due to large output gaps; and {iii)
emerging geopolitical risks in the Ukraine, Middle East and the
South China Sea. Regionally, rebalancing of the Chinese economy
towards consumption confinues fo create uncertainty. Worries of @
hard landing remain but the consensus is that China can slow to a
sustainable GDP growth rafe in the 7% range.

The Macau gaming market confinues fo perform well. Macau
generated gross gaming revenue ("GGR"] of approximately
US$45.3 billion in 2013 representing an 18.6% increase over
2012. In the first half of 2014, GGR rose 12.6% over the same
period in 2013

While market conditions in Macau remain positive, the Group's
hotel in Macau will be under development in the current year and
will not generate any revenue unfil it is in operation.

Engineering Business — PYE (51% owned)

Despite downside risk in the global economy, continued economic
growth in Mainland China and the expansion of investment in
capital works by the govemments of Hong Kong and Macau
continue to underpin growth of the construction industry.

In Hong Kong, the delivery of public sector projects continue to
play a key role in pushing up overall activity in the construction
industry. The HKSAR Government's commitment in increasing
housing supply and development of new towns is expected to
provide continuous growth of building and infrastructure projects in
medium term.

In Macau, the market for construction and engineering services has
remained robust as more enferfainment complexes and residential
developments come on stream. VWe expect that the Macau market
will continue to be a major contributor for the Group in the coming
years.
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A substantial increase in the demand for resources is casting @
shadow on the bright growth prospects of the construction industry.
The continuing shortage of trained professionals and skilled labour
will continue to push up the staff and labour costs and may limit
the growth of profit margins. We will strive fo maintain an optimal
risk and return balance for the Group, and pursue growth while
remaining vigilant of potential adverse effects on our profit margin
arising from the drastic fluctuation of construction costs.

Walter Craig Power
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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Biography of Directors
EEEE/N

Stephen Hung, aged 55, has been the Joint Chairman (Executive Director) of
the Company since February 2013. He is also the Chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company, and a member of the Nomination Committee,
Finance and Investment Committee of the Company, and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 31 years of experience in the finance
and investment industries. He is the Chairman of The Taipan Investment Group and
the Vice Chairman of Rio Entertainment Group, which operates the Rio Hotel &
Casino through its affiliates in Macau. Mr Hung was formerly co-head of investment
banking for Asia at Merrill Lynch and subsequently formed his own investment
banking firm, Amida Capital limited in 1992. From 2000 to 2002, Mr Hung

Mr Stephen Hung served as the Vice Chairman of eSun Holdings limited (0571.HK). From 2000 to
HKERE 2004, he also served as a non-executive director of AcrossAsia Limited (8061 .HK).

Mr Hung graduated from University of Southern California, Los Angeles with a
master's degree in business administration in 1981. Mr Hung is also a director of | Hung Llimited, S Hung Llimited, Pride Wisdom
Group limited and Chief Wise Limited, all of which have interests in the shares/underlying shares of the Company which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinances.

K55 BE-E—=ZF - ARBEARRZEELIRE (ATES)  AAARRAZATEESIRERARA RS
ZERHRUBLIREZEGNE  URARRZHNBAFIZES - NS R NIREEEFBIF ZER o b RThe Taipan
Investment GroupZ & & + I &Rio Entertainment Group (i 8 EL B & A A1 PR PI 2 ERPFIFPREE RBES) 2Bl FfF - e ED
BEEIMBTEMRERTZEBETIE BREA-AN_FRIEBF ZRERTT A FAmida Copital limited « B —ZTEE
¢;ZE TECF O OREAEFLEEERARAR(OS7IHOZAERE 8 22255 _TTWE - MFEELEER
NAN(BOOTHK) 2 FFAITES - HEAR NN —FEERNICRENMNKE 55 IHERE T 20 - HEE TR Hing
Limited * S Hung Limited * Pride Wisdom Group Limited &2 Chief Wise limitedZ B % + A LR B2 FR A A Rl Z 15 A8 BB 15
BRIBES KB ROIEXNVE D E2R3D EME R MARRIREE 2 -

Peter Lee Coker Jr., aged 45, has been the Joint Chairman (Executive Director) of the
Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Finance and Invesiment
Committee, Disclosures Commitiee and Executive Commitiee of the Company,
and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 23 years of
experience in the finance and investment industries. He is the Managing Pariner of
Pacific Adveriers, and is also a partner of TDR Capital Investment Lid (@ Shenzhen-
based private equity firm). Mr Coker served as an officer of the Bridge Companies
prior to joining Wellington Securities [New Zealand) in 2002. During his service
with the Bridge Companies, Mr Coker held the tile of Managing Director-Asia, Chief
Executive Officer of E-Bridge and Managing Direcfor of Bridge Asia where he was
Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr. responsible for the firm's equity business in Japan and South East Asia/Australia.
Peter Lee Coker Jr. 5t 2= From 2000 to 2001, Mr Coker served as the Chairman of IRESS Market Technology

Limited (formerly BridgeDFS) (ASX: IRE). From 2002 to 2005, Mr Coker served as the
Chairman of Wellington Securities (New Zealand). From 2006 to 2009, Mr Coker served as the Chairman of Global Trading Offshore
Pte (Singapore). Mr Coker graduated from Lehigh University in the United States with a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1990.

Peter Lee CokerJr. - 455r - B2 —=F _ARHERRAZHMELIR ITESF)  TRAERAZUBRIREZES &
BZESRATTZEENE  URARAZHMBARZES - R SR IIRE EHEEF B23F K] o i BPacific Adveriers
ZEEBEaR A - IFARTOR Capial Investiment Uid (= RRIN 2 L BZRBERE RG] 28 A « CokersE ERZZEZ_FMA
Wellington Securities (%778 &) A & ¥ {EBridge CompaniesZ = #5 & ° #£Bridge CompaniestE ik Hif » Cokerdt 4 & #E EE-Bridge
ZEMRE F IR FHRITHARE A KBridge Asio ER4RKIE - AFERARRE R RNz RAIRBIREE E e
FEZTET—F - Cokerft EHE1EIRESS Market Technology Llimited (A #8BridgeDFS) CRIMNZBERZFT : RE) 2 EF - BEZEZEZF&F
ZEEREF - Cokerst A #& EWellingfon Securities (FTEaM) 2 £/F c BZEZREE T TN F - Cokerdt £ # EClobal Trading
Offshore Pe (¥ 3% ) 2 F & © Cokerft & — NN T F R E & Bllehigh University - # B X224 -
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Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, aged 63, is the Deputy Chairman (Executive Director) of the

f Company. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
1! AE\ Committee, Finance and Investment Committee, Disclosures Committee, Corporate
; Governance Committee, PYE Committee and Executive Committee of the Company.

He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr lau has over
41 vyears' internafional corporate development and management experience in
infrastructure developments as well as consfruction and engineering services involving
the road, rail, port, power, felecommunications, mining and resources secfors in
the Asia Pacific Region. Mr lau has been the Deputy Chairman of the Company
since January 2005. He was changed from NonExecutive Director to Executive
Director since February 2013. Mr lau is the Chairman and Managing Direcfor of
Mr_Eau Ko Yuen, Tom PY! Corporation Limited ["PYI"] [0498.HK), a significant developer and operator of
HABREE major bulk cargo ports in the Yangtze River Region in China. He is also the Deputy
Chairman and  non-executive director of Prosperity Invesiment Holdings  Limited

(0310.HK) and he was an independent non-executive director of China National Building Material Company Limited (3323.HK) until
November 201 1. Mr lau is also a director of PYI Treasury Group Limited, Growing Success limited and Paul Y. Investments Limited, all

of which as well as PYI have interests in the shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinances.

ZASE O3 ARRIBEIER BTES)  MIhAARRIZEMNEES  REZEC  WHKEKREZES HHELZES O
X¥TREEY REFEZEGRITZEGHE - tUMAARRZHNBARZES - BLEED AR AR « &k &0 -
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AERHAARARFREERE BT =—F-_ARBAIFITETATRNTEST - FAERFRRIABEITZEATHESORER
WEEEECEREEEAR AR (MRE]) (0498 HK)Z EfE3#BH - 15 AR ERE AR A R0310.HK)H &l = & K& IEHR
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Walter Craig Power, aged 60, has been the Executive Director & Chief Executive

Officer of the Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Finance

m and Investment Commitiee and Executive Committee of the Company, and a director
: i) of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is one of the longest serving casino
execufive expafriates in Macau's gaming industry. Arrived in Macau in January
2003, Mr Power has held the positions of Chief Operating Officer of New Cotai
Entertainment, an investor and developer of Macau Studio City, as well as Senior Vice
President of Operations of Venetian Macau limited. Mr Power was instrumental to
the success of the development, opening and operation of the Sands, the first western
casino in Macau. During his tenure at the Sands, he was responsible for casino
operations, hotel operations, all food and beverage outlets and security operations.
He was also a member of the Compliance and Credit Committee. Being one of first
wesfern executives to enter the Macau gaming market, and having worked in Macau

Mr Walter Craig Power
Walter Craig Power 5t £

for over ten years, Mr Power is known inTemoﬂonoHy for his extensive know\edge of
Macau gaming to include junket, VIP and mass market operations. A 22-year gaming indusfry veferan, Mr Power accumulated extensive
infernational gaming experience through executive operational positions at casino resorts in the United States, Argentina, South Africa
and the Philippines, in addifion fo his work in Macau. Mr Power, a former United States Marine Corps Major and Naval Aviafor,
received his BA and MBA from the University of Michigan. He is also a graduate of the casino industry’s Executive Development Program
offered by the University of Nevada/Reno.
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Biography of Directors
E=SERE/E

James Chiu, OBE, JP, aged 75, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since March 2006. He is also the Chairman of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and PYE Committee of the Company. He is also the Chairman
and independent non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company. Ir
Chiu has served Hong Kong's construction industry for 50 years. He was the
Managing Director of the General Electric Company of Hong Kong Limited
from 1984 to 1998.

Ir Chiu has held a number of important industry roles. He was a president

1 hi
;ﬁj;é"gslcéugm of The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors

Limited, The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a Chairman of the British

Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong. Currently, he is a Council Member

of Hong Kong Electrical & Mechanical Confractors Association, Hong Kong
Electrical Contractors’ Association Limited and Hong Kong & Kowloon Electric Trade Association. He is also a director of BEAM
Society Limited.

Ir Chiu is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and Hong Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences.

HWHS OBE P75 BH_ZEZERFZARLEARFRAZBIUINTESE MTAEARRAZEREZES FHEZES -
TPEEARZEGRREREZESIR MAARRA—HNBARZIFFRBUIFNTESR - EHIRMRBEERERR
S0 - R — N N\BRFE-NAANFRBEEZ ZBEBERERCICETEFRLE M -

HIRMEETEANZREZRY ETEEEERETIERNBESR FETRMPGERABBRABMEER - RKA
EAERETIERHENE  BEERTENCERAFAKNENENERLSZEGKE  TRAZERRIMHEERLAAE
=RKE -
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Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP, aged 69, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman
of the Nomination Commitiee of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Commitiee and PYE Committee of the Company. He
is also an independent non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company.
Professor lee is the chair professor of geotechnical engineering and director of
the School of Professional and Continuing Education of the University of Hong
Kong. He is also an academician of Chinese Academy of Engineering. Professor

lee graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1968 and subsequently
received his master's degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1970 and

Professor Lee Chack Fan

25 45 2% 3 a Ph.D. from the University of Western Ontario, Canada in 1972. Professor

lee is an inTemoTionoHy renowned expert in geotechnical engineering. He

worked for Ontario Hydro in Canada for some 20 years before he joined his
alma mater in 1994. He has participated in the design of many massive dams and nuclear power sfafions. He has served as
a specialist consultant or an advisor to many infernational bodies such as the United Nations Development Plan, World Bank,
Asian Development Bank, efc. on numerous energy and infrastructure projects in many parts of the world. Professor lee's eminent
achievement in civil engineering has been highly recognized; he was awarded the KY Lo Medal in 2000 by the Engineering
Institute of Canada and was elected the academician of the Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2003 in recognition of
his contributions to the engineering profession. He has been appoinfed as Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong Special
Administration Region Government in July 2003, and he has been awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and Gold Bauhinia Star in
July 2005 and July 2013 respectively.

Professor Lee is currently the Chairman of Hong Kong Insfitute for Promotion of Chinese Culture, member of the Board of the
West Kowloon Cultural District Authority and the Commission on Strategic Development, and the President of the Fu Hui Charity
Foundation.

TR GBS SBS P 095 BE_EBELRF - ARBEARRZBIUFNTERF WITRAEARRAZREZEGIREA
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Biography of Directors
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lain Ferguson Bruce, aged 73, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
) of the Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman of the Finance and
Investment Committee and Disclosures Commitiee of the Company, and a member of
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and
PYE Committee of the Company. He is also an independent non-executive director of
a subsidiary of the Company. Mr Bruce joined KPMG in Hong Kong in 1964 and
was elected fo its partnership in 1971. He was the Senior Partner of KPMG from
1991 unfil his refirement in 1996 and served as Chairman of KPMG Asia Pacific
from 1993 to 1997. Since 1964, Mr Bruce has been a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Scotland, and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants with over 49 vyears of international experience in

Mr lain Ferguson Bruce
HERL AL accounting and consulting. He is also a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

and a member of the Hong Kong Securifies and Investment Institute (formerly known

as The Hong Kong Securities Institute). He is the Chairman of KCS Llimited and an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Citibank {Hong Kong) Limited and MSIG Insurance (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr Bruce serves as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on the boards of several publicly lisled companies in Hong Kong, including Vitasoy International
Holdings Lid. (0345.HK), Wing On Company International Limited (0289.HK), Tencent Holdings Limited (0700.HK), Sands China Lid. (1928.
HK) and Goodbaby International Holdings Limited (1086.HK]. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Noble Group
Limited, @ company whose shares are listed on The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and Yingli Green Energy Holding
Company Limited, a company whose shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr Bruce was an Independent Non-Executive
Director of China Medical Technologies, Inc., a China-based medical device company that was listed on NASDAQ, up to 3 July 2012.

HEL /3% B-ETAF-ARBEARRAZBYIFNTES  MTARRRZUBERREZEGBEZESLF
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Francis Goutenmacher, aged 72, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
since February 2013. He is also a member of the Audit Commitiee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr Goutenmacher has been with Richemont Luxury
Group, S.A. ["Richemont’), one of the world leading luxury goods groups, for over
30 years. He has been the managing director and chief executive officer of several
presfigious brands, like Cartier and Piaget, encompassed by Richemont. After retiring
as the regional chief executive of Richemont Asia Pacific Limited, Mr Goutenmacher is
now running a marketing consuliancy firm, Goutenmacher Consulting Limited, and is
a director of this consultancy company. Mr Goutenmacher holds a Bachelor's degree

from Ecole Nationale des Arts Decoratifs in Paris, France. He is an independent

Mr Francis Goute h
Fr;ngng:ut;um:cnl:::ﬁ*:ri non-executive director of I.T Limited (0999.HK) and Natural Beauty Bio-Technology

Limited (0157 .HK).

Francis Goutenmacher * 725% ' EZE—=F _ ARHEEARRGZBIFRITES TR F R ZEREZESRIEREES
BX & ° Goutenmacherft F R EHERTER B EMEEE s —NEEZEE (B2 R =TF -MGREZHETZEAZES
R R [AB | SETEFELIE RITHMEE - Govtenmachert £ IR TEE T AR AR 2 EETHREH R - B
A 4% & T 4% 1 J& B 2] 2 RlGoutenmacher Consulting Limited » W7 /&7% A BIHIE %  Goutenmacher st 4 #5 /2 Bl B2 22Ecole Nationale
des Arts DecoratifsiB 2% 7 2+ 47 o 4t B B ALT Limited (0999 .HK) K B A A BT AR A B0157 HK)Z B IEHITESE -

28 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report



Biography of Senior Management
SREEEREER

Richard Lico, aged 50, has been the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
since May 2013. He is also a member and alternate secrefary of the Executive
Committee of the Company. Mr Lico has over 27 vears of experience in finance
and private equity. Prior fo joining the Company, Mr liaco was a Managing
Partner of Brookfield Asset Management ("Brookfield”) and Head of Real Estate
Invesiment for Brookfield in Europe. Prior fo his appointment at Brookfield in
2010, Mr lico served as Managing Director, Real Estate Investment Banking for
Bank of America Merrill Lynch (“Merrill Lynch”), london, a position he held since

2005 and was employed for the preceding 7 vears at Citigroup in both London
and New York as a Managing Director of Real Estate Investment Banking. Before

Mr Richard Li
gril;a-;giwo moving to New York in 1998, Mr Lico spent 11 years in Hong Kong inifially

with Merrill Lynch and then cofounded Amida Capital Group Limited with Mr
Hung in 1992. Mr liao graduated from Harvard College with a Bachelor of Arts
degree in 1986.

Bx75 50k B-E-=FAARHEARRRAZHBEL  TMRARARZHTEEGKE RIFMHWE - BRENTB R
SESHTEREB2/FLR - IAKRRTZH] - B % RBBrookfield Asset Management ([ Brookfield ]) 2 = 32 & # A F&Brookfield
REN 2 FHEREEE o ME T —ZF BN BrooklieldE M 2 Al - B AR ZF L A FHH I FBank of America Merrill
lynch (/) 2 B FEHAERERTEFLLE -8 M2t FAHEEEEERMARALN 2 BHERERITEFLL
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Capital Group limited © B AR —NN\NREFEERRFHERE - RISXE LB -

Mui Ching Hung, Joanna, aged 45, is the Corporate Counsel and Company
Secretfary of the Company. She is also the secretary of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee, Disclosures Committee, PYE Committee and Executive
Committee of the Company, and the secrefary of various subsidiaries of the

Company. She is responsible for legal, regulatory compliance, corporate
-' governance and company secrefarial matters of the Group. Ms Mui has over

22 years’ experience in company secrefarial field. She joined the Group in
1997. Ms Mui holds a Bachelor [Hons) Degree in law and a Master of Arts
Degree in language and law. She is an associate member of The Hong Kong

Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and

%s%ﬂ ,:]; /(J:\h;:gg gz Joomna Administrators.
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Louis XIlI' Holdings Llimited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to mainfaining high
standards of corporate governance because we believe that is
the best way to enhance shareholder value. The Company places
strong emphasis on an effective board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of the Company, accountability, sound internal control,
appropriate risk-assessment procedures, and transparency fo all
shareholders.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Goveming the listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) (the
"listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2014 and
has adopted most of the recommended best practices stated
therein.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-
Executive Directors fo ensure independent viewpoints in all
discussions. As at the dafe of this report, the Board comprises eight
Direcfors, including four Executive Directors and four Independent
Non-Executive Directors. Board members are listed below:

BHT=6BARAR(ARA] EREWMEAF &
BRIAREDBN#EFRKFZEEESR  AAKEN
BEUDRABRREEZRERE - ARFZEEEBRR
AlReRzArrEE((EX)R(EER)) HEAE
- BRZAMER REZARFGEFME2ER
RZIBRE -

REEZZ-—NF=RA=+—HIFEAN KXRAFAEE
STEEMARIMERRR ([BEMIM]) FEr LR
AT ETARRD) M s+ mpraEiKe e/ ([5 /1)
ZIASTANG - MERME PRI D ERZERR

EER

AENDY

EEZRTHRTEEIIFNTES 2HARFAE  BR
MENwABBELEN NARSEH EXRH/\L
BRMAK (BROUATES OB IIFNTES)
E=RKBIRMT :

Board of Directors

BE=xR

Executive Directors

HITES
e Stephen Hung (Joint Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYkHITES

e James Chiu

BOKEE (B R EE) I

o Peter lee Coker Jr. (Joint Chairman) ® |ee Chack Fan
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (B /& = JE) = CRAS

¢ lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman) ® |ain Ferguson Bruce
=R BIEE) mET

e Walter Craig Power (Chief Executive Officer)
Walter Craig Power (77 E A8 )

® Francis Goutenmacher
Francis Goutenmacher
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b ERBE

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on pages 24
to 28 of this annual report and on the Company's website. In
addition, a list containing names of Directors and their roles and
functions is published on the websites of the Company and Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, af least onethird of
the Board was made up of Independent Non-Executive Directors,
one of whom had appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise, as required
by the listing Rules. There is no relationship (including financial,
business, fomi\y or other material/relevant re|oﬂonship) among
members of the Board.

The composition of the Board (with four Independent Non-
Executive Directors out of eight Directors) exceeds the Llisting
Rules requirement fo have independent nonexecutive directors
representing at least one-third of the board.

In August 2013, the Company has established a policy conceming
diversity of Board members (the “Board Diversity Policy”). In the
Board Diversity Policy:

1. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance.

2. With a view fo achieving a susfainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
affainment of its strafegic objectives and its sustainable
development.

3. In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and

length of service.

4. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objectives criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skill,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring fo the Board.
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The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board:
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Role and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company's strategic
direction and the confrols applied to ifs activities, and ensuring
that Management has appropriate processes in place for risk-
assessment, management, and internal control over the Company's
day-to-day affairs.

The Board has in place a list of decisions that are fo be refained
for the Board decision. These matters include:

Corporate strategy;

Financial reporting and control;

Maior financial arrangements;

Risk management;

Succession planning;

Nofifiable transactions under Chapters 14 and 14A of the
Listing Rules; and

o 0k~

7. Recommendations to shareholders regarding the
appointment of external auditor, dividend payments, capifal

reorganizations and schemes of arrangement.

The Board has delegated all day-to-day operations and
management of the Company's business to Management under the
leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer

The Joint Chairmen of the Company are Mr Stephen Hung and Mr
Peter Lee Coker Jr. The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is
Mr Walter Craig Power.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the positions of
the Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
held by different individuals, with separate duties. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer
is clearly established and sef out in writing.

The role of the Joint Chairmen of the Company is o oversee the
Company's strategic  direction and the confrols applied to its
activities. The Joint Chairmen provides leadership for the Board
and ensures that the Company establishes sound  corporate
governance pracfices and procedures. They also encourage all
Direcfors fo make a full and active confribution to the affairs of the

Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall
performance of the Company and plays a leading role in
delivering a growth strategy. He provides leadership for
Management, oversees the day-oday operations of the Group,
and monifors the achievement of Company’s objectives set by the

Board.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors were appointed for a
ferm of approximately three years expiring at the conclusion of the
third annual general meetfing from the date of their appointment/
reelection, subject fo the Company's Byelaws. Pursuant fo the
Company's Byelaws, all Directors are subject fo retirement from
office by rofafion af least once every three years and are eligible
for re-election by shareholders.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Direcfors has given an
annual confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant
fo Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all Independent Non-Executive Direcfors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Llisting Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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The Nomination Committee of the Company is responsible for
assessing the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors. As a good corporate governance practice, every
member of the Nomination Commitiee abstains from assessing his
own independence.

Board Process

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year. Regular
Board meetfings are usually scheduled af the beginning of the
year fo give all Direcfors adequate time to plan their schedules
to affend. Direcfors receive at least 14 days’ prior written notice
of regular Board meefings and an agenda. The Board papers,
including supporting analysis and relevant background information,
are normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the Board
meeting. For other Board meefings, Direcfors are given as much
nofice as possible in the circumstances.

In order to have an effective Board, Directors are provided with
information on activities and developments in the Group's business
on a regular and timely basis to keep them apprised of the lafest
developments of the Group. The Directors have full access to
information on the Group and are able to seek independent
professional advice whenever they deem it necessary.

In addition, in order to enable the Board and each Director to
discharge their duties, it has been the Company's pracfice fo
provide all Directors with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company's performance,
positions and prospects since 2007, way ahead of the
implementation of new Code on 1 April 2012.

To avoid conflicts of interest, Directors who have declared their
material inferests in the proposed transactions or issues fo be
discussed are not counted in the quorum of meefings and absfain
from voting on the relevant resolutions.
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Details of Directors’ aftendance at Board meefings, Board HAEHEZERHEEZ_ZT— =A=+—BLHFERNLERE
committee meefings and shareholders’ meefings during the year BERE# -  £FZ% E’%‘@ BERBRAREZFHBRIAT -
ended 31 March 2014 are set out in the following table:

Meefings atiended / held during the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-B-DEZACT-BLEEALE/Ei288

Finance & Corporate Annual Special
Audit  Remunerafion ~ Nomincfion Invesment ~ Disclosures  Governance PYE General General
Board Commitee ~ Commitee ~ Commiee ~ Commitee ~ Commitee ~ Commitee ~ Commitee Meefing Meefing
HBRRE b¥ER  REER
2R  BNZEE  HMzEg R4ZE€ 8% KEZEE  ZEf 282 RRBEAE RRBAAE
Number of mesfings held 6 3 5 2 2 2 2 4 I 3
during he year
ERRTERINY
Executive Directors
ez
Stephen Hung 6/6 2/2 2/2 1/1 1/3
Peter lee Coker 1. 6/6 2/2 2/2 1/1 3/3
lauKo Yuen, Tom 6/6 3/5 2/2 2/2 2/2 2/2 4/4 1/1 3/3
U=k
Walter Craig Power 6/6 2/2 1/1 3/3
Independent No-Execufive Directors
BUFHTES
Jomes Chiu 6/6 3/3 5/5 2/2 4/4 1/1 3/3
bz
lee Chack Fan 5/6 3/3 5/5 2/2 3/4 1/1 3/3
FiER
lain Ferguson Bruce 6/6 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/2 2/2 4/4 0/1 2/3
o
Froncis Govtenmacher 6/6 3/3 2 1/1 3/3

In addition to the Board meefings, the Chairman holds regular BREEREREIN  TFEEFERBRTEFLRE TEE
meefings with Independent Non-Executive Directors annually — ZIEITEFRITEREE ©
without the presence of Executive Directors.

Minufes of Board meetings and Board committee meefings with FEHPAEBEEE EEREEREETZETERLL
sufficient defails of matters discussed are kept in safe custody by SRR BIMEZRRE - WHEEFEH -
the Company Secretary, and are open for inspection by Directors.
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Induction and Development

Management and the Company Secrefary liaise with the newly
appointed Directors to acquaint them with their duties and
responsibilities as Directors and the business operations of the
Company. On appointment to the Board, Directors receive a
package of orientation materials on the Group and provided
with a comprehensive induction on the business operations and
practices of the Group, as well as the general and specific duties
of directors under general law and the Listing Rules. All Directors
are also given a Directors” Manual on their appointment which set
out, amongst other things, directors’ duties, terms of reference of
the Board Committiee and corporate governance practices of the

Group.

To assist Direcfors' continuing professional development ("CPD”),
defails on legal and regulatory changes are provided to all
Directors. Directors are also recommended and encouraged
to attend forums or seminars relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director. The costs of such forums or
seminars are borne by the Company. The Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company is responsible for reviewing and
monitoring the Directors’ training and development.
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The Direcfors are required to provide the Company with details ~ ZEEER AR AR S TR ZCPDIFIFES - 1R
of the CPD training undertaken by them from time to fime. Based IEFTiREEZ#1E HE-_T—NF=A=-+—BIEFE
on the defails so provided, the CPD training undertaken by the — ZB=EHE S 2 CPDIFFIIE T

Direcfors during the year ended 31 March 2014 is summarised as

follows:
Attending presentation/
seminars/conferences relevant
to the Groups' business or
directors' duties
Reading regulatory rules and HEEASBERRESH
Directors their updates EHBEzERE HEE
= HEEERARBHER BERE
Executive Directors
HITES
Stephen Hung v v
koK B
Peter Lee Coker Jr. v v/
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom v v
2= IR
Walter Craig Power v v
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHTES
James Chiu v/ v/
H S
lee Chack Fan v v/
ES GRS
lain Ferguson Bruce v v
mE+
Francis Goutenmacher 4 4

The Company has received confirmation from each current Director AR RIBEREESRAZTETHR  BREREBEE T —NF=
that he has given sufficient time and affention to the affairs of the A=+—ALFEREU AR R ZEHHHERZHHE
Company for the year ended 31 March 2014. Besides, Directors &5/ - B4h EEERBFRAARABRBEEREMB AR
have disclosed to the Company their interests as direcor and ~ AFIREBHTESREMBE 2 ED  YRAQFE
other office in other public companies and organisation in a timely — F{EA/LEEE -

manner and update the Company on any subsequent changes.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To facilitate the work of the Board, Board committees have been
set up with written terms of reference which clearly define the role,
authority, and functions of each commitiee. Each Board committee
is required to report their decisions or recommendations fo the
Board. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board committee
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2014 are shown on
page 36 of this annual report.

The role and function of, and a summary of work done by, each
Board committee during the year ended 31 March 2014 are sef
out below:

Audit Committee

Composition
The Audit Committee consists of four members, all of whom
are Independent Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired by an

Independent Non-Executive Direcfor.

The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu (Chairman),
Professor lee Chack Fan, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce and Mr Francis
Goutenmacher. None of them is a pariner or former parier of
Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s external auditor.

Role and Function

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include oversight of the
Group's financial reporting system and internal control procedures,
review of the Group's financial information, and review of the
re|oﬂonship with the external auditor of the Company. This
Committee also meets regularly with the Company’s extermnal
audifor to discuss the audit process and accounting issues.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2014

1. Review of the annual results of the Group for the year ended

1 March 2013

2. Review of the inferim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2013

3. Review of the Group's financial information, financial

reporting system, internal control procedures, and financial

and accounting policies and practices;
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Approval of remuneration and ferms of engagement of the
external auditor;

Recommendation to the Board fo re-appoint the extermnal
auditor at the 2013 annual general meeting;

Review of the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, and
review of policy on engaging the external auditor to supply
non-audit services;

Review of the audit plan for the financial year ended 31

March 2014

Review of the Company's systems of financial confrols,
infernal control and risk management;

Review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of sfaff of the Company's accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes

and budget;
Review of internal/external auditor's significant findings
and recommendations, and monitoring of the subsequent

implementation;

Review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function of
the Company;

Approval of the 2015 intfernal audit plans;
Review of the continuing connected fransactions;
Review of the whistleblowing policy; and

Meeting with the external auditor, in the absence of

Management.
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Remuneration Committee

Composition

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, the
majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors. This
Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director.

The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu (Chairman),
Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Professor Lee Chack Fan.

Role and Function

The Remuneration Committiee has been established to ensure there
is a formal and fransparent procedure for seffing policy on the
remuneration of Executive Directors and for fixing the remuneration
packages for all Directors. This Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and sfructure for remuneration of Directors and  Senior
Management, and making recommendations on the manpower
deployment plan. This Commitiee also determines, with delegated
responsibility, remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and Senior Management, and makes recommendations
on remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 March 2014:

1. Approval of remuneration of new Senior Management;

2. Approval of revised remuneration of Executive Directors and
Senior Management;

3. Approval of year end bonus of Executive Directors and
Senior Management;

4. Recommendation of Directors’ fees; and
5. Review of the Company's remuneration policy.

Remuneration Policy

The Company ensures that the remuneration offered is appropriate
for the duties, in line with market practice and pay levels, and
effective in atfracting, refaining and motivating employees (including
Executive Directors). For Non-Executive Directors, the Company
ensures that they are sufficiently but not excessively compensated
for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company. No individual
determines his or her own remuneration.

=

~

58

AR
FMEEelm R EBAR REETFABNKERE
VHPTEF - AZBEHBUIIFNTEFREIER

AEZEERFHERESTEN(ZFE)  FsRELERF
18RI A

Ao R
KRIFHEZEEEERREBECATESTHFMZIBREK
EreBERzHENASTTH A-EEABAEHE
WiEF - AEZEESTERARAEHEERSNEREE
ZEHMBERERE REZREHEZE  ARADLER
HESTREREZZ AZBETEEZRFE BEEME
FATEERSREREZHMEE  IHMEATES
ZF B L -

THEHE
BERZEERBE_T-HUF=A=1t—BILFEZT
EBEZEMT -

1. BUHFSREREZFHH

2. BURETZHTEFKSBREEBHM
3. BUATEENRSRERE 2 FRIL:

4. FHFEFHET R
5. BEIARREZHMBOR

FEN R

ARABIHERT SN 2 F BB HE > WERMISEE R

KFRFT—H MR FRBEEBRFN  EARRS| -
BRESEE (BREIUTES) ~BFATES AR

AEREAEERARRRZEN RERG TREMN TG

=M - MEALBTEEEBEALTH -

BE+T=KEBERQA

2014755 41



Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

The remuneration of Direcfors is determined with reference fo
market competitiveness, job responsibilities, and performance of
the Company and the individual. Details of the remuneration of
Direcfors during the year ended 31 March 2014 are sef out on
page 146 of this annual report. During the year ended 31 March
2014, the remunerafion paid to one Senior Management was
within the band between HK$1,000,000 to HK$6,000,000,
and one Senior Management was within the band between

HK$6,000,001 1o HK$12,000,000.

Nomination Committee

Composition

The Nomination Committee consists of five members, the majority
of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors. This Committee
is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director.

The current members of this Committee are Professor lee Chack
Fan (Chairman), Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr lain

Ferguson Bruce and Mr Francis Goutenmacher.

Role and Function

This Committee was established to ensure there is a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new Directors. The duties of this Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board and, if necessary,
recommending changes. It is also responsible for identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board,
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals to be nominated for directorships, and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Directors.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 March 2014

1. Nominated the refiring Direcfors for re-election at the 2013
Annual General Meeting;

2. Review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience| of the Board;

3. Assessment of the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors; and

4. Review of the Company’s policy on nomination of Directors.
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Nomination Procedure

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and makes recommendations fo the Board regarding any
proposed changes.

Appointments of new Directors are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. In considering the appointment of a
Director, this Committee applies criferia such as professional and
educational background, relevant experience, and qualifications.
The recommendations of this Committee are then put fo the Board
for consideration and approval. Thereafter, all Directors appointed
to fill casual vacancy are subject to election by shareholders at the
first general meeting affer their appointment.

Finance and Investment Committee

Composition

The Finance and Investment Committee consists of five members,
and is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Direcior. The
current members of this Commitiee are Mr lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman),
Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Peter Llee Coker Jr., Mr Llau Ko Yuen, Tom
and Mr Walter Craig Power.

Role and Function

The Finance and Investment Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on matters relafing to
investing in assets, evaluating the budgets of all key expenditures,
reviewing financial performance against forecast, and considering
dividend payout.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by the Finance
and Investment Committee during the year ended 31 March

2014:

1. Review and evaluation of actualfo-budget results for the year
ended 31 March 2013 and for the six months ended 30
September 2013 (including budget of all key expenditures);

2. Review of financial performance against forecast;

3. Discussion on changes in accounting standards which
may affect the Company's financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2013 and for the six months ended 30
September 2013; and

4.  Consideration of the payment of the 2013 final dividend
and 2014 inferim dividend.
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Disclosures Committee

Composition

The Disclosures Committee consists of three members, and is
chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director. The current
members of this Committee are Mr lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman),

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Role and Function

The Disclosures Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing
disclosures to shareholders, the public, and relevant statutory
authorities, and for overseeing compliance with any applicable
legal requirements for disclosure.

Summary of Work Done

The work done by the Disclosures Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2014 included the review of the confent of
announcements re|ofing to the annual results of the Group for the
vear ended 31 March 2013, and the interim results of the Group
for the six months ended 30 September 2013

Corporate Governance Committee

Composition

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of three members,
the majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
This Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director. The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr lain Ferguson Bruce.

Role and Function

The Corporate Governance Committee was  established  with
delegated responsibility of the Board to perform the corporate
governance duties and fo further strengthen the Company's
corporate governance.

The Corporate Governance Commitiee is mainly responsible for
developing and regularly reviewing the Company’s compliance
with legal, regulatory and corporate governance standards and
makes recommendations to the Board.
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Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Corporate  Governance Committee during the year ended

1 March 2014
1. Review of the Company's corporate governance policy;

2. Review of the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

3. Review of the Company compliance with the Code for
the year ended 31 March 2013 and six months ended
30 September 2013; and

4.  Review of the Company's disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2013

PYE Committee

Composition

The PYE Committee consists of four members. The current members
of this Committee are Ir James Chiu (Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen,
Tom, Professor lee Chack Fan and Mr lain Ferguson Bruce.

Role and Function

The PYE Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing,
moniforing and supervising the overall management and operation
of the construction business of the Company.

Summary of Work Done

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the PYE Committee
reviewed the results of the construction business of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2013, for the four months ended
31 July 2013, for the six months ended 30 September 2013 and
for the ten months ended 31 January 2014

Executive Committee

Composition

The Executive Committee consists of five members. The current
members of this Commitee are Mr Stephen Hung (Chairman),
Mr Peter lee Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr Walter Craig
Power and Mr Richard Llico.

Role and Function
This Committee is mainly responsible for handling the management
and operations of the dayto-day business of the Group.
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Management Functions

The division of responsibilities between the Board and
Management are clearly set out in writing to ensure that there is a
segregation of dufies with clear accountability.

The Board,
Company, has delegated all the day-foday operations and

under the leadership of the Chairman of the

management of the Company's business to Management, under
the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Management is required fo report to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the listing Rules, the change in
information of Directors subsequent to the date of the 2014 Interim

Report is sef out below:

Ir James Chiu has become a president of The Hong Kong
Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Confractors Limited with
effect from 27 February 2014. Also, he ceased fo be a director
of Hong Kong Green Building Council with effect from
2014

1 January

DIRECTORS” SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of listed Issuers (the “Model Code’) sef
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Direcors.

All Direcfors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they complied with the required standard sef out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2014

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing
securities fransactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensifive information in relation to
the Group.
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DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of
the accounts department, the Directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared on a going concemn basis
and in accordance with sfafufory requirements and applicable
financial reporting standards. The Directors also ensure that the
financial statements of the Group are published in a timely manner.

The statement by the external auditors of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities of the financial statements of the
Group is sef out in the Independent Audifor's Report on pages 93
and 94 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secrefary supports the Chairman, Board and Board
Committees by ensuring good information flow and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. She is responsible for advising
the Board on governance matters and facilitates the induction and
professional development of Directors. The Company Secretary is
also responsible to the Group’s compliance with all obligations of
the Listing Rules and Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases.

The Company Secrefary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. She reports to the Joint Chairmen and
the Board as a whole. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary in respect of their duties and
the effective operation of the Board and Board Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company Secretary
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update her skills
and knowledge.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

At the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 30 August
2013, shareholders approved the re-appointment of Messrs
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company's external auditor for
the financial year ended 31 March 2014

The fees paid to the external auditor for audit and non-audit
services for the year ended 31 March 2014 (and the comparative
figures for the year ended 31 March 2013) are as follows:

SIS A% B

R-FB-—=ZF\A=1THBTZARABRRBFAEL
BRI EEEEH - HERNGAMTARNRREE
T-ME=ZA=+—H M BRFE 2 IMNEREED -

BE_Z-NMEF=-A=+—RLFE(REHE_F
—ZFZAZT-BUFEZEFHR)  EBHEAAF
SNERZ BN 2 RBESER BRI Z BB T

2014 2013

—B-NmEF —E-=F

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FTHET FHT

Audit fee ZEER 4,593 4,280
Non-audit services fees FERBREE A

Interim review fee FHEMER 950 768

Tax services 7% AR 75 195 537

Provident fund audit NHESZH 23 19

Special engagements BRIl & - 3,700

1,168 5,024

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors
and ensuring the continuing objectivity and independence of
the external auditor. The Audit Commitiee of the Company has
resolved to recommend the re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the Company. This
resolufion has been endorsed by the Board and is subject to final
approval and authorization by the shareholders at the 2014
Annual General Meeting.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Introduction

The Board acknowledges ifs responsibility for the Company’s
system of internal control and for reviewing ifs effectiveness.
In meetfing s responsibility, the Board seeks to increase risk
awareness across the Company’s business operations and has put
in place policies and procedures which provide a framework for
controls and management of risks.
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The Board is also committed to managing risks and monitoring its  EER MBI N ETRB R ERHLEBE RV KIS @ Bk
business and financial activities in a manner which enables it to 6 FEE 12 = FIHEF B - 18 0 SRR AT i X 1B 2k S B 2
maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks BB Z Bk - HERETEAEM LR ARIESEINE
which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance =& B fE & 7

with applicable laws and regulations, and enhance resilience to

external events.

Internal Control A EFES i

The Company has had in place an integrated internal control ~ RAQA B BT —Ei S REFEFEL  BIEEHCOSO
framework, issued by COSO (the Commitiee of Sponsoring  (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Organizations of the Treadway Commission) in the United States, ~ Commission| AT 88 #5 + LA Bh & <F £ #R8 Bl 2 <F BIE S - 1R
in complying with Code Provisions of listing Rules. Internal confrol — SF &5 4 R 7E A I FE L EA T B IR & B AR F M
is defined as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance &1 2 i f2

regarding the achievement of objectives in relation fo the following:

e FEffectiveness and efficiency of operations; . I8 W R

o Reliability of financial reporting; and J BBHmEZAEE &

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations. o HEFEA Ei@']&&iﬁ

The Company's internal control framework is divided into five &2 TZW*B EERERAOROEREEERD - B
interrelated components: control environment, risk assessment,  IR1E fa RE (L - B I /ﬁ@) BN A E B ER o HIE
confrol activities, moniforing and information & communication. It %“%EAZW*E EERG 2L LA?%I%EX@M@*HE
serves as criteria for the effectiveness of the infernal confrol system — E & 2 W mERERETZ BIR

in supporting the achievement of the separate but overlapping
operational, financial reporting and compliance objectives.

The following diagram depicts the comprehensive nature of the  TE#E T AR TW‘B@“? ERZEZEME  WHAT
Company's infernal control framework and illustrates how effective BB R R 2 NILETE 2 FiA AEABEKBH 2 £
monitoring affects the collective effectiveness of all five components k2

of infernal confrols:

CONTROL
---------- ENVIRONMENT el
i EEES A

MONITORING INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION RISK ASSESSMENT
ER MemEa R F¥{E

e CONTROL .. oA
Tenea ACTIVITIES o
BEEEE

ms+=emaman 2014xx 49
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The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s system of
infernal control and assessment of risks. The responsibility of day-
to-day management of operational risks and the implementation of
mitigation measures lies with Management.

Built info our system are checks and balances such that no single
parly can “monopolise” a fransaction, activity or process fo
conceal irmegularities. Hence, Management has underfaken the
following additional checks and balances procedures:

e A clear functional organizational sfructure was set up
with well-defined lines of authority, accountability and
responsibilities. Each division clearly understands their scope
of business and authorities delegated by Management;

e A "Business Policy and Quality Management” directive
was issued by Management to address various important
aspects in enhancing prudence in managing and conducting
business as a listed company;

e A "Project and Cost Management System” has been
developed in order to enhance the Company’s project
management system and cost management system;

* A monthly reporting sysfem on the performance of works
contracts, and actual financial performance results against
budgets to Management was well established. The
Board reviews the Company’s operations and financial
performance on a quarterly basis;

*  Management reviews with each division on a monthly
basis o ensure that progress payments and final payments
shall be received within a reasonable time. In parallel,
accounts department also issues a summary of overdue trade
receivable fo each division regularly to assist the divisional
heads to chase all outstanding payments and consequently
fo improve the Company cashflow position;

e The Board reviews annually, in particular, adequacy of
resources, qualifications, experience of staff, training
programme and budget of the Company's accounting and
financial reporting function as required under the Llisting
Rules;

*  The Audit Commitiee assesses and monitors the effectiveness
of infernal control system in defecting fraud and other
iregularities by reviewing the work of the internal corporate
audit department and its findings; and
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e The Company is aware of confrolling price-sensitive
information and its obligations under the Listing Rules.

The Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Company's infernal control systems during the year ended 31
March 2014, and was not aware of any significant issues that
would have adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy
of the internal control system of the Group. Such review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
confrols, risk management functions, adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's accounting
and financial reporting function, and their fraining programmes
and budget.

Risk Management

The Company has established an enterprise risk management
framework to identify pofential events that may be affecting
the Company, o manage risks within its risk appetite and to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the
Company's objectives. It comprises of three lines of defence to
provide Management, Audit Committee and the Board with the
confidence that the Company is managing ifs risks and they are:

o RISK & B
First line of OPERATIONAL
defense BUSINESS OPERATIONS  Operational processes, project risk and MANAGEMENT
E—EBHR EBEE control activity business level monitoring woE e
EEBRE - HERABRRIEHEDEE
BREER

RISK & Bz
Second line of SENIOR
defffjse CORPORATE Business planning, policy and procedure M’:NAE;EMENT
EoEmR OVERSIGHT FUNCTIONS  setting, functional oversight B EEE

NEEEBEE KBRE  BEREFHE  BEEMEE

RISK [ Fz
Third line of R AUDIT
defer]se INTERNAL / Monitoring compliance and provide COMMILTE
E=EBS EXTERNAL AUDIT independent challenge and assurance ECE

WINERZ EREHIERYREBIERERRE

THE BOARD
BEER
(Audit Committee)
(BREES)
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This enterprise risk management framework will enable the
Company to have the following potential benefits:

e Greater likelihood of achieving business objectives;

e Higher share prices over the longer term;
®  Reduction in management time spent “fire fighting”;
®  Increased likelihood of change initiatives being achieved:;

®  More focus infernally on doing the right things properly;
. Better basis for strategy sefting;

®  Achievement of competitive advantage;

e Fewer sudden shocks and unwelcome surprises; and

° Eorly mover into new business areas.

Furthermore, the Company enhanced its tender estimating
procedures to identify, control and report on major tendering
and estimating risks (such as unfomiliarised countries, nature of
works, buildabilities and fechnical feasibilities, changes in tender
requirements, unreasonable basis of costs analysis and insufficiency
of information) for Management to defermine the final tender sums.

Risk Assessment

During the year ended 31 March 2014, Management and
infernal corporate audit department carried out the following risk
assessment exercises for the Company’s operations and  their
progress and findings are reported fo the Audit Committee of the
Company quarterly:

e Seffing the context of Company goals and objectives for our
risk assessment process;

®  Reviewing the Company’s key documentation policies and
procedures on  strafegicmanagement, core-business, and
resource-management processes;

e I|denfifying, assessing and documenting the Company’s high-
level risks, including financial, operational and compliance
aspects;

e Performing a walkthrough check of the highlevel risks
documented in the risk registers fo ascertain whether the
confrol design was effective in addressing the respective risk;

e Identifying and documenting any deviations from the
enterprise risk-management framework and providing
potential improvement opportunities for any inconsistencies
or gaps;
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e Conducting technical field audit fo help in locating lacunae
and deficiencies in site organisafion sfructure and contract
management aspects; and

o Preparing an annual risk-based internal audit plan which
details the internal auditing works for the next fiscal year.

Internal Audit

The independent internal corporate audit department monitors
compliance with management policies and procedures and with
regulafory requirements, and conducts festing on the effectiveness
of internal control measures. The head of the infernal corporate
audit department reports directly to the Audit Committee of the
Company on audit and internal control matters. A full set of internal
audit reports will also be provided to the external auditor.

The majority of key operational controls have been tested for their
effectiveness by the internal corporate audit department and a
review of the infernal confrol system will be performed at least
annually. The festing determines the extent to which operational
procedures and confrols are being properly followed and
implemented in the Company. Based on the results of the tesfs,
division heads are able to prove to Management that internal
confrols are working as infended or that necessary corrections have
been made where control weaknesses were found. Management
has adopted all the recommendations and esfablished clear
timelines for implementation. Progress will be reported to the Audit
Committee of the Company and the Board on a quarterly basis.

Using risk-assessment methodology and faking info account the
dynamics of the Company's activities, the infernal corporate
audit department delivers its annual audit plan for next fiscal year
which is approved by the Audit Committee of the Company.
Under the approved Internal Corporate Audit Charter by the
Board, the infernal corporate audit department has unrestricted
access to information and complete freedom to draw independent
conclusions in their audit.

Any significant infernal audit findings are discussed with respective
division heads to have actions agreed and subsequently followed
up, in order to ensure that the risks are mitigated. VWhilst the
enterprise risk-management framework is designed to identify and
manage risks that could adversely impact the achievement of the
Company’s business objectives, they do not provide absolute
assurance against misstatement, errors, losses or fraud.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

In order to enhance shareholder and investor understanding
of the Group's business, the Company has established several
communication channels with shareholders and investors, including
(i printed copies of corporate documents (including but not
limited to annual reports, inferim reports, circulars and notices of
shareholder meetings); [ii) general meetings where shareholders
can offer comments and exchange views with the Board:; {iii) the
Company's website: www.IXlll.com; and (iv) the Company's
share registrar with whom shareholders register their shares. The
Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
fo sef out the Company's procedures in providing the shareholders
and investment community with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

In addition, shareholders are encouraged to attend all general
meetings of the Company, where the Joint Chairmen of the
Company, Chairmen of Board Committees, other Directors and
the external auditor are available to answer questions on the
Group's businesses. In order to conduct the general meefings in a
fransparent manner, it has been the Company’s practice fo conduct
poll voting af general meefings since 2005, way ahead of poll
voting being made mandatory for all general meetings effective on
1 January 2009,

In addition to the annual general meeting, the Company held
three special general meetings during the year ended 31 March
2014. The Joint Chairmen of the Board, Chairmen of the Board
committees affended the annual general meefing and special
general meetings and were available fo answer questions.

The last general meeting was held on 11 December 2013 af
Victoria Room, 2nd Floor, Mandarin Oriental, Hong Kong,
5 Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong for the purpose of
considering the Placing Agreement and issue of Convertible Bonds (both
as defined in the circular of the Company dated 26 November
2013). The resolutions put forward and percentage of votes cast in
favour of such resolutions are set out below:

e Approval of placing agreement and the specific mandate fo
allot and issue new shares of the Company pursuant to the
placing agreement (100.00%);
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e Approval of the creafion and issue of the convertible bonds
and the specific mandate fo allot and issue such number
of new shares of the Company as may be required fo
be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion
rights aftaching to the convertible bonds pursuant to the
subscripfion agreement (99.99%);

All the above resolutions were passed at the said special general
meeting. The results of the poll voting have been published on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Under the Company's byelaws, shareholders holding not less
than onetenth of the total voting rights at general meefings of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called for
the business specified in such requisition.

Also, shareholders holding not less than onetwentieth of the fotal
voting rights at general meetings or not less than 100 shareholders
have fo right fo submit a written request to the Company stating the
resolution infended to be moved at the annual general meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board's
affenfion fo the Company Secrefary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 2901 AIA Central,
1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

Details of the interests of Directors and shareholders in the shares of
the Company are shown on pages 73 to 74 and 86 to Q0 of this
annual report respectively.

OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION

Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws

There were no changes fo the Company’s memorandum of
Association and bye-laws during the year ended 31 March 2014
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Public Float Capitalisation

The public float capitalisation of the Company was approximately
HK$2,519 million on 31 March 2014, and approximately
HK$ 1,447 million on the date of this report.

By order of the Board

Mui Ching Hung, Joanna
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

TERAESETHRS

Louis Xl Holding Limited  (the

subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to building harmonious and

"Company”, fogether with ifs

sustainable communities, as a responsible corporate citizen.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group places strong emphasis on sound internal contral,
appropriate risk-assessment procedures and  fransparency to ifs
shareholders and the public.

The Company believes that a high standard of corporate
governance is the key fo sustainable development of business. The
Company strives to comply with all relevant rules, regulations and
laws.

The Group has an independent internal corporate audit
department, which conducts testing on the effectiveness of the
Group's infernal control measures.

Besides, the Group has established a whistleblowing policy and
system for employees and those who deal with the Group fo raise
concems, in confidence, with the Audit Committee about possible
impropriefies in any matter related to the Group.

QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Sustainability and social responsibility remained integral parts of its
corporate sfrategy throughout the year as the Group continued to
uphold its commitments fowards its different stakeholder groups.

A comprehensive supply chain risk management strategy is set in
place. The selection of suppliers and subcontractors has now been
placed under the supervision of senior management, ensuring that
only the most qualified ones are included in our list of “Approved
Suppliers and  Subcontractors”.  Furthermore, the performance
of our suppliers and subcontractors is regularly evaluated and
a record is maintained to ensure consistent service quality and
delivery performance. Potential suppliers and subcontractors
are invited fo submit tenders in accordance with the relevant
project’s specifications, and fo fill in a “Quadlity, Health and Safety

Questionnaire” for our evaluation.
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The Group deploys various quality programs by implementing

the Plan-Do-Check-Act Improvement Cycle, to ensure confinuous

improvement on the service quality and thus, customer satisfaction.

These quality programs include:

» 1ISO 9001 (Quality Management System)

» ISO 14001 (Environment Management System)

p OHSAS 18001 (Occupational Health and Safety Assessment Series)
p ISO 50001 (Energy Management System)

The Group's achievement in quality management in the past year

were recognized by various nofable organizations, as shown

below:

Scheme

5l

Project Management
Achievement Award 2013
THE BB ARH2013

Project Management
Achievement Award 2013
15 B B AH2013

Project Management
Achievement Award 2013
1B E BB AH2013

Quality Public Housing
Construction & Maintenance
Award 2013
BEAREREREER
REHEBE R 2013
Construction Manager of the
Year Award 2012

2012 ERBH L EE
FESEPNE

Award

#®15

Winner

(Category — Humanitarian,
Community Service and Regional
Development)

B

(#87) : NEEBRMERBE R
B EE)

Winner

(Category — Construction/
Engineering)

Bt

(485 : 2i&/TH2)

Winner

(Humanitarian, Community Service
and Regional Development)
BrE
(NBEEA RS RESER)
Silver Award

New Works Projects — Outstanding
Contractors Award (Building)

HREE

MTRIBE- ARG E (BR)
Commendation

e
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» SO Q001 (mEEIEZEHA)
» 1SO 14001 GRIEE R FRHE)
» OHSAS 18001

» 1ISO 50001 (REIRE 1B R 4%)
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Awardee
BHREN
Tuen Mun North West

Swimming Pool Project
HPIFR AL ko 1R B

Tuen Mun North West
Swimming Pool Project

PP OBIE B

Tuen Mun North West

Swimming Pool Project
R lispl 27 97 h 1]

Construction of Sai Chuen Road
Housing Development Project

AR EEIAR

Tuen Mun North West
Swimming Pool Project

M PIFEIE KRR B

(BEREMLZ2ER RS

EE:R

Organiser

ERWEM

Hong Kong Institute of
Project Management
(HKIPM)
BEEAERSE

Hong Kong Institute of
Project Management
(HKIPM)
FEEEERESES

Asia Pacific Federation
of Project Management
(APFPM)
TAEEEEMAE

The Hong Kong Housing
Authority
ERFEEZES

The Chartered Institute
of Building (HK)
REMSTEEEe
()



STAFF DEVELOPMENT

Our people are our most precious asset. We encourage our
employees at all levels to leam, grow and take pride in their
organisation. Skills development and training opportunities are
available to optimize their performance whilst enabling career
development within the Group. Different human resources strategies
and policies help create an environment conducive to employee
involvement.

Training and Development

Our Training Department has developed a comprehensive training
curriculum to hone the professional skills of our staff at all levels.

In-house training curriculum

The Department organised a number of in-house training
programmes in the year under review. All our employees were
welcome to enrol in these programmes, in areas relevant to their
work. The new courses included Competition Llaw and hands-on
practical skills training in Handling Labour Disputes and First Aid
Certification.

Training attendance and average fraining hours increased by 2%
and 16% respectively this year, over the previous financial year.

Graduate Trainee Programme

Our comprehensive managementiraining scheme for Graduate
Trainees (GTs) ensures a steady stream of future business leaders.
Apart from quarterly fraining meetings, we organized two site visits
— fo Paf Heung Depot and the fabrication yard in Zhongshan,
China — during the year. In addition, a Team Building course was
held at Tuen Mun Gold Coast Hotel last summer.

Non-Graduate Trainee Programme

The Non-Graduate Training Programme (NGTP], a new
sponsorship programme, was launched on 1 February 2014.
It provides sponsorship of up to 50% of the course fee for staff
infending fo aftain an undergraduate qualification recognized by
the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers (HKIE) or the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (HKIS), through either partime studies or a
fop-up degree programme in civil, building services engineering,
quantity surveying or any other construction-related engineering or
surveying discipline.
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liaise with Educational Institutions

The Group places great importance on the young generation. We
collaborate with educational institutions to provide learning and
career opporiunities for young people from different backgrounds.

Site visits for engineering students

The Group strengthened connections with local universities by
arranging site visits for engineering students. Hong Kong University
School of Professional and Continuing Education (HKU SPACE)
students following the Higher Diploma in Civil and Construction
Engineering visited the construction site of the Shatin to Central
Link Confract No. 1117 at Pat Heung Depot, where our Project
Direcfor made a presentation sharing valuable information on
the construction process along with insights into his 30-plus years
engineering.

Job opportunities for IVE IA-IBSP

Under our Industrial AttachmentIndustry-Based Student Project
(IA1BSP), seven job vacancies were made available fo students
following the Higher Diploma in Civil Engineering at the Insfitute of
Vocational Education (IVE). After eight weeks of onthe-job training,
three students were offered positions of Assistant Engineer within
the company after graduation.

Summer internship

We confinued fo liaise with career centres of different universities
to offer summer internship opportunities to undergraduates. This
summer, four Polytechnic University students take up internships in
the Safety and Environmental Department and three City University
students take up onsite internships in civil projects.
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Fostering Workdlife Balance

To promote a healthy worklife balance, we organized a number
of physical and mentalhealth wellness programmes for staff. For
example, the yoga classes introduced last year received positive

feedback.

STATISTICS IN RELATION TO
EMPLOYMENT AND STAFF TRAINING

(For the year ended 31 March / As at 31 March)

Geographical Distribution of Employees (%)
EERMWEED (%)

PRC Macau
Rt el

Hong Kong
&8

Singapore

eI

2014

Gender Distribution of Employees (%)
EERMBI DM (%)

Male Female
Bt kg3

R TIRE AR T

REHTHEELEFE  RMASEIZHEEARS L
HEE) - PR EF RO E IR RFRANNEE -

EREEME THI 2G5

(BE2=ZA=+—8LtFE/R=A=+—8)

Employment Type (%)
EEER (%)

Monthly Paid Contract Staff i X
BHEHET Daily Paid Staff

HEHET

Monthly Paid
Permanent Staff
AHRHET

Training Categories (%)
ZIREER (%)

Information Technology

B

@ Environmental, Health & Safety § &G cation Skill
B REREE anguage & Communication kills

& EEREERD

Legal Issues

RS

Management Skills
EERIY

Company
@ Information
ATE

8%

Technical &
@ Experience Sharing
Rtk &Ro =

2014
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SAFETY AND HEALTH

Safety and health is a critical thread in the construction industry.
Over the year, we further strengthened and standardized safety
measures and environmental management of our projects in Hong
Kong and in other operational areas. We strove to achieve a
balance between assessed risk and the requirements of practical,
achievable mitigation strategies to protect the health and safety of
workers.

Distributing Information on Safety and
Health Issues

Safety is our first priority. VWe are committed to mainfaining the
highest safety standards at all levels of the Group. Our Safety,
Health, Environment & Quality (SHEQ) Policy Statement sefs out
compliance guidelines for construction sites. We also distributed
copies of the SHE Management Manual containing comprehensive
and organized information on the Safety, Health and Environmental
Management System (SHEMS) to workers to ensure that they are
aware of and vigilant on safety issues.

Promoting Safety and Health Activities

In the year under review, we hired new recruits to cope with the
increased volume of consfruction work. The "P licence” and "N
licence” system was introduced fo ensure their safety and reduce
accidents. The system requires new workers to wear safety helmets
marked with the letter “P", and experienced workers who are new
fo the construction site to wear safety helmets marked with the letier “N”.
More experienced workers guide the workers wearing "P" helmets
on the construction sites.

Working in the high heat can be dangerous. We organized
special activities fo prevent incidents of heat stroke. For example,
we distributed free watermelons to workers on Watermelon Day
during summer. Regular health checks, blood glucose and fitness
exercises were arranged fo increase workers safety awareness.
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Innovation Tools for Safety and Health

Dust suppression measures were hampered by the lack of power
and water facilities at the lamma Power Station. A Mini Sprinkler
System was developed by the team at low cost as a simple and
flexible solution to be implemented in any workplace with limited
or no access to energy and water. The system is powered by plug
and socket connecting a 12V submersible pump to power sources
(220V AC sources/ 12V DC Battery). The system resulted in an 89
percent reduction in dust concentration. Effective and cost efficient,
it has benefitted the health and work environments of onsite
operatives.

Adoption of Hazard Identification Exercise

The 4MIE system was adopted to alert workers fo potential
hazards and risks. Under this system, a Foreman conducts a
hazard identification exercise based on the 4M (Man, Machine,
Material and Method) and 1E (Environment] format at every
morning briefing. The Foreman also conducts a “Pointing and
Calling” exercise to minimize possible accidents resulting from
human error and to reinforce awareness of recognized hazards
identified from higher potential hazards.

Safety Awards

The Group is honoured fo have received the following safety and
health awards in the past year:

Award
#2185

Scheme

s

MTR Projects Division
Contractors Safety Conference &
Safety Awards

BEHER AR EEER
TR

Gold Safety Award
e S

MTR Projects Quality, Safety,
Environmental and Stakeholder
Engagement Awards
AR TIZEE mE
E AR [ K 4

DNV Independent Audit
Highest Audit Score Award
BYBEGZREIE

ZE - R®R

Workplace Hygiene Competition
2013
IHEEBRLE2013

Champion of Contractor
Worksite (Extension Projects)
AP I (BEIE) A5

-BE

e NEFRIETA
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Awardee Organiser
BEREEN FiEN
Contract 755 — West Island Line MTR
Project Vot
BB TIEANRS755

Contract 1114 — Shatin to Central Link| MTR
Project Vi)
DRGEXRERI114

Contract 1114 - Shatin to Central Link| MTR
Project B
DHRBEENEIR1114
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Scheme

=t

Caring Construction Site Award
Scheme
[ B0 THb 17Tt El

The 12th Hong Kong
Occupational Safety & Health
Award
E+_EEEBELREEAR

Innovation Safety Initiative Award
2013
BB TRRLE#2013

Award
#18

Diamond Caring Award

BLEOKRE

Silver Award

Pointing and Calling Award
HREZ

HEEFEALE

Bronze Award (Enhancement of
Integrated Working Platform for
Panel Formwork)

42 (REHERAMETLE

&)
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Awardee
BEREE

SCL 1117 — Pat Heung Depot
Modification Works
DREAKIEIRIT -\ PBERIBET

2

SCL 1114 —Tsz Wan Shan Pedestrian
Links

DHREAENRTR1114 -EEILREITA
ERREEETRE

HEC Projects Division Contract:
Improvement Works at Lamma Power
Station

AR TIZERMAN -/ Bl E
T2

Hong Kong Housing Society Residential
cum Retirement Housing Development
(H21) at Shau Kei Wan Road / Nam On
Street, Shau Kei Wan
BEFENESE A LB AL
EEMRINEEER (H21)

HEC Projects Division Contract:
Improvement Works at Lamma Power
Station

BEIEERRAL -

MY ERRETLR

Sai Chuen Road Housing Development
Project

PR E # Rt 2

Organiser
EHEN

Occupational Safety
& Health Council /
Labour Department
BELDRER -
BTk

Occupational Safety &
Health Council
BEZ2HEER

Development Bureau /
Construction Industry
Council / Hong Kong
Construction
Association

BRR  EEERY
REBRERS



Scheme Award
5T &l #2185
Considerate Contractors Site Bronze Award
Awards Scheme 2012 ik
ANfEMEEEETETE] 2012
Merit Award
BELE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As one of the largest contractors in Hong Kong and an industry
leader, we are committed to promoting green building design that
is resource-efficient and environmentally-responsible throughout the
lifecycle of the building. We propose low-carbon initiatives right
from the beginning of the bidding process, and adopt systematic,
scientific processes during construction.

Pollution Control

Temporary noise barriers are an important feature af construction
sites fo resfrict and reduce noise nuisance caused to adjacent
communities, such as residential complexes, schools and hospitals.
We regularly monitor noise levels of the surrounding areas to avoid
this problem.

Steps have been taken to minimize Total Suspended Particulate
(TSP), Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC| and sulphur dioxide
emissions. All our diesel-powered machinery and vehicles now use
Ulira Low Sulphur Diesel [ULSD). Whenever possible, we adopt

ecorfriendly plants and machinery.

Awardee Organiser
BREMN EHEBEN

HEC Projects Division Contract:

A&A Works for Control Building

and Workshop and Miscellaneous
Improvement Works for LPS and LMX
MY BEERITHIREETIZHER
AN TR R AR E ThR

Development Bureau /
Construction Industry
Coundil

BRR  REXRES

Hong Kong Housing Society
Residential cum Retirement Housing
Development (H21) at Shau Kei Wan
Road / Nam On Street, Shau Kei Wan
ERFENSYE AL LE/mLE
FEERRAREEEE (H21)
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Green Office

Qur environmental philosophy is applicable to both our
construction processes and our daily office operations. We use
resources efficiently, reduce waste and encourage recycling. We
have implemented the following initiatives in our offices:

» Indoor temperature maintained af between 23°C-25°C.

» Plants infroduced fo improve IAQ Index in site offices and for
decorative purposes.

» Paper printed on one side is reused for printing, while paper
printed on both sides is recycled.

» Environmental protection, energy saving and green office
information displayed on the notice board for employees to
read.

» Solar energy heating systems used at some sites, if suitable.

ISO 50001 Certification

The Group places great emphasis on environmental protection.
We were among the first batch of consiruction companies to
receive 1ISO 50001 Energy Management Systems cerfification
from the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency. The 1ISO 50001
Energy Management System (EnMS] standard is a globally-
accepted framework for managing energy which could help o
reduce operation cosfs and improve environmental performance.

We have implemented the system through “planning,
implementation, monitoring and improvement” as specified by
ISO 50001 standard pracfice fo ensure effectiveness of the green
measures and facilifies.

Wise use of Natural Resources

To care for our Earth, we advise property developers fo use
materials that have a minimal negafive impact on the environment.
Our Purchasing Department has also taken important steps fo
source suitable recycled building materials.

Moreover, biodegradable products such as orange mesh and
warning fape are widely used on our sites, while ecouniforms
were used af our lamma lIsland sites.  Photovoliaic panels are
installed to provide energy for electrical signage boards, flashing
and beacon lamps, mosquitokilling devices and water-heating

systems.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

We are keenly aware of our responsibilities to the community,
whose support over the years has been an invaluable source of
encouragement. In meeting our social duty as good corporate
citizens, we endeavor to give back to society by means of our
community commitment inifiatives in four key areas: education,

charity, sporfs sponsorship and community service.

Education

We believe in the importance of providing support and
encouragement to the new generation. Thus we organized a
variety of activities including career talks, site visits and fraining
seminars for young people who have an interest in building a
career in the industry.

The Group also sponsored education funds in both Hong Kong
and mainland China, including the “Bless Hong Kong Campaign:
Future Stars Programme — Upward Mobility Scholarship” and the “Friends
of Hope Education Fund-in Scholarship” projects. Both of these
initiatives encourage youths in Hong Kong and mainland China to
plan their future, and reward students who demonstrate resilience
in the face of adversity.

Donating to Charity

During the year, we made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$668,000 to support community welfare,
environmental protection and healthcare initiatives.

In oddition, our staff participated in o number of charitable
events including the MTR Race Walking to raise funds for disease
prevention and health education projects of the Hong Kong
Hospitals Authority. We also participated in the Corporate &
Employee Contribution Programme organised by the Community
Chest of Hong Kong. As every dollar makes a difference, these
efforts deliver hope and happiness fo people in need.

Sports Sponsorship

We actively promoted domestic sports during the vyear. The
Group officially sponsored the Hong Kong Rugby Football
Union's domestic league, promoting the exhilarating and healthy
sport fo the public. The Paul Y. Domestic league 2013/14 was
successfully completed in May 2014. A iofal of over 3,000
people enjoyed the games free of charge.
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Community Service

Many of our staff members are keen volunteers in the community.
The PYE's volunteer team has expanded considerably since its
humble beginnings in 2012. Today, it numbers over 45 members,
comprising employees and their families, and is steadily growing.
Volunteers donate their time to benefit a range of causes, from
assisting the elderly and youth, to helping children from grass-roots
families.

During the year, the team participated in a number of
environmental and community acfivities, including the Coasfal
Cleanup Trip on lamma Island and the Mother's and Father's Day
Party, both of which were meaningful and enjoyable. We will
continue to look for ways to interact with and benefit the wider
community.

Awards

Last year, we were awarded the Caring Company logo by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service, for the fourth consecutive
year. This year, for the first time, the Group received the Partner
Employer Award presented by The Hong Kong General Chamber
of Small and Medium Business and the Vocational Training
Council. These awards show that our contribution fo the community,
staff welfare and environmental protection are well recognised.
They serve fo renew our commitment fo our CSR practices.
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Directors' Report
ESRWmEE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of Louis Xlll Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred fo as the “Group”)

for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of ifs principal subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures
and joint operations at 31 March 2014 are set out in nofe 45 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CHANGE OF NAME

Special resolution was passed by the shareholders of the
Company at a special general meeting of the Company held on
3 April 2013 to change the name of the Company from “Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited” to “louis Xl Holdings Llimited” and
adopt "B HT=KBBERAF]" as the Company's Chinese name
in place of "REEEEEARAT" for identification purpose.
The change of name took effect on 3 April 2013.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
95 of the annual report and in the accompanying notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the five largest customers
and the single largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 79% and 27% of the turnover of the Group,
respectively. The five largest suppliers and the single largest
suppliers of the Group during the year accounted for approximately
37% and 27% of the purchases of the Group, respectively.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors, their
associates, within the meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’) (the “Listing Rules”), or those shareholders
which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company's share capital have an interest in any of the five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers of the Group for the year

ended 31 March 2014.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to
meet its working capital requirements. At 31 March 2014,
the Group's total bank borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$443,544,000 with approximately HK$440,926,000
repayable within one vyear, approximately HK$2,618,000
repayable between one to two years. In addition, the Group
also has outstanding convertible bonds with a face value of
HK$1,463,242,350 and a liability component as at 31 March
2014 of HK$239,721,000. The convertible bonds mature in
February 2025. Cash, bank balances and deposits af 31 March
2014 amounted to approximately HK$2,054,959,000. The
Group's current ratio was approximately 1.3 and the Group's fofal
borrowings to equity ratio was approximately 0.2 at 31 March
2014.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$6 1,544,000
on property, plant and equipment for the purpose of expanding ifs
business.

In addition, the Group spent approximately HK$736,145,000 for
the hotel under development erected on the Cotai Strip in Macau.

Details of these and other movements in the hotel under
development, property, plant and equipment and prepaid lond
lease payments of the Group during the year are set ouf in

notes 14, 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

’

respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 8 November 2013, the Company entered info a placing
agreement with certain placing agenfs pursuant fo which the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and the
placing agents have conditionally agreed, on a best efforts
basis, severally and not jointly nor jointly and severally with the
other placing agent, to procure placees to subscribe for, up to
72,070,500 placing shares at a placing price of HK$8.23 each
under generate mandate (the “Generate Mandate Placing”) and
17,172,000 placing shares at a placing price of HK$8.23 each

under specific mandate (the “Specific Mandate Placing”).

The General Mandate Placing and the Specific Mandate Placing
were completed on 15 November 2013 and 16 December
2013 respectively and a fotal of 89,242,500 placing shares
were issued at a placing price of HK$8.23. All the shares issued
by the Company ranked pari passu with the then existing shares of
the Company in all respects.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option schemes and details of movements
in the share options of the Company and Falloncroft Investments
Limited ("Falloncroft”) during the year are set out in note 32 fo the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as af 31 March 2014 comprised the refained profits of
HK$13,491,000 (2013: HK$44,384,000) and contributed
surplus of HK$35,497,000 (2013: HK$35,497,000).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors

Stephen Hung (Joint Chairman)

Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Joint Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman)
Walter Craig Power (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive directors

James Chiu, OBE, Jp

Llee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP
lain Ferguson Bruce

Francis Goutenmacher

In accordance with Byelaws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Byelaws, Mr Pefer Lee Coker Jr., Mr Walter Craig Power and Ir
James Chiu, retire by rofation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. All refiring directors, being eligible, offer themselves for
reelection af the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term of
approximately three years, and they are subject to refirement by
rofation under the Company’s Byelaws.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re<election at the forthcoming
annual general meefing has a service confract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than sfafutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

EERRO - HERORESZZ

At 31 March 2014, the inferests and short positions of the directors  RZZ—MF=A=+—H ARAEEREFZTERA
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying — BRAA RIS EAARESEE (B & B EF KBS KA ([#F

# METE RG] ]) EXVER) 2 Betn $H|%§H%ﬁ&1$%':ﬁﬁﬁ
REZBSFRBEGRAEI2EEFTEREARTZLMA
ZHBNKR  RBELETRAZ ETA ﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁ;
FR G2 EBETA([FEFR]) MASTHEAR
BRI R ROARIAT

shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation [within the meaning of Part XV of the Securifies and
Futures Ordinance [the "SFO")), as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise nofified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers [the “Model Code”) in the Listing Rules
were as follows:

Inferests in shares and underlying shares of the AR BN R AR IR D 2 =
Company
Number of
underlying shares
(in respect of Number of
the share options shares and Approximate
Number of (unlisted equity underlying percentage of
sharesofthe  derivatives)) of the shares of the shareholding
Name of director Capacity Long position Company held Company held Company held of the Company
FRAAH
ARBREL
(FEWRA
FRART fT£18) Fs AR RRG fEARARE
EEpg &t i RG8E RERGHA REBRGEE ZBHEDL
(Note)
(fi3E)
Stephen Hung Beneficial owner long position - 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.80%
HoKE EREAA i)
Peter Lee Coker r. Beneficial owner long position 5,698,600 3,600,000 9,298,600 2.07%
ERERA e
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Beneficial owner Long position - 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.80%
Y ERfEA e
Wialter Craig Power Beneficial owner long position - 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.80%
ERERA #e
James Chiy Beneficial owner Long posifion - 360,000 360,000 0.08%
bz EREAA )
lee Chack Fan Beneficial owner long position - 360,000 360,000 0.08%
Tl ERERA e
lain Ferguson Bruce Beneficial owner Long position 81,711 360,000 441711 0.10%
ik-Sn ERERA i)
Francis Goutenmacher Beneficial owner long position - 360,000 360,000 0.08%
ERBERA #a
B r=smERAR 201458 /3
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Note: The share options were granted to Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Petfer lee
Coker Jr., Mr lou Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr Walter Craig Power, Ir James
Chiu, Professor lee Chack Fan, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce and Mr Francis
Goutenmacher on 12 July 2013 under the share option scheme [the “Share
Option Scheme”) of the Company adopted on 7 September 2005
and entitle each of them to subscribe for shares of the Company upon
exercise af an exercise price of HK$6.80 per share. The share options
shall vest in 3 tranches, as fo onethird on 12 July 2013, as to a further
onethird upon topping out of the hotel under development in Cotai,
Macau and as fo the final onehird upon opening of the hotel under
development in Cotai, Macau. The share options are exercisable from
the dafes on which the share options are vested until 11 July 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2014, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation [within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
nofified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant fo the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

(i)

Share option scheme

Defails of movements in the share opfions of the Company

granfed under the Share Option Scheme during the year

ended 31 March 2014 are as follows:

BARDSGEER ZZH

ARt S

ARARBE_Z—NF=A=+—RHLEFER
BRREASROCBREESH ZFBWT

Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share opfions Company's
REREEFEARAARBTZROHE shares
Outstanding Granted  Re-clossified ~ Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date at during during at pricc  beforedate Exercise
Name of grantee of grant 1.4.2013 the year theyear  31.3.2014 per share of grant period
R=-%-=F R=F-mE RERI
MA-H £ =A=t-A RAAALE
ERALE Rt BH AT FRERL ENDE WATHE BROEE ROUSE i
Directors
g3
Stephen Hung 12.7.2013 - 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
HokRs “T-ZFtAtCH id
Pefer Lee Coker . 12.72013 - 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Noe 1
“T-ZHtATCH Wi
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 12.7.2013 - 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
sk “ET-=ftAtCH (i
Walter Craig Power 12.7.2013 - 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
ZE-ZE+ATCH liEd
Jomes Chiu 12.7.2013 - 360,000 - 360,000 6.80 645 Note 1
BES “T-ZFtAtCH lid
lee Chack Fan 12.7.2013 - 360,000 - 360,000 6.80 6.45 Noe 1
FER ZE-ZELATCH i
loin Ferguson Bruce 12.7.2013 - 360,000 - 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
LiL-Sn “E-ZftAtCH i
Francis Goutenmacher 12.7.2013 - 360,000 - 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
“F-ZFtAfCA il
Sub Total - 15,840,000 15,840,000
It
BHT=EMARAT 20145% /)
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) Share option scheme (Continued)

BARDRNERER 225 (&)

i) FBEhAEsrEl (8)

Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share options Company's
RERBEAERAAARBAZROYE shares
Outstanding Granted  Re-classified  Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date at during during at price  before date Exercise
Name of grantee of grant 1.4.2013 the year theyear  31.3.2014 per share of grant period
R-B-=% RZE-RE SRR
mA-H fm =ZA=t-8H ARARLATE
ARARE RiAH R AT ERR X b WATE SROEE ROKTE Gg:d
Employees (In aggregate)
E& (&3t
12.7.2013 - 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note |
“T-ZEtA+tCH iRdl
1272013 - 800,000 (400,000) 400,000 6.80 6.45 Note 3
“E-ZF+At-H (Note 2) B3
(2)
12.7.2013 - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 6.80 6.45 Note 4
“T-ZHtATCH 4
12.7.2013 - 1,160,000 - 1,160,000 6.80 6.45 Note 5
ZE-ZHtATCH BtiE5
12.7.2013 - 1,150,000 - 1,150,000 6.80 6.45 Note 6
“Z-Z#tRTCH HizE6
1272013 - 400,000 - 400,000 6.80 6.45 Note 7
“T-ZEtAtCH Hizt7
1272013 - - 138,000 138,000 6.80 645 127201410
ZE-ZELATCH (Note 8) 11.7.2017
(Fr528) —T-mE
tA+ZHZ
3
tA+-8
30.9.2013 - 985,000 - 985,000 6.90 6.89 Note 9
ZE-ZFNAZTH ftio
15.10.2013 - 289,000 - 289,000 8.10 7.23 Note 10
“Z-ZETAtER fiti10
Sub Total - 9,584,000 (262,0000 9,322,000
INEF
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SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) Share option scheme (Continued) () BBRHEETEl(8)

Number of shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the share options

RERERTEAADARRTZRHEA

Closing
price of the
Company's
shares

Outstanding Granted  Re-classified  Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date at during during at pricc before date Exercise
Name of grantee of grant 1.4.2013 the year theyear  31.3.2014 per share of grant period
R-B-ZF R-B-mE REEH
mA-H R =ZA=t-BH ABAALT
ARARE RiAH R ATE ERRM ENDE WATE SROEE ROKTE O
Other Parficipates (In aggregate) 12.7.2013 - - 400,000 400,000 6.80 6.45 Note 3
At B8E (3 “T-ZEtATCH (Note 2| L3
(Frz2)
12.7.2013 - 150,000 (138,000) 12,000 6.80 645 127201410
E-ZELATCH (Note 8) 11.7.2017
(F528) —E-mE
tA+ZR%
“ER-LF
tAt+-A
12.7.2013 - 1,270,000 - 1,270,000 6.80 6.45 Note 4
W= 2}
12.7.2013 - 450,000 - 450,000 6.80 6.45 Note 5
“E-ZELAtCR HiEES
12.72013 - 60,000 - 60,000 6.80 6.45 Note 7
“T-ZEtATCH ftst7
12.7.2013 - 260,000 - 260,000 6.80 6.45 Note 11
“E-ZftAtCR il
28.3.2014 - 112,000 - 112,000 8.592 8.2/ Note 12
—E-ME=A=-1+)R MizE12
Sub Total - 2,302,000 262000 2,564,000
It
Tolal - 27,726,000 - 27,726,000
&3t
BHt=sEaRAT 20145% /]
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE BARDERR 2L H (&)
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) Share option scheme (Continued) () BEBRLHEETEl(8)

Notes: Hiat -

1. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to onethird on 12 1. BRES =5 =N ZBRER T —=F
July 2013, as to a further one+hird upon fopping out of the hotel tA+=HEE - 7357\‘5’7_7‘ Zﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁ(‘@ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ
under development in Cotai, Macau and as fo the final one-hird BEBZOEHERRE  RE =5 — 2BRIER
upon opening of the hotel under development in Cotai, Macau. BERABERT ZBEHASSSRE - BREAER
The share opfions are exercisable from the dates on which the EERBZARE-_T—tFLtAt+—BHR(E
share options are vested until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive]. HEEERMK)A FITE -

2. A grantee was reclassified from the category of “Employees” to “Other 2. EEREABIMEE |EHHEAIHM2EE | 2R -

Participates”.

3. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to onethird on 12 3. BREIN=HEE =0 2BREXR-_T-—NOF
Jul 2014, as to a further onethird on 12 July 2015 and as fo the tA+=-HEE - ;':WE%*Z%HQTEBA_E ﬂ
final one+hird on 12 July 2016. The share options are exercisable F+A+_BEB =n—ZERBERZ
from the dates on which the share options are vested until 11 July —RNF+tA+=H ?E ° E%HXFEELL SER Hﬂi_
2017 (both dates inclusive). E_Z—+tFLtA+—BHE(BEEERMAK) A

FITME -

4. The share options shall vest in 8 tranches, as to 10%, 15%, 15%, 4. BARES \HEB - 10%15%15% - 15%
15%, 10%, 10%, 15% and 10% on 31 May 2013, 31 August 10% ~ 10% ~ 15%R10%2 ERES IR T —=
2013, 30 September 2013, 1 April 2014, 30 September FRA=+—8" _i__ﬁ/\ﬂ +—B8 ==
2014, 31 January 2016, 31 March 2016 and 31 December —=FhA=+AH" —mHFEPMA—R/ =%
2016 respectively, subject to the fulfilment of cerfain vesting —HFENA=FH _g NFE—A=+—H8 =
conditions. The share opfions are exercisable for 18 months from E-RE=ZAEFT—BRZZE-RE+ZRA=+—
the dates on which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but in HRE MHEFERETHEKRE - BREagseT
any event, exercisable unfil 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive). BB EEKR BHEI18E A RA FITE -

HEEROAR T —tFLA+—BZA(BEE
BMXR) A FITE -

5. The share options shall vest in 7 tranches, as to 15%, 15%, 15%, 5. BRESEHEB - 15%15%15% 15%
15%, 15%, 15% and 10% on 31 August 2013, 1 April 2014, 15% - 15%R%10%2 BERES IR =_F—=FN\A
31 December 2014, 31 March 2015, 31 January 2016, 31 =t—H -—Z2— IEEV_EUE] H —ZT— @¢+,
March 2016 and 31 December 2016 respectively, subject to A=+—8" ﬁﬁ A=+—H ZZ—R~
fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The share options are F-A=+— E Z-RE=A=+— EI ;ZZF
exercisable for 18 months from the dates on which certain vesting —~F+=A ,—!' AR WEHRENETHR
conditions are fulfilled, but in any event, exercisable unfil 11 July B - EREETEBKEEER Y BEEE
2017 (both dates inclusive). 18 AAA FITHE  EERUMA T —EF+

R+—HZA(BEERMXK) Al F17# -

6. The share options shall vest in 4 tranches, as to 25%, 25%, 6. BREDOBEE  25% - 25%  25%K%25%2 B
25% and 25% on 31 August 2013, 1 April 2014, 31 August BEASFINR_ZB—=FNR=+—H ZZ—NF
2014 and 31 January 2016 respectively, subject to fulfilment of MA—H  ZT—WFNA=Z+—HRZZT—KRF
certain vesting conditions. The share options are exercisable for —A=t—HEBB EEFERETHRBEKRMS - B
18 months from the dates on which certain vesting conditions are RiEEETHB G EN BERF18EAR
fulfilled, but in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both T EERONAR - E—+ELA+—H2
dates inclusive). AT (BEEREMK) o] 17 -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i)

Share option scheme (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

7. The share options shall vest in 3 franches, as to 30%, 30%
and 40% on 31 May 2013, 31 December 2014 and 31
March 2016 respectively, subject fo fulfilment of certain vesting
conditions. The share options are exercisable for 18 months from
the dates on which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but in
any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 [both dates inclusive).

8. A grantee was reclassified from the category of “Other
Participants” fo “Employees”.

Q. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-hird on 30
September 2014, as to a further onethird on 30 Sepfember
2015 and as to the final one+hird on 30 September 2016. The
share options are exercisable from aforesaid vesting dates until
29 September 2017 (both dates inclusive).

10.  The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to onehird on 15
October 2014, as to a further onethird on 15 October 2015
and as fo the final onethird on 15 October 2016. The share
options are exercisable from aforesaid vesting dates until 14

October 2017 (both dates inclusive).

11.  The share options shall vest in 2 tranches, as to 75% and 25% on
15 January 2014 and 31 December 2015 respectively, subject
fo certain vesting conditions. The share options are exercisable
for 18 months from the dates on which certain vesfing conditions
are fulfilled, but in any events, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both
dates inclusivel.

12. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to onethird on 28
March 2015, as fo a further onethird on 28 March 2016 and
as fo the final one-hird on 28 March 2017. The share options
are exercisable from aforesaid vesting dates until 27 March
2018 (both dates inclusive).

No share options of the Company were exercised, cancelled
or lapsed during the year.

Particulars of share option scheme of the Company are set
out in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

BARDSERER 223 ()

s (&)
Bk ()

7. B ED =B 5E B - 30% ~ 30%M40% 2 BE i #E 5o
%Mfg—:ﬁﬁﬂ_+ H-ZZT—WmF+=A
=t+—BAR-E-XRF=ZA=+-HRE KEF
ERE THBIENG - BRESE THBIKGEER
Z BERFISEARNA FITE - ERUAKR=
T—tFLAT—AZA(BREEEMX) AT FITE -

8. EEAHIEMZEZ|ESHOBLIES|ZER -

9. BEE/N=HER =/ ZBRENR_T-NF
NA=Z+EHRE  2Hh=5—2BERER_ZT—1
FAAZTHRE RE=Z0 - ZBEREN_-F
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E-F-EFAATNABHER(BEERMK)
A FITEE

10, BEES=HEE =5 2BRER-_T—HF
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=AZ+NEBE- 7357\\:9 ZIBREN =
—RNFZAZT+N\BHRE RE=5—ZBRER

—tF=A :'f'/\E'EﬁE cBEEE LA RE
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EERHBESE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Continued)

i)

(i)

Share award scheme

This scheme, which was adopted by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows the Company fo make bonus
payments fo eligible persons (including employees, direcfors,
consuliants, advisers and agents of the Group) by way of
the Company's shares acquired by and held through an
independent trustee until fulfilment of specified conditions
before vesting.

During the year, 588,500 shares and HK$6,000,000
value of shares were awarded fo 2 consultants respectively
under this scheme. A total of 332,500 shares were vested
during the year.

None of the direcfors of the Company were awarded any of
the Company’s shares under this share award scheme during

the year or at 31 March 2014.

Particulars of share award scheme of the Company are sef
out in note 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Share financing plan

This plan, which was adopted by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows eligible persons [including
employees, directors, consultants, advisers and agents of
the Group) fo borrow funds from the Company or from a
company within the Group fo acquire new or old shares
of the Company on a non-recourse basis with the subject
shares pledged to the Company as security subject always
fo connected fransaction and other relevant provisions under
the Listing Rules.

None of the directors of the Company acquired any of the
Compoany's shares under this share financing plan during the

year or at 31 March 2014.
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BALRKE BEEEENRBHRMEKRAL -

F N 588,5008% F6,000,000/ T2 Ik EEE
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Continued)

(iv] Share option scheme of Falloncroft

On 5 February 2013, prior to the completion of the
acquisition of the entire issued share capifal of Falloncroft
(as described in a circular of the Company dated 5 January
2013), Falloncroft adopted a share option scheme and
granted options that would, for a subscription and capital
contribution, in cash, of up to HK$600,000,000, entitle
Chief Wise Llimited ("Chief Wise"), an offiliate of Mr
Stephen Hung (joint chairman and the executive director of
the Company), to subscribe for 600,000,000 number of the
shares of Falloncroft. Chief Wise may assign these options
to the management of Falloncroft as it sees fit.

Holders of the options subscribing for shares of Falloncroft,
on exercise of the opfions, have the right to require the
Compoany fo purchase their respective holdings of the shares
of Falloncroft in exchange for an allotment and issue of new
ordinary shares of the Company.

Particulars of share option scheme of Falloncroft are set out
in note 32(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding company or any
subsidiaries of the Company’s holding company, a party to
any arrangements o enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors, chief execufives or their
spouse or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights
during the year.

BARDSERER 223 ()

liv)] Falloncroftz B R # 512!

RZZE—=F=ZAAH ' REKIKEEFalloncroft
2HEETRAN (FRARAIBHAZST —=F
—ARABZBEKET) B - Falloncroftif 49 7 & A% 1
BT ETERE FRUABESRBALEERS
600,000,0007% 7t B il F Chief Wise Limited ([ Chief
Wise] * ZNA R 2 B FE X B FNITE FHOKEL A
2 Bt B A R)) R EE600,000,0008%Falloncrofti& 15 2
HEH o Chief Wise I 1z R BIE & 15 S8R ETE
& TFalloncroftz B E -

A A B A AR HE 7T (3 B SR BB Falloncroftfi {7 7 BB A% i 45
BABRERERAQAGEE KSR B ATE ZFalloncroft
JEAD + AR IAEREE R B 1T AN R T L mAR o

B BaFalloncroff i 2 F 15 M in & MBS R MY 5t
32(c) °
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Directors' Report
EERHBESE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING EEZEREXRFFEBE 2R
BUSINESSES

None of the directors of the Company is interested in any business ~FRFR-ZT—MHFE=A=+—H ' WA AEEED
apart from the Group's businesses which competes or is likely o ANAREBREARNEEEEEELREZEX B F A8
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the — R F 2 EMEHF - BIEHES FREE -

Group during the year or at 31 March 2014.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS EERE RSN ZHEZR
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing B TX[#HEBERS|—EHEREN ARASESHE
Connected Transactions” below, no contracts of significance to 482 R sk A E AR A Rk R R W B A 7] sk Ki B A Al R
which the Company or any of its holding companies or fellow AFEHERARFANEARMI VT EZENPHER
subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a direcfor of sk H A E AR °

the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted af the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Cerfain related party transactions as disclosed in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements also consfituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, defails of which are set out below. The Company
has complied with the relevant requirements in accordance with

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

() On 25 March 2011, the Company and PYI Corporation
Limited ("PY!"), a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Company, enfered into a conditional business services
agreement (the “PY| Business Services Agreement’) for the
period from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2014 with the
annual cap amounts of HK$200 million, HK$300 million
and HK$500 million for the financial years ended 31 March
2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively. The entering info of
the PYI Business Services Agreement consfituted a continuing
connecfed fransaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these were set out in the

circular of the Company dated 18 April 2011.

WMINARE MR FLA2FT KRR - ETHEALZ ST
BRETRAUBIAZETARARZHEBRER S - H&F
BN T - AATIDET ETHRRIE1IATE 2T ©

) MZE——F=FZ+FHB AQFEKRRQF M
BARIEEZRRREEBERAA ([RE]) FTL
ElRHEEBREmE ((REXBRSEHZE] -
FHA-ZT——FMNA—RE-Z—WOF=A
=+—B HEZZ—Z—F - ZZ—=ZFk=
T—NF=ZA=+T—ALVBFEZFELR
7 7 £200,000,0007% 7t + 300,000,000/% Tt &
500,000,000 Tt © sT M ARZEZE K RIS HE B L
MHRAELAAZETARRIZBEBER S - R P
BHERARGBEHRA-Z——FMHAT+N\BZEX -

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group entered HE-_Z-—NF=ZA=+—HILFE  AEEHHER
info the following transactions with subsidiaries of PYI: ENBRARFILATRS :
Name of party Nature of transactions Amount
REFTEHE REMHE &
HK$' 000
TATT
PY| Xingdong Properties (Jiangsu) Inferest charged by the Group 2,187
Limited ("PY! Xingdong” NS B U ER A B
REFRE X (L) BRAF
(MREER])
PYI Management Limited Interest charged fo the Group 2,350

["PYI Management” )

AEENFE

PYI Xingdong and PYl Management are associates, within
the meaning of the listing Rules, of PYl. Mr lau Ko Yuen,
Tom, a director of the Company, is also a director of PYI.

{RZE B K PYI Management BIRE 2 BB A+ (GE
FREMRA) - ARABREFESREENBRE
BEE-
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EERHBESE

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i)

On 24 April 2013, the Company and [TC Properties
Holdings Group Limited, a direct wholly owned subsidiary
of ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITC Properties”, fogether
with ifs subsidiaries, the “ITC Properties Group”] entered
info a conditional business services agreement (the “ITCP
Business Services Agreement’) for the period from 1 April
2014 to 31 March 2016 with the annual cap amounts of
HK$500 million, HK$ 1,900 million and HK$2,9200 million
for the financial years ended/ending 31 March 2014,
2015 and 2016, respectively. ITC Properties is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The entering info of the
ITCP Business Services Agreement constituted a continuing
connected fransaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these were set out in the
circular of the Company dated 8 May 2013.

During the year ended 31 March 2014,

enfered info the following transactions with subsidiaries of

the  Group

ITC Properties and or entities jointly controlled by the ITC
Properties Group:

FEBREXS (&)

(i)

RZZE-—Z=ZFWOAB=-+WA  ARQARKITC
Properties Holdings Group Limited (128 b = &< [ 5 R
ARA([EEFWE] EREWBERR - AHE[1EF
WESE]) CEELEWBRR) AT LB KRIFED
Mm% ([MCPEBRBHZ]) - FHE —T
FHA—HE_Z-—RF=ZA=+—HAIL BZE
ZE-NF - ZF-RAFRITAF=A=1—
HIEFBEE 2 FE ERSE S R A500,000,000
T~ 1,900,000,000% 7T K2,900,000,000/%
TC o RFFMETIARR Z EEMIR o IRIE LR A
EV4AE - FTZITCPEE RIS H BB AR B ZH5
BUEERD - BAFBHENARRBERR T —=
FRANBZBK -

BE-_ZT-—MEF-A=+—HILFER FEEH
BHBEZMBAR R R EFHESELRE
W2 EBITINTRS

Name of party Nature of transactions Amount
RBHER REME &8
HK$' 000
FHET
Castle Win International Limited Construction works charged 18,280
("Castle Win") by the Group
WEBEEBR AT (THED REBEBKDMELHNTIEE
Keen Step Corporation Limited Construction works charged 25,560
["Keen Step”) by the Group
BERERAF([ER]) AEBKBELHITESE
Fortress Jet International Limited, Construction works charged 51,409
Pine Cheer Limited and by the Group
Sino Able Investments Limited REBWMEHTIEE
(Collectively referred to as “|Vs
of the ITC Properties Group)
BB ER QA -~ Pine Cheer Limited &
Sino Able Investments Limited
(G EFEEB 22D
05,249
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Castle Win, Keen Step and JVs of the ITC Properties Group
are associates, within the meaning of the Listing Rules, of ITC
Properties, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The Company's audifor was engaged fo report on the
Croup's confinuing connected fransactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 "Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
and  with
"Auditor’s Lefter on

Reviews of Hisforical Financial Information”
reference to Practice Note 740
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The auditor of the Company has reported their conclusion on
these procedures to the board of directors of the Company.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected
fransactions as set out above have been entered info:

[i)  in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

li)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or
from, as appropriate, from independent third parties;
and

i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company, as a
whole.

SERERS (&)

(i)

(&)

WE - R M EENESE AL ERAR
%%%%ﬁiﬁzézwﬁﬁéki(m%ﬁtm%ﬁﬂﬂ) °

ARBZHEEREBEGFMAGRM2ER
%8 TEERIFE 30005 [ FEx R ERE L M EH
N2 2B TR R 2 REBHAE7A05 [N E
B ETRRIPTRFFE R ER 5 2 AT i | RS
BREAEBEZHBERERS - RBEICRE LR
AIEV4AASBIRB L EMRE B R i BEPHEZ
BEMEERLARBIRERERGZ2HELER
K fhim o AR B F A BN K A B A X 2 BB XL
Ffr o

ARRZBEMESZSREFIERAARAES
BRE - NRAREBBUIIFNTEFC RN LEXH
FIZHERER DA ERUMER ST

) MAEEBEBER—RESBENE
i)  RIEFEEEGER  TBERAAE s (1

ER)BUE - A REZIGRET &

i) EREBEBRIZ2HHET HERAELRFE
A1 HARRGIRE 2 BEEF -
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EERHBESE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF 181558 > & Hi j‘f{l,%{ﬁlj%f}(}é{lﬁ%}?%
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER &Mtz < T ERE
PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER Hftt A+t v #EmKRE

§II:E(P)T UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

R-ZZE-—NF=ZA=1T—HB RARAEERITETH
ABFTE - RIBES RBE GO EIBORFEZ AR A
BrMmmase TB2RR T HE ALTRARR ZKkH
kD 2 ERIORBNT

At 31 March 2014, so far as is known to the directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the subsfantial shareholders/other persons in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the (o) EFERERARAIRD REBKR D
shares and underlying shares of the Company 2R
Number of Total number
underlying shares of shares Approximate
Numberof ~ (unlistedequity ~  and underlying percentage of
Long share of the derivatives) of shares of the shareholding
Name of shareholder Capacity position Company held  the Company held Company held  of the Company
i E N
HER A i E N
e NN (FLHRA B RAEH RN FRE
BREAH L #E RGBE  HTEIR)EE REBEE ZBRERN
Ontario Teachers' Beneficial owner long position - 190,261,793 190,261,793 42.32%
Pension Plan Board ExBEA e
(RRBHAEKE
BEESE)
Sean Hung Interest of confrolled long position 60,478,000 88,235,294 148,713,294 33.08%
HER corporation [Nofes 1 & 2) H#E
INREHAB s
(Hi#1k%2)
SHung limited Interest of confrolled long position 60,478,000 88,235,294 148,713,294 33.08%
corporation [Nofes 1 & 2) HE
WEEHZE BR
(Hiz1%2)
| Hung Limited Interest of controlled long position 60,478,000 88,235,294 148,713,294 33.08%
corporation (Nofes 1 & 2) e
WEEHZE BR
(Hiz1%2)
Chief Wise Limited Beneficial owner [Note 1) long position - 88,235,294 88,235,204 19.63%
(“Chief Wise"| ExfigAlil) e
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF  R1E 5% 25 K BR & % 4l %‘336{@,‘}?%
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER 2 oMt ik s TERR
PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER EHM A+t 2EZ R RA (48)
KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE
SFO (Continued)
(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the (o) EERENAR ARG XEBRKR S
shares and underlying shares of the Company RS (8E)
(Continued)
Number of Total number
underlying shares of shares Approximate
Numberof ~(unlistedequity ~ and underlying percentage of
Long share of the derivatives) of shares of the shareholding
Name of shareholder Capacity position Company held  the Company held Companyheld  of the Company
AR
HER A FEALR
FEALR (FLHRA B4 RAEE EARDFRAE
BREAMR L #E RABE  HTEIR)EE AR ZBRERN
Pride Wisdom Group limited ~ Beneficial owner (Note 2) long position 60,478,000 - 60,478,000 13.45%
"Pride Wisdom") ERBEANZ2) e
Janus Capital Investment manager long position 45,961,800 - 45,961,800 10.22%
Management LLC RELE e
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled long position 46,485,200 - 46,485,200 10.34%
Charles “Dr. Chan”| corporation (Nofe 3] e
RES ([RELT]) WREHEE R
(H523)
Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse [Nofe 3) long position 46,485,200 - 46,485,200 10.34%
("Ms.Ng"| B BiEes (M13) e
s (Mhxt])
ITC Properties Interest of controlled long position 46,485,200 - 46,485,200 10.34%
BEME corporation (Note 3] e
WREHEE ER
(Hz3)
ITC Properties Interest of controlled long position 46,485,200 - 46,485,200 10.34%
Management Group corporation (Nofe 3] e
Limited (ITC Properties REEREE 2 R
Management”| (Hi23)
Advance Tech Limited Beneficial owner [Note 3] long position 46,485,200 - 46,485,200 10.34%
("Advance Tech”) ERBHAMZS) e
BEEBR DA ([RHE])
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EERHBESE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS /OTHER
PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER
KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE
SFO (Continued)

(a)

Inferests of substantial shareholders in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company

(Continued)

Notes:

Chief Wise was jointly owned by S Hung Limited and | Hung
Limited, which were wholly owned by Mr Sean Hung. S Hung
Limited, | Hung Limited and Mr Sean Hung were deemed to
be interested in the 88,235,294 shares to be issued by the
Company by way of exchange for shares in Falloncroft.

Pride Wisdom was jointly owned by S Hung Llimited and | Hung
Limited, which were wholly owned by Mr Sean Hung. S Hung
Limited and | Hung Limited and Mr Sean Hung were deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by Pride Wisdom

Advance Tech was a wholly owned subsidiary of ITC Properties
Management which was in turn a wholly owned subsidiary of ITC
Properties. The issued shares of ITC Properties were directly held
as fo approximately 30.74% and 0.88% by Selective Choice
Investments Limited (“Selective Choice”) and Dr Chan respectively.
Selective Choice is a wholly owned subsidiary of ITC Investment
Holdings Limited (“ITC Investment’) which in furn was wholly
owned by ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC"). Dr Chan was the
controlling shareholder of ITC. Ms Ng, the spouse of Dr Chan,
indirectly held approximately 20.58% interest in issued shares
of ITC Properties. ITC Properties Management, ITC Properties,
Dr. Chan and Ms Ng were deemed fo be interested in the shares
of the Company held by Advance Tech.
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Chief WisefaS Hung Limited &I Hung Limited $% [&] #
B MzmERRREEEE2ERESR S Hung
Limited | Hung Limited &2 £ 2 12 5 &£ 9 #18 B R
R A A B R #Falloncroft’ 7 M #% 3 F 817 2
88,235,204 Bk 5 E B e o

Pride WisdomF S Hung Limited &I Hung Limited 2k [&] #&
B MzmERARREEEEL2ERH - SHung
Limited ~ | Hung Limited 2 361248 5& A 9 3848 R 7 Pride
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RHE B R A R AITC Properties ManagementZ % & it
B A7) - MITC Properties Management /& & # i & 2
2EWMB AT - BEFMEZEETRN HASelective
Choice Investments Limited ([ Selective Choice 1) K& &
8+ 5 Bl #E A #930.74%%0.88% © Selective Choice
AITC Investment Holdings Limited ([ ITC Investment |)
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RIRBERTF 2 AR AR h R e



INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS /OTHER
PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER

KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

SFO (Continued)

N
ﬁnuk\éﬁ
Epee iy

\‘}\ﬂ-ﬂ'l_\[‘
RANS%

(b) Interests of other persons in shares and (b) HAh ATHARAIRD LEEKR D
underlying shares of the Company kR
Approximate
Long position/ Number of shares/ percentage of
short position/ underlying shares shareholding of
Name of person Capacity lending pool of the Company held Total  of the Company
#R/ KR/ s RRRRYE EARDARE
BRREH ) TR 5 HERAEE st ZBAESL
Deutsche Bank Person who setup a Long position 44,548,100 44,841,600 9.97%
Aktiengesellschaft discrefionary frust HE
("Deutsche Bank") RUPREETIAL
(MEEERT))
Person having a Long position 193,500
securlly interest e
in shares
NGkl 2R iR
BmzAT
Beneficial owner long position 50,000
BB e
Interest of confrolled Long position 50,000
corporation e
WREHER 2 #5
Deutsche Bank Beneficial owner Short position 50,000 100,000 0.02%
BEEERT EREAA e
Inferest of controlled Short posifion 50,000
corporation
WREFER 2 B R
Deutsche Bank Custodian corporation/ lending pool 44,548,100 44,548,100 9.91%
BEERYT approved lending agent Al AR

EERE/ AR

e

B t=5BHRAA
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EERHBESE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF 1§
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER =~
PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER H
KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

SFO (Continued)

(b) Interests of other persons in shares and (b)
underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

BESRBS
5o i B a0 8%
At 2R

BlZE336IRIFE
KE (4)

A AL RAR TR RARBIRR 5

2w (58)

Approximate
Long position/ Number of shares/ percentage of
short position/ underlying shares shareholding of
Name of person Capacity lending pool of the Company held Total  of the Company
BE/ KB/ iR ARG,/ EARDTRE
RRER 514 A HR 5 HERAGHE @t ZHBNES
PYI Inferest of controlled long position 35,382,631 35,382,631 7.87%
RE corporation (Nofe] 58}
REEGIER 2w
(Hi7t)
PYI Treasury Inferest of controlled long position 35,382,631 35,382,631 7.87%
Group Limited corporation [Note] e
("PYIT") REEGNERE 2 s
(M)
Growing Success Limited Interest of controlled long position 35,382,631 35,382,631 7.87%
["Growing Success") corporation (Nofe) e
REEGNER 2
(M)
Paul Y. Investments Beneficial owner (Nofe) long position 35,382,631 35,382,631 7.87%
Limited [ "PYIL") BEnEEAWE) 55}
Morgan Stanley Invesiment Interest of controlled Long position 27,893,037 27,893,037 6.20%
Management Inc. corporation e

RREHEE 2 #a

Note: PYIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Growing Success which
was in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of PYIT. PYIT was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of PYl. Growing Success, PYIT and PYl were
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by
PYIL.

Bifat : PYILAGrowing SuccessZ & & [ff i 2 7] » M Crowing
Success BPYTZ 2 EMB AT - PYTRREZ2E
B & A & © Growing Success * PYITR (R ZE ¥ 3 1R &
AP E 2 R ARG PG -

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2014, the Company has B EXFTEZEEIN RZZ—NFE=A=+—H R
not been notified of any interests or short position in the shares and &% & B & 1&HIE336IEA A FIBFE 2 & L MATR0EE -
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of AR RBEE NS A HMATEEARF 2R KA
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO. Bt 2 s SRR
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group's refirement benefit schemes is set out in
nofe 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Byelaws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a prorata basis fo existing
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2014 and has
adopted most of the recommended best practices stated therein.

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 30 to 56 of
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the

year ended 31 March 2014 as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the vear, neither the Company nor any of ifs subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed

securities.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations

of approximately HK$668,000.
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Directors' Report
EERHBESE

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD  $R&EHIE =18

Defails of events occurred affer the reporting period are set out in~ RIEHEBE L FBE FBHANEAMBREM T
the note 44 to the consolidated financial statements. 44 -

AUDITOR =B ED

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meefing to ARABBRBEBEFAE LIRE—TFRZREEEY
reappoint Messrs. Deloitfe Touche Tohmatsu as audifor of the — BAEMR G S&TARTTAA A B Z X 26T -
Company.

On behalf of the Board REREZER

Stephen Hung K R

Joint Chairman B EE

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014 BB ZE—WFASA=ZTH
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Independent Auditor's Report

B ZBENREF

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF LOUIS XIll HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Louis Xl
Holdings Limited [the "Company”’) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group’] set out on pages 95 to 220, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated sfatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significonf accounting po|icies and other e><p|onotory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the direcfors defermine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Secfion 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obfain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

RS T=KBEERARANZEERR
(EBERELIMATZBERAF])

KZERMITE TR EREOSEEE220EMHAK S =
SEERAB([EAR) REMBAR (GHEIEKE])
ZHEEFBRR BER _B-OF=A=+—HZK
EUBRARRBEZALFEZRABER HFAE
aREMEEEER SAESZPRLEARER
ROARTEGAHRMEREMERE -

ESUREUBRREAAEZER

ERFEFRAAERBERSHNASEMZTENS
BERARBERARGIZRERERREERRFZ
HEMBRR URZEEERAREGAVBRERM
WEZEEAMERE AR E M HRER T FER KRG
KRR T 5| #E 2 A HH R R -

R 2 EAE
AZBMITHEETEREANZBEITEZTENER
HEAUBBRRIBHER - WIHRBREDQREFEOMK
BARTE  EREBRRBRE - RIELIASN - NEZZEDTTHY
BEESTARELMAR  NZBE TR AR ARES
AR HEMEMALTAERAEEREMR - ARE
BITERBERSIHMASEMOTEEAEAETE
o BEERERARBMITETERRE  WRER
WITER UAEREGAMBBRRRES I FEERE
REE R
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Independent Auditor's Report

BB EHRE S

An audit involves performing procedures fo obfain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the enfity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s inferal confrol. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014,
and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

l%/j_\ =\/$

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZEZZF—

ME=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—ZE—MmE =%
NOTES HK$’000 HK$' 000
ks FET FHET
[restated)
(&51))
Turnover - 5 8,579,708 7,131,575
Cost of sales SHE RN (8,291,049) (6,905,790)
Gross profit EF 288,659 225,785
Other income H b g s 7 9,079 3,975
Administrative expenses 1T E A (257,593) (199,537)
Finance costs & Bl AN 8 (16,272) (13,331)
Impairment loss recognised in respect H A e ORI R
of other debtors ZREEE 22 (27,318) -
Share of results of associates BOE R AR RS 19 (757) 6,245
Share of results of joint ventures BEEaEEE 20 1,296 2,662
[Loss) profit before fax B Al (E518) & (2,906) 25,799
Income tax expense FrisHi& A 10 (27,036) (3,624)
[Loss) profit for the year FE(EE)&A 11 (29,942) 22,175
[Loss) profit for the year affributable fo: FEAEFE (B518) a7 -
Owners of the Company ENETEZZ SN (50,586) 17,632
Non-controlling interests FEER B 20,644 4,543
(29,942) 22,175
[Loss) earnings per share k(8B & T 13
Basic [HK cents) EAR (B (12.9) 16.8
Diluted (HK cents) 5% (B(L) (12.9) 13.4

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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Consolidated Stotement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ez kEMAEZENER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HE—ZF—NF=A=+—RHIFE

2014 2013
—Z—MmF —E-=F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THET FHET
[Loss) profit for the year FE(BE) A (29,942) 22,175
Other comprehensive income for the year: FEAEMEEKE
llems that may be subsequently reclassified to Hig e B S E R
profit or loss: ZHEA :
Exchange difference arising on translation of MEBINERESE
foreign operations ZERER 516 2,767
Share of franslation reserve of associates and BEBE AR REEDRE
joint ventures b 4 (1 (103) 872
413 3,639
Tofal comprehensive [expense) income forthe year  FE2H (%) K 4858 (29,529) 25,814
Total comprehensive [expense) income affributable to:  FE(L 2TH (F X ) Wz 4258 ¢
Owners of the Company RRAREER A (50,375) 20,757
Non-controlling interests IR = 20,846 5,057
(29,529) 25,814
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Consolida’red Statement of Financial Position

B BB R &

n\/-_r\
At 31 March 2014 R=ZZT—WNF=A=+—H
31.3.2014 31.3.2013 1.4.2012
—F-NE —F-=F =—FT-——-F
=Z=B=+—H =ZA=+—H MmA—H
NOTES HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
B 5 THERT FAT FAET
[restated) [restated)
(E7)) (EB7)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Hotel under development RS 14 932,638 33,933 =
Property, plant and equipment - %W&?&Lﬁ 15 223,696 206,422 179,228
Prepaid land lease payments TN A E R 16 1,821,485 1,926,076 19,686
Goodwill GEES 17 61,646 61,646 61,646
Other intangible assets HEmEREE 18 7,627 7,570 7,570
Interests in associates iRl 7T*Efm 19 27,023 27,034 90,469
Interesfs in joint ventures é%ﬂ:%*& 20 89,509 73,782 201
Other debtors — non-current portion H B RIA—IE R B R > 22 - 187,040 184,733
3,163,624 2,524,403 543,533
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepaid land lease payments Bt L HE5IR 16 104,591 104,591 575
Amounts due from customers U B A 4 T2
for contract works FIB 21 723,800 468,569 377,079
Trade and other debtors, deposits and 75 &E@F’%W%ﬂlﬁ °
prepayments HEDSELNES 22 2,274,208 1,871,559 1,940,735
Amounts due from associates JE U B N R T)\IE 23 31,264 39,817 40,546
Amounts due from joint ventures A& ﬁé% 23 383,412 162,668 33,320
Amounts due from joint operations/ JEW & fﬁ%f&/é\ e
other partners of joint operations E At R+ K18 23 131,412 77,303 83,037
Amounts due from subsidiaries of fEU — B R EKTE A A
a shareholder A 24 61,994 72,728 105,459
Other loans receivable H R E R 25 74,247 - 8,148
Pledged bank deposits EIRIRITER 26 16,032 = =
Short term bank deposits EESRIT IR 26 1,409,900 814,835 173,336
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIAS 26 629,027 540,784 139,961
5,839,887 4,152,854 2,902,196
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Amounts due to cusfomers ENBEFPEHIRE
for contract works I8 21 1,421,870 892,315 811,558
Trade and other creditors and B RHEAMEMNRIEA
accrued expenses MEETRAX 27 2,292,380 1,646,048 1,464,821
Amounts due to associates JESTESE N B FR T8 23 44,671 57,532 108,027
Amounts due to joint operations,/ &% %ﬁx//\ CF
other partners of joint operations H A% A8 23 123,443 73,764 75114
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE 1 FE 45 AR A 25 RUIR 23 - 171 61
Loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder —HREz —FNERREER 24 38,000 = =
Amounts due to subsidiaries of B — B EKTB AR
a shareholder FRIE 24 15,645 - -
Taxation payable BEH?RIE 30,208 9,474 5,920
Bank borrowings — due within one year —FREHZRITER 28 440,926 402,048 226,335
4,407,143 3,081,352 2,691,836
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,432,744 1,071,502 210,360
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERBABEE 4,596,368 3,595,905 753,893
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBEME
Bank borrowings — due affer one year —FREHZEITER 28 2,618 38,041 112,842
Convertible bonds Al i (& 55 29 239,721 168,010 -
242,339 206051 112,842
4,354,029 3,389,854 641,051
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Consolido’red Statement of Financial Position

e BRI &

At 31 March 2014 RZZE—ME=A=+—H

31.3.2014 31.3.2013 1.4.2012
—E—QmE —T—=-F —T——-F
=ZBA=+—H =A=+—H mA—H

NOTE HKS$’000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000

P o FET FHET FHET
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (&E5))
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRFHE
Share capifal & A 31 899,193 709,326 121,391
Reserves 1 3,084,043 2,339,245 518,039
Equity affributable to owners PIN/NEE RN
of the Company RS 3,983,236 3,048,571 639,430
Non-controlling interests e e
Share option reserve of a subsidiary —RM B ARz B 20,824 10,667 -
Share of net assets of subsidiaries BIEWNBARIZFEEE 349,969 330,616 1,621
370,793 341,283 1,621
TOTAL EQUITY MR 4,354,029 3,389,854 641,051
The consolidated financial stafements on pages 95 to 220 were BN EOSHEE S 0E Y GAMEREEN -
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 —NENXA-FHEEE R ERSETR . WH
June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: THEEREEEREZ
Peter Lee Coker Jr. Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
Ery0
Joint Chairman (Executive Director) Deputy Chairman (Executive Director)
BEEE (NTEE) BIEE (BTEE)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

== N 7/
* Z \ n\I:Iln

= B R

n‘/-_l_\
For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZEZZF—MEF=A=+—HILtFE
Arbutobl o owners ofte Company Non-controlingnferests
KOAREARL FERRE
Conerible ~~ Shares~ Shore  Share Shareoption ~ Shareof
Shre  Shore Conbuted  Spedol  bonds  heldfr  opfon  aword Tronlion  Reluied resenieofa  netassetsof
opiol  premiom suplus resene reseve shoreoword  resene reseve  resene  profi Sublokl  subsidiory subsidiories  Subvioel Tokl
-BHE  BEKE
T8k RERER  BRE RAER Mz A
Rt RORE RERR KRRR REER FERE 0 BE  BR EXRR REEA 0 BRERRE  BER N B
HE000  HE000  HKF000  HKBO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKE'000  HKS'O00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O00  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000
Thn T TR T T T TR TR TR TR TR TR TR T TEn
AT Apil 2012 H-%5-Z§mA-A 12131 5508 449086 (153,767) = = - U7 193015 639430 -1 1621 641,001
Bichonge dffeerce arsng onondoion AE51 $HEE
o foregn opeaons Z@?ﬁ?ﬂ - - - - - - - - 514 94 6
Shorecforson esene ol ossociles BEBEAARAELFE
ard it venre ELRE = = = = = - m - m = = - m
Prfiforthe ear FRaA - - - - - - - 178 17632 -4 4 nIn
Toolcompehensive incomeforheyeor - £E2 BN AHE = = = = = -y s nge - 07 50 25814
sveofplacing hores Noe 31 BATRERR (Hisle) 587647 1410353 - - - - - - 1,998,000 - - 1,998,000
Tensacioncossotibuobletoise — ETRER AR
of lcing shores R0 100,549) - - - - - - {100,549) - - [100,549)
e ofhoesnderscipdiidends  BENRREZTRA
ot 311 (3id) 288 690 - - - - - o o 978 - - - 978
stz ofcomverble bords Nole 29~ BT ARER (K29 = o - - 1009414 - - - - 1009414 - - - 1009614
Tonsocioncoss cbuoble o TRRERREIARE
the equiy component o ZH0E
converible bonds [Note 29 (W09 - - - B - - - - B - - BT
Recagniionof equiyseted shorebosed - 3BFoloncrof vesments imfed
oaymentexpenses of Foloncrol ([Foloncot) B A& E LR
nvesiments Limfed | Folloncroff| BERRERR
Noie 326 (Wi&t32e)) = = o = = o o 10,667 10667 10667
Finldiidend recognised os distbuions BBA T2 AHHA
Nk 12) (Hi#12) = = = = = = (6070 160701 = = - 60N
Specildhidend rcogpisedos BAARLERRS
distibuions (Note 12) (Hi12) - - [157808) - - - - - [157.808) o - - [157.808)
Distbuion n specie [Noe 12 EnARWI) - (927 = = = = (327701 (324048 - 4048 304048 =
Diidend disrbued byoswbsidioyy ~ —EHBRAREZRE = - - - - - - - - [110] 10) [110]
Ar31 March 2013 H-F-Z%=f=1-H 709326 1316092 (153767 977881 o = - D MR07 3048571 10667 330616 341283 3389854
Eichonge dfteencearsng n tonsofon. B EHEE L
olfoeignoperors EizE o = = = = - - -m m 5
Shoreclorson esene ol ossocites BEBEATRAELFE
and oinfveniues EiRE = = o o = o 103) o 103) = - - 103
(los) vt for e year ER(5E)aH = = = - - - 50,586 (50,986 - N6 084 (994
Toolcompehensivencome feoensel -~ £E2 B ()
forhe year 8 - - - = = = A1 (505860 (50,3731 - 086 086 (959

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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Consolida’red Statement of Changes in Equity

PAN ><
GAEREDE
For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—Z—ME=A=+—HILtFE
Aributobl o owners ofthe Company Non-conrolingneress
KATREARL FihRE
Comerible ~~ Shares Shore  Share Shareoplion~ Shareof
Shoe  Shoe Contibued  Specol  bonds  hedfor  opfon  award Trondafn  Relaned resenveofa  netasselsof
wplol  premiom suplos reene reseve shoreaword  resene  reseve  reseme  profi  Subolol  subsidiory subsidiories  Subvioel Tokl
-BHE  BEKE
ThE RRGER  ERE  RAEE Mz B2
BE REEE EARH GHRE ERBRE FRRE  BE  BRE EXRE REER 0 BRERE SEE M R
HE000  HKE000  HKS000  HKE000  HKS000  HKBO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS'O00  HKSOO0  HKS'O00  HKBOOD  HKS'000  HKE000  HKS'000
TAr TR TAm TR TAm T Tam TR TR TR TEm TRm TR TR TEm
kueohnewodnoydoesupon  RERTARERRZ
converson of comvertble bonds bkl
Note 31(e] (H&3ik) 11362 25643 = - (31484 = o = - 5541 - - - 5541
sweofpocinghores Noe 311 BARERB I 178485 555981 - - - - - - - 73466 - - - 73466
Tansacioncosiotbuobetoise. — TRERAES
o lcing hores R 27539 - - - - - - - U - - - U5
lsveofconverble bords Note 2901~ EFrTARER (2 29)) - - - - 25551 - - - - 2555 - - - 2555
Tonsacioncossatrbuioble o heequy TEREHRABARE
comporentofcomerbe bonds R
Note 29)i Wz = = - - 10448 - - - - (10449 - - - (10449
Recagniionofequiyseted horebused  BAAATBRIE EHNRA
ooymentexpensesof feshaeopion  EEHRHAZR 2R
schemeofhe Compony Nole 320) B2 (K526)) - - - - - B0 - - - B0 - - - B0
Recognon fequyseted shoretased - EsBFoloncrofE R 2t &M A
ooymentexensesofheshareopions  EEMRHAERZ
scheme o Foloneroft Note 321 WRER(H20) - - - - - - - - 10,157 10157 10157
Recagniionofequiyseted horebused  BRALARNER EHRA
ooymenteensesoleshoeonnd  EEMRIHAERZ
schemeofhe Compony Nole 330) (3R (W#236)) - - - - - 3667 - -7 - - -7
Puchaseofshares ndershoreoword — BERARBHEIEE
heme i = = = = (8,000 - - - B0 - - - B0
Shores vesied under shore award BERHREEEE
scheme i3 - - 1,883 280) 018 918
Contibuionsfomnonconioling kR LA
ineress - - - - - - - - - = 2 2% 2

Diicends ised byssidores ~ MERTATHE. (1519 (0519 (.59

At31 Morch 2014 HN-E-BEZA=1-A 899,193 1870137 [133767) 1188500 (6117 35720 86 27483 121201 3983236 20824 39969 370793 4354009

The special reserve of the Group includes the following: REFBZEREEGERIFEUTER -

[a)  a credit amount of HK$1,000,000 representing the difference (o) —2% A8%1,000,000/% 7T 2 i BF - BNk B 7 RS b 8
between the cost of acquisition of two subsidiaries and the NEIZ AN E BB R a7 T M E(b)Fr it
nominal amount of their share capital at the date on which they LI& BRI AAGIMRBATIRERR TIREERAR
were acquired by Paul Y. Management Contracting Group Aal([(REZEZIRDUWESBEZRADEZM
Limited ("Paul Y. Management Contracting”), a subsidiary of the HERE &

Company, before the reverse acquisition as mentioned in note (b)
below: and

(b) o debit amount of HK$154,767,000 representing the reserve  (b)  —2A80154,767, 0008 T2 £ 2 - BNR KR
arising from the reverse acquisition of Paul Y. Management ERLTRELEEWRBAT (4 H%%ﬁi% CTEE
Contracting and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Paul BDEEZHEE HBREZLIENRERR
Y. Management Contracting Group”), net of refund from ex- NAR-ZZEERE— A K ARER4 ? SN
shareholder of Paul Y. Management Contracting for the shortfall REEHERATIKNBREZRIRESE IZHX
in net asset value of Paul Y. Management Contracting Group AEZMBRERERFREER I%i;,‘%lZﬁE@

upon completion of the acquisition by the Company from PYI
Corporation Llimited, the former ultimate holding company, of
the entire equity inferest in, and shareholders’ loan to Paul Y.
Management Contracting Group in January 2005.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERIE

For the year ended 31 March 2014  #ZE—=

—mE=A=+—BILFE

2014 2013
—S—MmE —E-=F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FET
[restated)
(E731)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEK
[Loss) profit before tax FRiiAl (B 18) & 7 (2,906) 25,799
Adjustments for: ST AEEETHE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y BB RREZTE 33,086 29,685
Finance costs & R A 16,272 13,331
Impairment loss recognised in respect of H B U FIRRE R
other debtors A& 1B 27,318 =
Interest income F) B Uk = (9,079) (3,975)
Loss on deregistration of an associate NIk € il < = 160
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYE - B KRR %ZJEETE 3,136 4,389
Release of prepaid land lease payments TR LA E 575 575
Share of results of associates B(hE = N RIEE 757 (6,245)
Share of results of joint ventures BhoeEhEER (1,296) (2,662)
Share-based payment expenses AR AD B ERE 2 X 15,284 10,667
Operating cash flows before movements in RAEEEREFDR o KE
working capital ¥BReRE 83,307 71,564
Changes in amounts due from (to) customers R BEFPEHTIENIA
for contract works b ) 288,724 (773)
(Increase) decrease in frade and other debtors, B REMEWIIE Fle K&
deposits and prepayments TR FRIE (45 00) W (242,162) 68,890
Decrease (increase) in amounts due JiE W Bt 8 R R SRIEDR
from associates (3 50) 8,545 (9,568)
Increase in amounts due from joint ventures JEHQAAEE\%MIE? n (220,633) (129,348
Decrease in amounts due from joint operations/ WA EER, AL EREM
other partners of joint operations IR 2,929 3,748
Decrease in amounts due from subsidiaries JE W — & IR R 2 Y B~ Al kIR
of a shareholder VoA 12,921 35,145
Increase in trade and other creditors and B 5 K H e R IE R e
accrued expenses B < 45 644,022 181,000
Decrease in amounts due to associates JE A B N B FRIE R A (17,767) (33,907)
Decrease in amounts due to joint operations/ JEfS B &R,/ AL EBEAM
other partner of joint operations R IR (7,682) (250
Decrease in amounts due to non-controlling interests &1 FE1% I i 2 TJ\IE/@?/J\ (171)
Increase in amounts due fo subsidiaries e — 2R 2 M A
of a shareholder RIEHE N 15,645 -
Cash generated from operations KEREEB RS 567,678 186,501
Overseas tax paid BERBINRIA (6,302) (70)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REREXEB RS FHE 561,376 186,431

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEREREE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZEZZT—

ME=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—=—MmF —E—=F
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
TFET FHET
(restated)
(&%)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REER
Additions fo hotel under development ARBERPIBE (736,145) (12,4806]
Advance of other loans receivable 0 E A e W B R (74,247) -
Addifions to property, plant and equipment WEWE %W&%&Lﬁ (61,554) (64,496)
Advance to joint operations/other partners M&EER & EKEAM
of joint operations BLEER (57,038) (3,247)
Placement of pledged bank deposits T AEBMRITFK (16,032) -
Contribution to a joint venture m—HEeErELE (14,540) (Q47)
Payment for purchase of shares under share wEs HXf/ﬁ ﬁﬁb FTEIET
award scheme HxﬁZﬁ = (8,000) -
Advance to a joint venture m—EaEtERR (111) =
Additions to other intangible assefs ,H\ﬁﬂﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁm (57) -
Interest received 2 U F B 14,754 3,167
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEY % T%ﬂi L
plant and equipment IS EN 4,662 o7
Repayment from associates /N 75& 8 10,305
Additions to prepaid land lease payments Fafs iiﬁﬁﬁg RIBRNE - (2,028,317)
Contribution to an associate m—EBE AR HE - (320)
Advance to an associate ) — e B 8 2 ) B4 3K - (8)
Repayment of other loans receivable 182 B U & K = 8,148
Repayment from joint operations,/other parters a M%%//ﬁ\ EEBEM
of joint operations BHER - 5,233
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ARBREXBZRE R (948,300) (2,082,901)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
New bank loans raised FiEiRITIE R 782,468 577,432
Proceeds from issue of placing shares BITRERRD Z TS 38 734,466 1,998,000
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BT RRES 2 FTE %’KIE 299,942 1,202,000
Advance from joint operations/other operations é\ BRI REEBEM
of joint operations BHEBR 57,421 4,143
Loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder —BRER BB ARER 44,000 45,000
Advance from an associate E) NG = 13,010 =
Contributions from non-controlling inferests JEHE HX%ﬁnﬁj & 26 -
Repayment of bank loans EERITERN (779,134) (477,603)
Transaction costs aftributable fo issue of placing shares %77 Bt & I 17 FE 16 22 5 B AR (27,539) (100,549)
Inferest paid AT H .8 (26,185) (19,879)
Transaction costs atfributable to issue of %TT—H@ MA&E 5 RS
convertible bonds R (12,408) (60,395)
Repayment fo associafes Epedil/NCIE- BN (8,240) (16,588
Repayment of loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder 838 — 4 J& 5 2 — &1 B 2 FI{E K (6,000) (45,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling inferests [RANEFE g F) &N (1,519) =
Repayment fo joint operations/ other partners EBESBER SEEBHM
of joint operations BRI (60) (5,243)
Dividends paid ETIRE - (162,900)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REMETH RS FHE 1,070,248 2,938,418
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRERESEHEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS B 683,324 1,041,948
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES /NEEZS 8o & (16) 374
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT ReRERSEEER
FORWARD b9 1,355,619 313,297
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED ReRERESZEEER
FORWARD e 2,038,927 1,355,619
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRERELEHEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS e AT
Short term bank deposits EERTTTER 1,409,900 814,835
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERS 629,027 540,784
2,038,927 1,355,619
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRE B RS R R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HEZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are lisled on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate

Information” section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of ifs principal subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and joint
operations are sef ouf in note 45 fo the consolidated financial

statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the

Company.

Pursuant to the special resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company on 3 April 2013, the name of the Company was
changed from "Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited” to “Louis XIll
Holdings limited” and "85 +=%BEHERAF]" was adopted
as the Company’s Chinese name in place of "“RERZEEE
BMRAT]" for identification purpose. The change of name took
effect on 3 April 2013.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards
["HKAS(s]"), Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS(s)’),
amendments and interpretation ("HK(IFRIC) — Int") (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “new and revised HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2009 - 2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities: Transition Guidance

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

—gan
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R Y AT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HEZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. EAFNTREEN2EBVBREELD (&)
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits BB G105 EERM
(as revised in 2011) (:?__imfkaﬁ)
HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements BB G L2 BYUMBHRE
(as revised in 2011) (fT——E?&f%EﬁZ)
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and BRE G ERE28% REtEREIREE
(as revised in 2011) Joint Ventures (ZE——FEER) TEZRE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other B ERE R (B Hp2EREER 2
Comprehensive Income 27|
HK(IFRIC) = Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production B (ARGFBHRERE WRERAEERED
Phase of a Surface Mine Z88)-REFE20% IR A
Except as described below, the application of the new and BT Xt E I - RAFE R REIERE B
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact HHBRELAEREEAREAFERBEFE M
on the Group's financial performance and positions for the BEREARMKAR, SEAUBRREHE 2 EEL
current and prior years and,/or on the disclosures set out in these MEATE -

consolidated financial statements.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint FEVMBBRR SETH BMELNRARKEZ
arrangements, associates and disclosures Ha] BB EER

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the RAFEE AEEBERERBALESBES MR
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, CRELH BERRIREEELN  BREEE
associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 “Consolidated WBRELENEI0R [FEHBHRE] BEEMB
Financial Statements”, HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, HKFRS WMEEBFIFKIAELH] - EEPT B RS EL
12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”, HKAS 27 |(as FI2RIREMEREZFE]  BAEGHEL
revised in 2011) “Separate Financial Statements” and HKAS 28 (as $£27 %FE (ZE——FEBR) B UHBEREXI LT
revised in 2011) “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, B ERFE28R (2 ——FLBHR) IREZ L
together with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 1 ond ﬁ&A%ﬁ¥Z&,§J ERIBBMEREELNFE
HKFRS 12 regarding transitional guidance. 1057 - BEAMBHRELAE Fﬁ&%f/%ﬂﬁﬁ%iﬁ%

g zfﬁ%aﬂ&maam

HKAS 27 [as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group ARG EREZR(CE——FLEERNERERE
as it deals only with separate financial statements. BIIMBWE  WNERARAER -

The impact of the application of these standards is sef out JERZEEZZERTIMT -

below.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) = Int 12 “Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of
control such that an invesfor has confrol over an investee when (al
it has power over the investee, (b) it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and (c)
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of
these criteria must be met for an investor to have control over
an invesfee. Previously, control was defined as the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an enfity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has been
included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control
over an investee.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to determining
whether it has control over an investee. The adoption does not
have material change in the control conclusions reached by the

Group in respect of ifs investment with other entities as at 1 April
2013.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”, and
the guidance contained in a related interprefation, HK(SIC) —
Int 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities = Non-Monetary Contributions
by Venturers”, has been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arangement of
which two or more parties have joint control should be classified
and accounted for. Under HKFRS 11, there are only two types
of joint arrangements — joint operations and joint ventures.
The classification of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 s
determined based on the rights and obligations of parties to
the joint arrangements by considering the structure, the legal
form of the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the
parties fo the arrangement, and, when relevant, other facts and
circumstances. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement [i.e. joint
operators) have rights o the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights fo the net assets of
the arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31 contemplated three types
of joint arrangements — jointly confrolled entities, jointly controlled
operations and jointly controlled assets. The classification of joint
arrangements under HKAS 31 was primarily defermined based
on the legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement
that was established through a separate entity was accounted
for as a jointly controlled entity).

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HEZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements
(Continued)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and joint

”

operations is different. Investments in joinf ventures are accounted
for using the equity method (proportionate consolidation is no
longer allowed). Investments in joint operations are accounted
for such that each joint operator recognises its assets (including
its share of any assets jointly held), its liabilities (including its
share of any liabilities incurred jointly), its revenue (including
its share of revenue from the sale of the output by the joint
operation) and ifs expenses (including ifs share of any expenses
incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the assefs
and liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating fo its
inferest in the joint operation in accordance with the applicable
standards.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
classification of the Group's joint arrangements in accordance
with the requirements of HKFRS 11. The directors concluded that
cerfain of the Group's joint arrangements, which were previously
classified as jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 and were
accounted for using the equity method, should be classified as
joint operations under HKFRS 11 taking info account the relevant
joint arrangement agreements that specify that the parties fo the
joint arrangements have rights fo the assefs and obligations to
the liabilities relating to the joint arrangements and accounted
for the assets, liabiliies, revenues and expenses relating to its
inferests in the joint operations.

The change in accounting of the Group's joint arrangements
has been applied in accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions set out in HKFRS 11. The inifial investments as at 1
April 2012 for the purposes of applying the joint operations are
measured as the segregate of the carrying amounts of the assets
and liabilities that the Group had previously netting off. Also, the
directors of the Company performed an impairment assessment
on the segregate assets as at 1 April 2012 and concluded that
no impairment loss is required. Comparative amounts for 2013
have been restated to reflect the change in accounting for the

Group's joint arrangements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities”

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
enfities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and
associates. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted
in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements (see note 45 for defails).

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”
The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current

year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for,
and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement requirements
of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for sharebased payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value [e.g. nef realisable value for the purposes of
measuring inventories or value in use for impairment assessment

pUrposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability,
in the case of defermining the fair value of a liability] in an
orderly fransaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions.
Fair volue under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive

disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. The application
of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the amounts

recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014  #ZE—

CRE R

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1. Upon the
adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group's “statement
of comprehensive income” is renamed as the “statement of profit
“income

". The
retain the option to present profit or loss

or loss and other comprehensive income” and the
statement” is renamed as the “statement of profit or loss
amendments to HKAS 1
and other comprehensive income in either a single statfement
or in two separate but consecutive statements. Furthermore, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section such that ifems
of other comprehensive income are grouped info two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on ifems
of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on
the same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax or
net of tax. The amendments have been applied refrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of the
amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” (as part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 2012)

In current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
amendments to HKAS 1. HKAS 1
accounting policies refrospectively, or makes a refrospective

requires an entity that changes

restatement or reclassification fo present a statement of financial
position as at the beginning of the preceding period (third
statement of financial position). The amendments to HKAS 1
clarify that an entity is required to present a third statement
of financial position only when the refrospective application,
restatement or reclassification has a material effect on  the
information in the third stafement of financial position and that
related nofes are not required to accompany the third statement

of financial position.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FERFHTRLER2EBNBHREED (&)
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)
Amendments fo HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (as EBEHEREIE (B BBHRERZ25 (B
part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 R-E-——EXNAEGZEBMBEREER =
Cycle issued in June 2012) (Continued) EENFEE——FEBFEREZ D)
(%)
In the current year, the Group has applied the HKFRS 11 for RAFEAR AERBEEXRAEE GRS
the first time, which has resulted in o material effect on the 158 WHR_F——FMA—-HZHRAMBENR
information in the consolidated statement of financial position MERZEMBREATE - ARBEREMREE S
as at 1 April 2012. In accordance with the amendments to FEARAE IR B 2R —F——FMA—A
HKAS 1, the Group has therefore presented a third statement of 2 3 = B84 5 AR 50 3K T S 4% 461 A PR o
financial position as at 1 April 2012 without the related notes.
Summary of the effects of the above changes in accounting LEBRES - EME
policies
The effects of changes in accounting policies described above RS RREHHUHARBERNBEFE I ER
for the prior years by line items are as follows: AT
Impact on profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 of the BREEHBRELRZE I HHBEE=—F—=
application of HKFRS 11 FZA=+—HALFEZAzZE
Adjustments
R
HK$' 000
THET
Increase in turnover & EEEEIE N 312,071
Increase in cost of sales $HE R AIE N (285,607)
Increase in administrative expenses TTECE AN (9)
Decrease in share of results of joint ventures BheatEEERD (28,850)
Decrease in income fax expense FiS ™ & AR 2,395

Change in profit for the year

FERNZE
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—Z—ME=A=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. ERAFTREER2EBUBREEL (F)
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Summary of the effects of the above changes in accounting FREHBRREH oS ERE (BE)

policies (Continued)

Impact on assets, liabilities and equity as at 1 April 2012 of FERE BRI EERE] SR E——F
the application of HKFRS 11 WE—AzE&E BEREZZZE
As at
1.4.2012 As at
as previously 1.4.2012
reported Adijustments as resfated
R-E—_F R-B——F
mA—HR MmA—HA
BAEZH THE gl
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET FHET
Property, plant and equipment ME - B NERE 175,080 4,148 179,228
Interests in joint ventures EETEER 12,384 (12,183) 201
Amounts due from customers EWEFPEHIE
for contract works Fe| 376,446 633 377,079
Trade and other debtors, deposits B 5 & H A W kIR
and prepayments HEDSSLENE /S 1,887,185 53,550 1,940,735
Amounts due from joint ventures ERAEEERIEB 52,921 (19,601) 33,320
Amounts due from joint operations/ JEIRAEERBEEY
other partners of joint operations H A R HEFIR = 83,037 83,037
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIRS 132,456 7,505 139,961
Amounts due fo customers EREFEHTIRE
for contract works B (716,288) (95,270) (811,558)
Trade and other creditors and accrued B 5 K H 4th &~ 5kI8 &
expenses FEFTRX (1,425,870) (38,951) (1,464,821)
Amounts due fo joint ventures EEEERE (95,401) 95,401 -
Amounts due fo joint operations/ BN E B X,/ SEEB
other partners of joint operations H AR HEFIE = (75,114] (75,114]
Taxation payable FER IR (2,765) (3,155) (5,920)

Total effect on net assets and equity

HEETERERTE

FEkE]

Y
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FERFIRKLERZ2EBUBREER (B)
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)
Summary of the effects of the above changes in accounting tHREHBRESH 2L EME (&)
policies (Continued)
Impact on assets, liabilities and equity as at 31 March 2013 JEFE B IR EERE 1 EHR - E—=F
of the application of HKFRS 11 ZA=1—HZEE BERERZTE
As at
31.3.2013 As at
as previously 31.3.2013
reported Adjusiments as resfated
R-ZE—=%F R-T—=%F
=A=+—8H =A=+—H
BAEZH FHE E]l
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
Property, plant and equipment W - W R 201,950 4,472 206,422
Interests in joint ventures BEhEER 114,016 (40,234) 73,782
Amounts due from customers for BUWERFE4TIE
contract works A 467,800 769 468,569
Trade and other debtors, deposits B 5 R H A U EOE
and prepayments e MFENFE 1,771,290 100,269 1,871,559
Amounts due from joint ventures UL & &8 174,768 (12,100) 162,668
Amounts due from joint operations/ RS LER /&8 %
other partners of joint operations H R £ FOE = 77,303 77,303
Bank balances and cash RITEs EIRE 345,647 195,137 540,784
Amounts due to customers for EREFPEHIRE
contract works A (756,373) (135,942) (892,315)
Trade and other creditors and B 5 K EH A FE S FRE &
accrued expenses FEFTAX (1,432,485) (213,563) (1,646,048)
Amounts due fo joint ventures & & ERE (98,413) 08,413 -
Amounts due to joint operations/ ERNEEEL /a8 EB
other pariners of joint operations HibBHEzE - (73,764) (73,764)
Taxation payable JE A~ 1538 (8,714) (760) (?.474)

Total effect on net assets and equity

HEEFERESTEZIER

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R Y AT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—Z—ME=A=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Summary of the effects of the above changes in accounting
policies (Continued)

Impact on cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2013 of
the application of HKFRS 11

i

FER#E] RAER BB BRELED ()

TREH BRI EHE (&)

BREEBUEREERE]FEHEEZ T —=
F=H=1—HIFEZEREEREZZZ

Adjustments

HE
HK$' 000
FET
Decrease in net cash outflow from REEB R RLFERD
operating activities 190,828
Increase in net cash outflow from investing REFEB 2B mE FEEE M
activities (729)
Decrease in net cash inflow from financing BMEFH 2RESRAFERLD
activities (2,467)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeSEEBEINFHE 187,632

The above changes in accounting policies do not have any
impact on the Group's basic earnings per share for the current
and prior years.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or inferpretation that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

tREABRZE @bﬁi$¢lﬁ’$$¢ﬁ§&i@ﬁ¢
EZE8RERBNY EZE

R E B ARIZATER A A T 2 2B M 18 18 R AR Z #

R M RIE R 2 R~ (EFT R kg
BAYBRSENEOR TRIA
BRMBREEAZ 145 SRERILER’

BEMBREER (fB3])
ERMBREER ()

ERMBREEN_T-TFE
:2—_¢5ﬂﬁﬁZ¢Fﬁﬁuﬁ“

ERAMBREEN_F——FZF
“E-CERBERERE

HKFRS @ Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Amendments fo HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 -
2012 Cycle*

Amendments fo HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 -
2013 Cydle?

Amendments fo HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and

and HKFRS 7 Transition Disclosures?®

Amendments fo HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Amendments fo HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38
Amendments fo HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments fo HKAS 36
Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) = Int 21

Investment Entities!

Accounting for Acquisitions of inferests in Joint
Operations®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Confributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
liabilfies'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and Confinuation of
Hedge Accounting'

levies'
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
Available for application — the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS @ are
finalised.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with limited exceptions.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on
or after 1 January 2016.

& Effective for annual periods on or dfter 1 January 2016.

The directors of the Company are in the process of ascertaining
the financial impact on application of these new and revised
standards, amendments and inferpretation on the consolidated

financial statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”] and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the

fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assef
or paid fo transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
toke those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment fransactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in

use in HKAS 36.

2.

R REER BB BREER (&)

! R-ZB—NOF—A—-BARIARZFERMER -

2 R-ZB-—NFLA—-ARIARZFERMER -
? A HERA — SR M AR B B N B RS R 2R R
FOWZ RITH PR TERAZIRTE °

4 R-Z-—NFLA-ARIARZFERMER
MAERBRIER -

0 RIE-RFEF-A-BRINEZENERERE
MBRELNERFEVERR 2 FERRER -

o R-B—RNF-A—ARIARZFERMER -

ARREEZREFERAREHITREER2E
8- BT RREBEHAREG S P BHRER 2HTE

ye-
TESFEE

HAVBBRRDERREEGAMASRMZER
MBmELANRE - I SRAMBRREBER
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/-_r\

For the year ended 31 March 2014  #ZE—

CRE R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and enfities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
o has power over the investee;
J is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its

involvement with the investee; and
e has the ability fo use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
confrol of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are aftributed to the owners of the Company and fo the non-
controlling interests. Tofal comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is affributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All infragroup assefs and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing confrol over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and affributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any refained inferest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill], and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary [i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment refained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on inifial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Derecognition and
Measurement’, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition

of an invesiment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration fransferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisitiondate fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity inferests issued by the Group in
exchange for confrol of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs

are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income

Taxes" and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

TESTBE (B)
REEE(HE)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

e liabilities or equity instruments related fo share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group enfered info fo
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

"Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

e assefs (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assefs Held for Sale and Discontinved Operations” are

measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration fransferred, the amount of any non-controlling
inferests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisitiondate amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, affer re-assessment,
the net of the acquisitiondate amounts of the identifiable
assefs acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration fransferred, the amount of any non-controlling
inferests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase

gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership inferests and
enfifle their holders to a proportionate share of the enfity's net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the nonconfrolling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assefs. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
fransaction-by-ransaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
inferests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable,

on the basis specified in another standard.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented

separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit fo which goodwill has been allocated is fested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carmrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then fo the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the atfributable
amount of goodwill is included in the defermination of the

amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Distribution in specie

Distribution in specie is measured at the book value of the net
assets affributable to the subsidiary’s shares distributed when
that subsidiaries are ultimately controlled by the same party both
before and after the distribution. The distribution is accounted for

as an equity transaction in the consolidated financial statements.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is

not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists on\y when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent

of the parties sharing control.

<k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HEZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated sfatement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any longterm interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net invesiment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontfinues recognising ifs share of further
losses. Addifional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

S
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An investment in an associafe or a joint venture is accounted RBERRIRAELEZREBWRE T K A
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee ERAEIS A ERE s ARRARREAR - RIE
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of HENRKEEDEZRER  AAREKRABEY

the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabiliies of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately

in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture. VWhen
necessary, the entire carying amount of the investment (including
goodwill] is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 "Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group disconfinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investiment ceases to be an associate or a
joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion thereof] is
classified as held for sale. When the Group refains an interest
in the former associate or joint venture and the refained inferest
is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest af
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and
the fair value of any refained inferest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part inferest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the defermination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relafion fo that associate or joint venture on the same
basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified
fo profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment] when the equity method is

discontinued.

The Group continues fo use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair

value upon such changes in ownership inferests.

When the Group reduces ifs ownership inferest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group confinues fo use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating fo that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss

on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity fransacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets|, profits and losses resulting from the fransactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the exfent of interests in

the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/-_r\

For the year ended 31 March 2014  #ZE—

CRE R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabiliies, relafing to the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the confractually agreed sharing
of control of an arangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the

parties sharing confrol.

When o group enfity underfakes ifs activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in relafion

fo its interest in a joint operation:

e s assefs, including its share of any assets held jointly;

o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising

from the joint operation;

e s share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the
joint operation; and

. its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The Group accounts for the assefs, liabilities, revenues

and expenses relating to its inferest in a joint operation in

accordance with the HKFRSs applicable fo the particular assets,

liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity sells or contributes assefs to a joint
operation in which a group entity is a joint operator, the Group
is considered to be selling or contributing assefs to the other
parties to the joint operation, and gains and losses resulting
from the sale or confribution are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of other

parties’ inferests in the joint operation.

When a group entity purchases assefs from a joint operation
in which a group entity is a joint operator, the Group does not
recognise ifs share of the gains and losses unfil it resells those

assets o a third party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than hotel under
development are sfated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as fo write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than hotel under
development less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the sfraightline method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
fo arise from the confinued use of the assef. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or refirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Hotel under development

Properties in the course of consfruction for hotel operation are
carried af cost, less any recognised impairment loss. The relevant
costs include acquisition costs, development expenditure,
borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs affributable to
such properties. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when complefed
and ready for infended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the

assets are ready for their infended use.

Leasing

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

fo the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as expenses on a
straightline basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as expenses in the period

in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received fo enter info
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction

of renfal expense on a sfraightline basis.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/-_r\

For the year ended 31 March 2014  #ZE—

CRE R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Prepaid land lease payments

The upfront payments to acquire leasehold inferest in land are
accounted for as operating leases and are stated inifially at cost
and released over the lease ferm on a sfraighHine basis. The
released prepaid land lease payments in respect of a parcel
of land in Macau is capitalised into hotel under development
during the construction period and recognised as expenses

subsequent fo the completion of the hotel property.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Infangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and infangible assets other than

goodwill).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets
are measured af the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is

derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of ifs tangible and intangible assefs to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
defermine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. VWhere a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating unifs,
or otherwise they are allocated tfo the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified. In addition, other infangible assefs with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually,

and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs fo sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a prefox
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the

esfimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset [or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than ifs carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
fo its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unif] is increased fo
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been defermined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unif) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediafely.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be esfimated
reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised by reference
fo the stage of completion of the contfract acfivity at the end of
the reporting period measured based on the confract revenue for
work performed to date relative fo the estimated total confract
revenue, except where this would not be representative of the
stage of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably

and ifs receipt is considered probable.

When the outcome of a consfruction confract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised fo the extent
of confract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in

which they are incurred.

When it is probable that fotal confract costs will exceed tofal
confract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HEZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Construction contracts (Continued)

Where confract cosfs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is shown as amounts due from customers for contract works.
For confracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amounts due fo cusfomers for contract
works. Amounts received before the related work is performed
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position,
as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under trade and

other debtors, deposits and prepayments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the considerafion
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for service provided in the normal course of business, net of

discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the

value of work certified during the year.

Development management, project management and facilities
and asset management services income are recognised when

services are provided.

Dividend income from invesiments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been esfablished (provided
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow fo the

Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Inferest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Inferest
income is accrued on a fime basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and af the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rafe that exactly discounts the esftimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial assef fo that assef's net

carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a subsfantial period of fime fo get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets unfil such time as the assets are subsfantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Invesiment income eamed on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined confribution refirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as expenses or capifalised in confracts in progress or hotel
under development, where appropriate, when employees have

rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred fax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using fax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all toxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assefs are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are nof recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition [other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HEZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, interests
in associates and joint arrangements, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assefs arising from deductible
tfemporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced fo the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected 1o apply in the period in which the liability is
setled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expecis, at the end of the reporting period, fo recover

or seftle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred fax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate fo items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current fax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting

for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group

entity,

currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the

transactions in currencies other than the functional

respective functional currency [i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) af the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are refranslated at the rates prevailing af
that date. Non-monefary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the setlement of monetary items,
and on the refranslation of monetfary items, are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assefs and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are franslated info the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
ifems are franslated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
fransactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operafion (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire inferest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation atfributable
fo the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-aftributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not
result in the Group |osing significont influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences

is reclassified to profit or loss.

<k

TESTBE (B)

S

RmHEEETENER M BRRE  BRER
UIWEEEBAINEE ONE) ETZR G BR S
Bz EREXREREREEY (AIZERLE
EBRAEIELBERREZEE) A - RIEHR
MNEDN B2 EREBERZEER ZEREXE
HE o SNEIE 2 FFR IR IREL KA E
A FEHRE -

HEEBEANENRESREARMELZE

RER EXEFZRESHRNESTER

REEPBHRRZEINTAME - AEBEEINES
ZEERBEENBEREHRER CEXHRE
RAEBZZ27E% (ANET) > MkaE k<A
BARZFE 2 FHEXGE  EERRZHBA
fERBAIRRSN - RULERT - AlIRER 5 A HER
CEZHE - ELXCELZR (WA RNEMEE
U ot o E R A R 2 P 2 B L R IR T RET ©

REE—FBNER (BHEAREER —KBINE
i‘%ZAﬁETEﬁ_é I RKREHBEBINERE R
REZENEZHE  PREAEHEEBINED
E’\J—éaﬁwz/\ﬂ? Bl HEP KR EY
BEEIEBZ KB ERRNEATEN ZHE)
B MARFHEARGZEBRERARG ZH
FEAZRSEMHREBATD - 1IN FHEFD
Hj%*%Bﬁ%“TI*%@Z$E@§E£¥T§§W§
REZAESRE - AR P RFHE L ZHENHE
7%#% Peiges - MAPRBRPHER - HRAAEE
7B th & (A& Hﬁ’ié‘%%/AT‘}z/\**ﬁﬁFIﬁ
ERARBREBATZENIHAREGE) @ S
Ll REtER ZREH \*EK%E S o

BEt+t=5EFRLA

2014 5% 127



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HEZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party fo the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are initially measured ot
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assefs and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assefs or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly affributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is defermined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the markefplace.

loans and receivables

loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with
fixed or deferminable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent fo initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other debtors, amounts due from associates,
joint ventures, joint operations/other partners of joint operations,
subsidiaries of a shareholder, other loans receivable, pledged
bank deposits, short ferm bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any idenfified impairment losses [see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).

] 28 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Effective inferest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating inferest
income over the relevant period. The effective inferest rate is
the rafe that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective inferest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorfer period to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Inferest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assefs are considered to
be impaired where there is obijective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
®  breach of confract, such as default or delinquency in

inferest and principo| payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptey or financial re-organisation.

For cerfain categories of financial assets such as trade debtors,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are,
in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Obijective evidence of impairment of a portfolio of debtors could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the credit periods ranging from 60 to 90 days and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on debtors.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R Y AT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—Z—ME=A=+—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

S

SRR ()
£RI A (&)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE (E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (&)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade debtors, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a HEEKATENCREENS @ MAEBEZE
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and A RE 18 BARER A + T IE TR A AT R 8 b B R RRURR
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring BEEBEZE—SHBEBRE  ARAIEROREE
after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously EIERNBEF TUEL  RBRREERZEE

recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity insfruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual
interest in the assefs of the Group affer deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue cosfs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity insfruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Where the shares of the Company are acquired under the
share award schemes by the share award scheme trust,
the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “shares held for share award”

and deducted from fofal equity.

] 30 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report

FREE TS BB RRRERBER Z BHKA

éﬁﬂ’ BERKATA

EEEETZEBRRRAIADRESOLH
ZIEELEEE BEERERATAZEZNBATH
BEXBRATA -

BRATA
BATEABEHBEMBAERTEAEEEE
FIAERZEMAL - ARB BT ZRARTATIIE
EUWATERIE MR E R BT /R -

BOARARNBARGRATAD BENERSER LA
B MERBE LE  BITXEHARREFR
ATAZ @M REBERERKERER -

i B 0 SR B 51 8IS FE AR B AR 10 BB ET BB A
AD - AR E (BREAEREGESE
) 2503 [ FER D BRI ARG | - Wik
BRI -



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity components
Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain mainly
the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately info respective itfems on inifial recognition in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.  Conversion optfion that will be sefled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company's own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is defermined using the prevailing market inferest rate of
similar non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned fo the liability component, representing the conversion
opfion for the holder fo convert the convertible bonds into equity,

is included in equity (convertible bonds reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, representing the optfion to
convert the liability component info ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds reserve unfil the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible bonds reserve will be transferred fo share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
date, the balance stated in convertible bonds reserve will be
released to the refained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction cosfs that relate fo the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
fo the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabiliies (including trade and other creditors,
amounts due fo associafes, joint operations/other partners of
joint operations, non-controlling inferests and subsidiaries of a
shareholder, loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder and bank
borrowings| are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using

the effective interest method.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R Y AT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—Z—ME=A=+—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest

S

SRR ()
TRIT A (F)
EHMEEBRIKATA (A)
BT BO%
BERNBEDFESRABIHEKRARIZER
HAR D M B R Z 770K « BERF R T fhat R 2K

expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is ReMR(BEMBREBREBERMEZ AR
the rafe that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments SWHMBR RHIRAREMEESITE) EZom

(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction cosfs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, fo the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
Inferest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
confractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it fransfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
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and rewards of ownership of the assef fo another entity. If the EYEEBEETERBEERZBREY AR KD
Group neither fransfers nor refains substantially all the risks and BULBEHEEREE  ~ASEEBRFE2 R

rewards of ownership and confinues fo confrol the fransferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognises an  associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of o financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the assef's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligafions are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees and advisers
providing similar services as employees

The fair value of services received defermined by reference
fo the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant
is expensed or capifalised in hotel under development on a
straightline basis over the vesfing period, with a corresponding

increase in equity (share option reserve|.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises ifs estimates
of the number of options that are expected fo ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or capitalised
in hotel under development such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to

share option reserve.

When share opfions are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred

fo retained profits or capitalised in hotel under development.

Awarded shares granted to consultants

The fair value of service received, determined by reference to
the fair value of awarded shares granted at the date of grant,
is expensed or capifalised in hotel under development on a
straightline basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding

increase in equity [share award reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises ifs
esfimates of the number of the awarded shares that are
expected fo ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss or capitalised in hotel under development such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to share award reserve.

When awarded shares are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share award reserve and the amount of the
relevant treasury shares (held under the shares held for share

award scheme) will be capitalised in hotel under development.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZEZZT—

4.

S B R R Y AT

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
fo make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The esfimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to

be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the esfimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year:

(a)  Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit of a
construction contract according fo the management’s
estimation of the fofal outcome of the project as well
as the percentage of completion of consfruction works.
Notwithstanding that management reviews and revises
the estimates of both contract revenue and costs for the
construction confract as the confract progresses, the actual
outcome of the contract in ferms of ifs fofal revenue and
costs may be higher or lower than the estimates and this

will affect the revenue and profit recognised.

(b)  Trade debtors

When there is objecfive evidence of impairment loss, the
Group fakes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
[excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective
inferest rate (i.e. the effective inferest rate computed at
inifial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 March 2014, the carrying amount of
trade debtors is HK$604,121,000 (2013 (restated):
HK$694,669,000).

] 34 Louis XIIl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Deferred tax asset

At 31 March 2014, a deferred tax asset had been
recognised in respect of tax losses amounted to
HK$56,382,000 (2013 [restated): HK$81,279,000) in
the Group's consolidated sfatement of financial position.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation
fo remaining unused tax losses of HK$381,581,000
(2013 (restated): HK$248,718,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position due to unpredictability of
future profit streams (see note 30). In cases where future
profits are expected to be generated, a deferred tax asset
on the remaining unused fax losses may be recognised
in the consolidated financial statements in the year which

estimation changes.

Property, plant and equipment, hotel under
development, and prepaid land lease payments

The Group assesses regularly whether property, plant
and equipment, hotel under development and prepaid
land lease payments have any indication of impairment
in accordance with its accounting policy. The Group
determines the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment, hotel under development and
prepaid lond lease payments based on the estimation
of the economic benefits generated from these assets.
Management is confident that the carrying amount of
these items will be recovered in full based on the results
of assessment of the estimates of anticipated cash flow
generated by these assefs. The situation will be closely
monitored by the Group, and adjustments for impairment
will be made in future periods in which there is an
indication of such adjustments are appropriate. The
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, hotel
under development and prepaid land lease payments
are approximately HK$223,696,000 (2013 (restated):
HK$206,422,000), HK$932,638,000 (2013:
HK$33,933,000) and HK$1,926,076,000 (2013:
HK$2,030,667,000) respectively.

Share-based payment expenses

The recognition of share-based payment expenses requires
the esftimation of the number of options and awards that
will ultimately vest at the end of each reporting period.
The impact of the revision of the estimates during the
vesting period is recognised in profit or loss or capitalised

in hotel under development whenever a revision arises.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HEZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. PHEEMTZEEZRR

(Continued) ()

() Goodwill () mE
Defermining whether goodwill is impaired requires ErRERCHRRERTEH D E I ENE
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash- ZEERSEM oA E S EEL G - 5
generafing unifs to which goodwill has been allocated. EFRAEEFEASERGTEHAELAR S
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate BURGIARBESRERAB 2R L
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash- AEEE - WERARBESRERBHLD
generafing units and a suitable discount rate in order fo AR EAREER R-_ZE—NE=F1
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash =+—H8 BEEREELHAESO], 46,0004 T
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss ZE—=%F: 61,646,000/ ) - G U
may arise. As at 31 March 2014, the carrying amount Bl E 2 BRI 7P H]ER -

of goodwill is approximately HK$61,646,000 (2013:
HK$61,646,000). Details of the recoverable amount

calculation are disclosed in note 17.

5. TURNOVER 5. EXEH
Tumover of the Group represents the fotal value of contract AEBEEBIREFNCREZ IRANEE RE
work certified, the gross proceeds received and receivable from AHMTIERERREENIER T RS M UWER &
development management and project management services in JEUE 2 RIB4EE - AR RBREREEEERE
connectfion with contract work and income from facilities and 2z o
asset management services during the year and is analysed as
follows:
2014 2013
—S—MEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TFHT FHET
(restated)
(E5))
Revenue from construction contracts TITEEHKA 8,575,256 7,125,245
Revenue from development management, BRER HAE ii AR
project management and facilities and RiEMREEE
asset management services ARG U A 4,452 6,330
8,579,708 7,131,575
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported fo the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, is organised
info divisions for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment focusing on the types of services
delivered or provided. Specifically, the Group's reportable and
operating segments under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are

as follows:

Management confracting = building construction and
civil engineering

Property development - development management,

management project management and

facilities and asset
management services

Property investment — investment in properties
through investment in a
joint venture

Hotel development —  hotel operation with ancillary

retail and entertainment

facilities

The Group had invested in an operating segment of the hotel
operation in Macau with provision of ancillary retail and
enfertainment faciliies which are under development. The
remaining segments are held under a major subsidiary of the

Group, Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ("PYE”).

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies

described in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each reportable
and operating segment without allocation of corporate income,
central administrative costs, finance costs and impairment loss
recognised in respect of other debfors. This is the measure
reported fo the chief operating decision makers for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

The assets of the Group are allocated to reporiable and
operating segments except for pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposits, bank balances and cash and other unallocated

assets.

The liabilities of the Group are allocated to reportable and
operating segments except for bank borrowings and other

unallocated liabilities.

7 EBE R
MARBATER(ZBLERKE) 2RMEER
BORRKREFEZER  SPUAMRMNERERZ
RGBMEREI DA - R E - ARERBEEEY
BMEERNFESR L L DA 2 AT MEREEDE
LU

R E R - BFEERTATRE
MEERER - BREE HEEEEUR
wiE L EEEERS
MERE - RERYME(CBBRERN
—BRELE)
BIEER - BEEE  ERWHBTE
MIRGER

AEERERPIEELEZRED R  UREHE
TERRERE  BRARGDERRES - B0 R
HAKREE T -—HTIEMNEARREZEEESR
RARN(MREZEDFE -

AHmEMRSED B B BREWNEIMALER
ZEABER K-

DERF RS A HEREED B GN  WED
ERWE - PRITBUKA » BE A B H 84K
ERRRERE - A EBELERRERSH
EERD R KRR ZFET L

BREEMRITER  BHRTER  RITEHRRR
SUAREMARSEEESN  AEEMBEESA

AREREEDE

BRIRTEAREMRDEREN  AREMBEARE
BET AT RE R LD HR -
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRE R
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For the year ended 31 March 2014  #ZE—

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Infer-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates or af

terms defermined and agreed by both parties, where no market

price was available.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and results

—ME=A=+—HILEE

i

Al Z%’ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂzfﬁﬁﬁ1 Y BR 3k (fisf 3 & A]
ZTE) RENEE KRB Z FRFE

NTAREBEEBREBRATRE REE D

by reportable and operating segments. 2O e
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE-Z-NF=A=+—HLEFE
Property
Management ~ development  Property PYE Hotel ~ Segment
confracting  monagement  investment fotal  development fotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
RREE NXBREE  NERE REERET  BERE  SHEH H &a
HK'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn TiEx TiEn TiEx ThEn Tz ThEn TiEx
SEGMENT REVENUE pix: 10N
External sales HiMHE 8,575,256 4,452 - 8,579,708 - 8,579,708 - 8579708
Infersegment sales AR BEE 662,900 1,300 - 664,200 - 664,200  (664,200) -
Segment revenue DU 9,238,156 5,752 - 9,243,908 - 9243908 (664200 8,579,708
Segment profit AEEA 217,790 2,527 712 221,029 - 221,029 (36,527) 184,502
Corporate income ¥kE 9,079
Ceniral administrative costs BRI (152,897)
Finance costs BEKR (16,272)
Impaimentloss recognisedin -~ Eft MR
respectof other debtors LREEE (27,318
Loss before fax BiaER (2,906)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's assefs and liabilities

by reportable and operating segments.

As at 31 March 2014

7 EBE R (&)

UTRAKBEERASL

B

R-ZE—NMFE=A=+—~H

Management  development
contracfing  management

Eliminations Consolidated

REEE NERREE VERE REERLGH &4
HK$000
THERL
ASSETS E
Segment assefs PBEE 6,824,037
Pledged bank deposis BEABOIER 16,032
Shortferm bank deposits BBEIER 1,409,900
Bank balances and cash RIEBRRES 629,027
Other unallocated assefs ERPEEE 124,515
Consolidated assefs GREE 9,003,511
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilies PBER 4,102,548
Bank borrowings RITER 443,544
Other unallocated liabilities EthRAEERE 103,390
Consolidated liabiliies GRaf 4,649,482
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—ME=A=+—HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEHR(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE_Z-—NME=A=+t—-HLFE
Property
Management ~ development Property PYE Hotel
contracting  management  investment total  development  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
REER NXRREE  NERE RERRET BEYR AOE g4
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thx FHET FHET TER TER TR Thx
OTHER INFORMATION EftEs
Amounts included in the measure of AESHEFT S
segment profit or segment asses: BEMARZLH
Additions fo hotel under RERRTEE
development - - - - 898,705 - 898,705
Additions fo property, RENE BRRE
plant and equipment i 26,426 - - 26,426 13,618 23,655 63,699
Depreciation of property, VESE UES
plant and equipment ZITE 28,848 28 - 28,876 - 4,210 33,086
Loss [gain] on disposal of property, LENE  BRR
plant and equipment B2 BR(BN) 3,151 - - 3,151 - (15) 3,136
Release of prepaid land BREMNLH
lease payments ERE 575 - - 575 - - 575
Inferests in associctes BERARAE
and joint venfures rERR 28,369 = 88,163 116,532 = = 116,532
Share of resuls of BREBERAAR
associofes and joint ventures RELEER (1,236) 1,031 744 539 - - 539
Amounts regularly provided fo EHRATHIEE
the execufive directors but not included B EFERG1E 7 H
in the measure of segment profi: ERZEE
Share of tumover of BEBERAR
associates and joint ventures RRLEEEE 1,502,890 - 5937 1,508,827 - - 1,508,827
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover and results

by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (restated)

DEER (&)

UNTRARBEZXRBREERAREREED B

2T o

BE-Z-—=F=ZA=+—BHLEFE(EF)

Property
Management  development Property PYE Hotel  Segment

confracfing  management  investment fofal  development folal ~ Eliminafions  Consolidated

RRER MERRER  MERE RERRLG  EERR  A®Ee 43 A

HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TEL TEL TEL T TEL T TEL TEL
SEGMENT REVENUE AHRA
Exteral sales HIMEE 7,125,245 6,330 - 7131575 - 7131575 - 7,131,575
Infersegment sales DL EHE - - - - - - - -
Segment revenue AHBBA 7,125,245 6,330 - 7131575 - 7131575 - 7,131,575
Segment profit &R 116,070 2414 8126 126610 - 126610 - 126610
Corporate income i3 36 3975
Ceniral administrative costs BR{THAK AR 97,455
Finance costs HENAE 113.331)
Profit before tax BRRAET 25799
The following is an analysis of the Group's assefs and liabilities L/(Tﬁ'j$% BEENBEEIHRERKEESE 2
by reportable and operating segments. DHT ©
As at 31 March 2013 (restated) R-ZB—=F=A=+-—H (&%)
Property
Management  development Property PYE Hotel  Segment

confracfing management  investment fofal  development folal ~ Eliminafions  Consolidated

RRER MERRER  WERE RERRLG  ERER  AEEe b3 e

HK$'000  HK'000  HK§'000  HKE'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TR TR TR TR THL ThL THL TEL

ASSETS BE
Segment assels NHEE 3085937 47417 97962 3231316 2048053 5,279,369 (4,267) 5,275,102
Shortferm bank deposits BHEAER 814,835
Bank bolances and cash FiTERRT S 540,784
Other unallocated assets EthRPEEE 46,536
Consolidated assefs GREE 6,677,257
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilies AHaR 2,641,348 10,761 447 20652550 179,378 2,831,934 (4,267) 2,827,667
Bank borrowings RITER 440,089
Other unallocated liabilites ERAREE 19,647
Consolidated liabiliies GRER 3,287 403
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEBER ()
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (restated) BE-ZE-=F=A=+t—-HLFE(E3)
Property
Management  development Property PYE Hotel
confiacling  management  investment folal  development  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
AREER MELRER  NERE RERFLH  BEER Aol Fa
HKP000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TET TET TARL THRL TERL TAL TETL
OTHER INFORMATION (restated) HtEH (E3)
Amounts included in the measure of AERBENT A E
segment profir or segment assefs: REMBRILHE
Additions to hotel under development ~ RE BB NE = - - - 33,933 - 33,933
Additions fo prepaid land RERMNTHEE
lease payments W = = = - 2028317 - 2028317
Additions fo property, REME WL
plant and equipment R 61,811 = = 61,811 = 2,685 64,496
Depreciation of property, nE - BHREREZ
plant and equipment & 27702 198 - 27 900 - 1785 29685
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BRHR
plant and equipment R BR 4,389 = = 4,389 = = 4,389
Release of prepaid land BRENIHEE
lease payments A 575 = = 575 = = 575
Inferess in assocites BERFARAE
and joint venfures rEER 29,791 (1,037) 72,962 101,716 = = 101,716
Share of resuls of BREBERAR
associofes and joint venfures RELERE 1,085 [369) 8,191 8,907 - - 8,907
Amounts regularly provided o the EHRATHIEE
executive directors but not included BREERTEH
in the measure of segment profi: ERZEE
Share of tumover of BIEBEARR
associates and joint ventures RELEEEE 647,439 - 5,423 652,862 - - 652,862
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong,
Macau, the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") (excluding
Hong Kong and Macau) and Singapore.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's turover
based on geographical location where construction works or

other services are provided:

DEER (&)
AEBZEBEIBUNES R - PEARKM
(TR EL]) (BB FORPIBRIN) RFT IS o

TRAREELZEBRRWRUES » (RIEHRER
TR EMRBEZ AEER) 20

2014 2013

—2—mF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHT FET
(restated)
(E51)
Hong Kong 0 3,448,250 4,192,778
Macau P 4,575,416 2,555,901
PRC H 495,381 381,692
Singapore N 60,661 1,204
8,579,708 7,131,575

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-

current assefs excluding other debtors (non-current portion),

analysed by the geographical area in which the assefs are

TRAFRDEEREE(TREEMEUTKIEA (JE

MBI )) WEEREILR 2D

located:
2014 2013
—F—QmF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TET FET
[restated)
(251)
Hong Kong BB 128,332 292,348
Macau P 2,917,648 1,943,677
PRC GE 115,629 99,748
Singapore N 2,015 1,590
3,163,624 2,337,363
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—ME=A=+—HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Revenue from the three (2013: three) largest customers in

respect of construction contracts amounted to  approximately

HK$2,352,234,000 (2013

turnover of the Group) and HK$T,

HK$948,332,000],
HK$1,956,319,000 (2013: less than
157,008,000 (2013

of total

10%

HK$1,467,149,000) respectively, which individually

contributed more than

10% of total turnover of the Group for

the year ended 31 March 2014. Revenue from the remaining

one largest customer in 2013 in respect of consfruction

7 ERE R (FR)
KA (ZE—=F ZR)BIBEFEHE
HETRANZRASBIHIR2,352,234,0008 7T (=
T — =4 : 948,332,000/ 7T) * 1,956,319,000
BAL(CE—=ZF : PRAKEREXEION) &
1,157,008,000# 7T (=B —=4F : 1,467,149,000
B EREARERE—FT-—NF=A="1—
BLEtFE2RBEEBEI0ON - —F—=FHT
—EARIBEFEHEBEIRANZWAR
1,193,087,000 T - ERIEAEEHEE-—F—=

contracts amounted fo HK$1,193,087,000, which individually FZA=Z+—HUEFEHEEERBHRION - WFE
contributed more than 10% of total turnover of the Group for the EEHBEAREEESE -
year ended 31 March 2013. All these customers are under the
management confracting segment.
7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hftlkz=
2014 2013
—S—MmE —E—=
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
Bank interest income RITH B M 10,125 593
Interest income on amount due from FEU — B AR R —EIF B
a subsidiary of a shareholder AR Z M B s 2,187 2,607
Interest income on other loans receivable ﬁ@r’é”&%\ K B S 4,509 692
Others HAh 232 258
17,053 4,150
Less: Amount capitalised in respect B R PEERE
of hotel under development BEARZ&H (7,974) (175)
9,079 3,975
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FINANCE COSTS

8. MEMRA

2014 2013
—T—@mF —F-=F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TFHT TET
Interest on bank and other borrowings BARAFARBERZIRITR
wholly repayable within five years HERzHE 26,191 20,106
Effective interest on convertible bonds AR ES 2 BRI E 31,821 4,286
58,012 24,392
Less: Amount capitalised in respect B BREREHTR
of contracts in progress BARZ &5 (9,919) (6,775]
Less: Amount capitalised in respect B BFEERPAIE
of hotel under development BEARZ&HE (31,821) (4,2806)
16,272 13,331

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on funds
borrowed specifically for construction contracts and hotel under

development.

HEBERPBAEBAES -

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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9.

(a)

HE—

—ME=A=+—HILEE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” AND 9. EERFETHAEREEMS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (o) EERFETHAEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2013 EffEMNE(ZE—=F +R)EFE
ten) directors are as follows: AZBEnT
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other  Discrefionary scheme  Share-based
Fees benefits bonus  contributions payment Total
MR BIRER R A
Hhe Hit g7 MERL TERR  EREZAR @t
Name of director and EZR HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
chief executive TETHABHES TiEn TEn TR TR TR TR
2014 —E-QE
James Chiv izh 18 966 - - - 493 1,459
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom fnote i] 2R (Hti) 297 5,884 - 13 4926 11,120
Stephen Hung (note i ok (frati) 300 - - - 15,083 15,383
Peter Lee Coker . (note ii Peter Lee Coker Jr. (#132ii) 300 5,720 - 10 4,926 10,956
Walter Craig Power [nofe i Walter Craig Power (#&tii) 300 7,800 - 1 4926 13,027
lee Chack Fan ZER 869 - - - 493 1,362
lain Ferguson Bruce ik=Sn 936 - - - 493 1429
Francis Goutenmacher [nofe iii] Francis Goutenmacher (4 &2iii) 921 - - - 493 1414
4,889 19,404 - 24 31,833 56,150
2013 “E-=f
James Chiu Fich 23 790 - - - - 790
lau Ko Yuen, Tom [note i =R (H) 95 - - - - 95
Stephen Hung (note i kB (i) 46 = = = 10,667 10,713
Peter lee Coker Jr. [nofe il Peter Lee Coker r. (#73ii) 46 604 - - - 650
Walter Craig Power fnofe ii Walter Craig Power (477#ii) 46 1,207 = = = 1,253
Chan Fut Yan [nofe iv) BB (fr i) - 1,841 209 13 - 2,063
Wong Kam Cheong, Starley (noteiv] &R & (A1 ##iv) - 2,866 292 13 - 3,171
lee Chack Fan EX by 551 - - - - 551
lain Ferguson Bruce ik 609 = = = = 609
Francis Goutenmacher [nofe iii Francis Goutenmacher (A &iii) 66 = = = = 66
2,249 6,518 501 26 10,667 19,961
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9.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Re-designated from non-executive direcior fo executive
director on 19 February 2013

li)  Appointed on 5 February 2013
[ii)  Appointed on 19 February 2013

livy  Resigned on 19 February 2013 and subsequently

employed as employees of the Group

Mr Walter Craig Power is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
above included those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive Officer from 5 February 2013, date of
appointment, fo 31 March 2013 and for the year ended
31 March 2014,

Ir Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley was also the former Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by
him as the Chief Executive Officer from 1 April 2012 to
5 February 2013, date of resignation.

Discretionary bonus was defermined with reference tfo the
Group's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. Neither the directors nor the

chief executive waived any emoluments for both years.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year
included four directors (2013: one director). The five
highest paid individuals in the Group for the year ended
31 March 2013 also included two former directors of
the Company. The two former direcfors resigned on 19
February 2013 and subsequently employed as employees
of the Group. Details of their emoluments for the year
ended 31 March 2013 as directors are sef out in note 9la)

above.

9.

EEREFETHRAEREEMSE ()

(o) ESBRFETHASME (&)
Kt -

[l R-T-—=F-A+hBaEFRTESEAML
ARTES

(i) R-EBE—=F_ARBESEF
i) MZZE—=F_A+NLAEZFT

v RIE-—=F"_A+IABABHERERERR
rEERE

Walter Craig PowerSE £ IR AR R Z 1T EH - B
REXEEFMEBEEE_2—=F_FA A (A
ZERPE-_T—=F=A=+—-BRBE-Z
—HFE=ZA=+—BI-FEREETBRAZME
TR 2 ME

ERESTEMAAARR ZAETRAER AR E
NEEZFMEEEE T —FOA-RE_
T-=F_HA0B (AEETHH) tHETRER
Pz IRTS < Bl

BERAZEAEBEERE  AARBERATLR
MERABTMEE - BBEEEFRTIRTRAER
EumBEFE2EMME -

b) EEM=
AEERAFERUSEHFMAERENS
EX2(CT=F: —REF) - AKERE
ECT-ZF-A=t-HLEFERUKS
FMABNMBRARARMEAEES - %W
FAEEER T —=F_A+HBBE"
HERBERAKERE -ZFEAIRBE—
E-=F=-HA=+—RUIFEEREEZH
SFBHEN _EXE )
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S BMKRNEE

—ME=A=+—HILEE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” AND 9.
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

The aggregate emoluments of the remaining one (2013

two former directors (excluding those emoluments during

their directorship] and the remaining two) highest paid

individuals, who are employees of the Group, are as

follows:

EERFRTRAEREEMNE (&)

(b) EEME (HE)

BT (ZF—=F MUAMEES(TE
RHEEZRCEHZM2) KB TEASERE
B2 &RFHMA L Z@mMmT

2014 2013

—F—QmF —F—=
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FET
Salaries and other benefits i X E A A8 T 5,944 5,354
Discretionary bonus BTEE4T - 417
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R K 4@ F 5t 8 #H 5% 14 32
Share-based payment VAR 7 A5 250 2 15750 4,926 -
10,884 5,803

Their emoluments were within the following bands: HEWSETBEENT ¢
Number of employees
EEAY

2014 2013

—E—QmE —E—=
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 &% 1,000,000/ 7T = 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 7t 22,500,000 7T = 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7t £ 3,000,000 7T = 1
HK$10,500,001 to HK$ 11,000,000 10,500,001 7L & 11,000,000/ 7T 1 =
1 4

REZMEEAR  AEBTEARUKZSHMAR (B
REZERTIZTBRAR) XNMEMERIMARE
B R INAAN SR B 2 S8R - SR RER(E -

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group tfo the five highest paid individuals, including
directors and chief executive, as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FRGHEHN

2014 2013
—E—|mE —E—=%
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TFHT TET
[restated)
(&)
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNEH

Overprovision in prior years BEFEERRE (614) (2,395)

Macau and PRC tax YR PT Ko i B 75 IR
Current fax N YR 27,743 7,367
Overprovision in prior years BEFEEREE (93) (1,348)
27,650 6,019
27,036 3,624

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the assessable profits were

wholly absorbed by fax losses brought forward for both years.

Pursuant fo fax incentive approved under Section 20 of Decree
law No. 13/2013, Macau Complementary Tax is levied at a
fixed rate of 12% on the taxable income above Macau Pataca (“MOP”)
300,000 for tax year 2013. Under Section 19 of Decree Law
No. 17/2012, Macau Complementary Tax is levied at a fixed
rate of 9% on the taxable income above MOP200,000 but
below MOP300,000, and thereafter at a fixed rate of 12% for
tax year 2012.

Under the law of the PRC on Enferprise Income Tox (the “EIT
Llaw") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
is 25% for the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC from 1 January
2008 onwards.

B A L AR 6 P 2 B SR A5 ) 35 4% A B AR TR B 1R P
BEEWE  BABRGEMBERRAELFTRNG
A -

RIERPTES 13,7201 358 206 A it e 2 i 15
BE R-FT-=ZFFRFE RABEHNER
B = ORI (RFI%E ) 300,0007THs » TiR
B TE B X1 2% - RIBBPIESHE17,720125%
FIOHMMEZRBEE R_F——FFBF
JE - R PIE FE 00 HE AR B A = 7R P #5200,000
7T+ M R RPIEE300,0007TH - ThiR B E L EO%
Bl BR AR E ER R 2% -

BREPECEABTE(EEMABRED KX

PISBUEERGD - B —TZNF—A—HE K
SERBEAZMBRARZEXEMBHRHBERR25% -

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2014  #ZE—

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled fo the (loss)
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

Fii§ %R%ﬁﬁ(f‘é)
AEEZHMERERRAESE
B) a2 SR T

TR TSI Z BR A AT (&

as follows:
2014 2013
—ZE—mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
(restated)
(&%)
(Loss| profit before tax B AT (E518) 4% T (2,906) 25,799
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% RAMBER16.5%HE 2 BIE (479) 4,257
Tax effect of share of results of associates/ BEMERT  AECEEEY
joint ventures M E (89) (1,470)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible Ef)ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬂ B 2 2
for tax purpose ks 15,217 5,948
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose Efﬁﬂ"&ﬁﬁﬁ BBl am o B2 (542) [405)
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible temporary  BIF L AT R FER AT IR E R 2R 2
difference previously not recognised k5% (40) (7)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERZ AR ERERZ
difference not recognised M E 2 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRBEEZ BB E 26,819 6,854
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses R SR ﬂiﬁﬁ BRI EERZ
previously notf recognised Mg e (4,827) (3,583)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  FE i FEAE R 45 % %ﬁ%z MEARZ
operating in other jurisdictions TRBRE Z MG & (8,318) (4,227)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEEE (707) (3,743)
Income fax expense for the year FEZHEHER 27,036 3,624
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 30. RIERTE 2 FIBH IR EE30 ©
11. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11. FE (BB =R
2014 2013
—F—QF —E—=%F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$' 000
i TFHET FET
(restated)
(&%)
(Loss| profit for the year has been arrived FE (ER) &2 Mk
ot after charging (crediting): (Rt A :
Auditor’ s remuneration 3 il e 4,593 4,280
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #13 ~ ## K& 2B 2 & (a) 33,086 29,685
Loss on deregistration of an associate —[EH & R A 2 B8 160 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - R RE
equipment Z e 3,136 4,389
Operating lease rentals KEHOME (b) 28,199 18,887
Release of prepaid land lease payments R TEN T E KA (c) 575 575
Staff costs BTRA (d) 155,758 129,981
Confract costs recognised as expense R AR ZA KA 8,287,514 6,902,729
Net exchange gain PE R BAF5E (1,660) (1,261)
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Notes:

(a)

(o)

(c)

(d)

11. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 1. FE(SE) & (&)
Hiat :
2014 2013
—E2—@mEF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
THERT FET
[restated)
(E31)
Depreciation of property, plant and M - B R RR
equipment: ZHE
Owned assets BHEBE 38,627 32,870
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of W BRERANIRERZ
confracts in progress &% (4,481) (3,185)
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel W BRBERPEEELRZ
under development ik} (1,060) -
33,086 29,685
Operating lease rentals in respect of: KEHOES
Premises ES 37,358 19,306
Plant and machinery AR K H 23 105,528 119,882
142,886 139,188
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BRERENIRERZ
confracts in progress k- | (108,347) (120,301)
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of W BFRERPBEERZ
hotel under development G| (6,340) -
28,199 18,887
Release of prepaid land lease payments: ERIEN T ERUE
Release of prepaid land lease payments EERAEMN T AERIE 104,591 17,911
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel B BARBERPBEEEARZ
under development o] (104,016) (17,336)
575 575
Staff costs: BIKA:
Directors’ emoluments (Nofe 9) EEMWS (H5F9) 56,150 19,961
Other staff costs: Hih 8 TRA :
Salaries and other benefits F R H A E R 671,812 445,769
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, BRIKEHEFEERRIBREZKRZ
net of forfeited contributions #£5%200,0007% 7T
of HK$200,000 (2013: HK$172,000) —ZT—=%:172,000%75T)) 23,843 21,106
Equity-setiled share-based payment expenses  LARR#E 45 B LARR 17 /3 8 2 kB X 11,118 -
762,923 486,836
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of W BRERANIRERZ
contracts in progress x| (494,234) (355,044)
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BRBERPEEELRZ
hotel under development k| (112,931) (1,811)
155,758 129,981

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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12. DISTRIBUTIONS 2K
2014 2013
—F—mEF —EB—=F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TFHT TET
Dividends recognised as distributions during A ZRF [ AR5 K
the current year: 2B
Final dividend for 2013 — Nl —_E-ZFERPRE—&
(2013: 1.0 HK cent for 2012) (ZBE—=F:ZF——F
per share BAZ.0A) = 6,070
Special dividend for 2013 - Nil TE-=FHIKRE &
(2013: 26.0 HK cents for 2012) (ZB—=F: ZT——F
per share [with Scrip Alferative FR26.08) CERIA R BiE 2
defined in note 31(d)) (FERMEE31() - 157,808
= 163,878
Distribution in specie EYMHIK - 324,048
Dividends proposed: BORMR S

Final dividend proposed for 2014 — Nl
(201 3: Nil) per share

—E-FRICRARE — &

(=

T—=F &)

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for

the year ended 31 March 2014

On 5 February 2013, a distribution of specie of 606,954,322
shares representing 49% of issued shares of PYE has been
distributed. The distribution amount of HK$324,048,000

is derived from 49% of the net assets value of PYE and its

subsidiaries on the effective date of the distribution in specie.

Following the distribution in specie, the Company continues fo
hold 51% equity interest in PYE. Thus, PYE continues fo be a
subsidiary of the Company and the results of PYE continues fo

be consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of the

Company.
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13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted {loss) eamings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

13. 8k (BE)&F

TyiRIE T 5 BURFTE

ARBFEAANEEZBRERREE (BR) B2

(Loss) earnings (E518) &R
2014 2013
—E—-mE —E—=F
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
TFHET FET
(Loss) earnings for the purposes of basic ATEERERREE (BER)
and diluted (loss) earnings per share: ARz (EBE) &AF -
(Loss) profit for the year atfributable RAREEARBLEE
fo owners of the Company (B18) =T (50,586) 17,632
Number of shares R BB
Number Number
of shares of shares
R4 EE Rt B8
Weighted average number of ordinary STHEBRER(BE) BN TRk
shares for the purpose of basic (loss) DN B (HaE)
earnings per share (Note) 390,686,039 104,978,101
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEBELTRR I TE
Convertible bonds Al EH - 26,635,778
Exchange rights granted fo option m—FEM B AR B EIET
holders under a subsidiary' s share option ZBRER A AR TR
scheme (see Note 32(c)) (Kti£32(c)) - 28,289
Weighted average number of ordinary STEERESE (B8 BN TRk
shares for the purpose of diluted (loss) INREF 9B (H )
earnings per share (Note) 390,686,039 131,642,168

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the
calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 March 2014 have been arrived at after deducting the shares
held in trust for the Company by an independent trustee.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the
calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2013 has been adjusted refrospectively
to reflect the impact of share consolidation effected on 27 May
2013.

Wizt RBUFEBEE-ZT-NE=A=+—-BILF
EEREAREEER TRRNETI9H
THEHB — 2B U AT ARELR
ARAZRNBBREE -

RAGEHE_T-—=F=A=+—HItF
EEREAREERNZ L BRNETI9H
EEHBYAE  URBKR-_T—=FH1A
“tERERZBOEHZIZE -
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13.

14.

CRE R

—ME=A=+—HILEE

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 13. BR(EE)BF (&)
The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended HARBEEE-ZE—NF=A=T—RHLFEH
31 March 2014 does not assume the exercises of convertible RITEZAIRES BRE—EWB AR 2 EBRE
bonds, exchange rights granted fo opfion holders under a AEIE THERERSE A ZBRRERAR A ERE
subsidiary’ share option scheme, the Company’s share options REREERGBROBITESEBREREER
and the unvested shares awarded outstanding for the year L BEHEEHEZT—NF=A=+—HLEFEZ
ended 31 March 2014 since assumed such exercises would FREBEHBEYEBIE@EITE -
result in a decrease in loss per share.
HOTEL UNDER DEVELOPMENT 14. BRPBEE
The movement of the hotel under development for the years is set FABRPBEZEBFHINWOT -
out below:

HK$' 000

FHET

COST R
A1 April 2012 RZE—=—FMA—H =
Addition NE 33,933
At 31 March 2013 m= =F=A=+—H 33,933
Addition NE 898,705
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NF=A=+—H 932,638

The hotel under development is erected on a piece of land
on Cofai Strip of Macau which is held under a mediumerm
lease. The amount capitalised in the hotel under development
mainly represented the release of prepaid land lease payments,
effective interest of convertible bonds, sharebased payments
and share award expenses, directors and key management's
emoluments, other staff costs, direct construction costs as well
as other professional fees including design fee and consultancy
fees. The capitalised sharebased payments, share award
expenses, directors and key management's emoluments are
based on the roles and functions of each individuals and their
relevant fime spent in relation to the hotel under development

project during the year.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - B R =RE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Plantand Motor computer
improvement  machinery vehicles  equipment Total
HA #B
HELE BERES AE REKRHE @t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR FET TAT THT FET
CosT B
AT Apiil 2012 RZZE——FMA—A
- as originally stated —REZ5 = 237,446 27,189 54,374 319,009
— prior year adjusiments -BEFERE = = 592 4,320 4,912
- as restated — &5l - 237,446 27781 58,694 323,921
Translation adjustments [E 5 AR = = 90 40 130
Additions NE = 49,766 6,399 8,331 64,496
Disposals HeE = (6,137) (44) (248) (6,429)
Ar31 March 2013 frestated)  RZZE—=F=A=+—H (Z3I) = 281,075 34,226 66,817 382,118
Translation adjusiments B 5 F % - - 9 12) 7
Additions NE 21,725 16,823 8,002 17,149 63,699
Disposals & = (16,220 (3,291) (1,189) (20,700)
Ar31 March 2014 RZZE-ME=A=+—H 21,725 281,678 38,946 82,775 425,124
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2012 RZZ——FNA—H
- as originally stated -REZ5 - 79,563 19,966 44,400 143,929
— prior year adjusiments - BEFERAE = = 84 680 764
- as restated —E7 = 79,563 20,050 45,080 144,693
Translation adjusiments PE 5B = = 77 29 106
Provided for the year KEZBE - 23,991 3,262 5617 32,870
Eliminated on disposals &R E 8 - (1,772) (5) (196) (1,973)
At31 March 2013 [restated)  R-ZZE—=%=FA=+—H (&%) = 101,782 23,384 50,530 175,696
Translation adjustments B RE = = 4 3 7
Provided for the year REEEE 1,456 24,849 4,515 7,807 38,627
Eliminated on disposals & 1 8 - (9,315) (2,6206) (961) (12,902)
At 31 March 2014 RZE—MFE=A=+—H 1,456 117,316 25,277 57,379 201,428
CARRYING VALUES fREE
Ar31 March 2014 RZZE-ME=A=+—H 20,269 164,362 13,669 25,396 223,696
At 31 March 2013 restated| RZZE-=F=A=1+—H(F7) - 179,293 10,842 16,287 206,422
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. M) - WKk R (8)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are Lt WM EEREDLNERER TIFEERFE
depreciated on a straightHine basis at the following rates per E:
annum:
Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the term of the HEXEE B 3F (ARG E A%E)
lease or 3 years
Plant and machinery 10% T 2 2 10%
Motor vehicles 20% i3 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% RAREKE 20%
Computer equipment 335% BIGRE 33Vs%
16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FEfLithBEERKIE
Analysed for reporting purposes as follows: HEHREHTANTOT
2014 2013
—F—@mF =S5
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
TFHT THET
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,821,485 1,926,076
Current assets REEE 104,591 104,591
1,926,076 2,030,667

The Group's prepaid land lease payments comprise leasehold

interest in land with medium-term leases situated in:

AEBEZENLHBEEFRBELNA T Z
PEIEAOFA 2 LI H S

2014 2013

—F—QmF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TFRT FET
Hong Kong S 19,111 19,686
Macau SR 1,906,965 2,010,981
1,926,076 2,030,667
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17. GOODWILL

o3
)

HK$’ 000
THET

CosT
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and 2014

A

R-_ZE——FmWA—A8 "

“E-ZFRIT-NFE=A=+—H 064412

IMPAIRMENT RE

At 1 April 2012, 31 March2013and 2014 RZZE—ZFWMA—H ZZT—=FR=ZT—NF=A=+—H0 (2,766
CARRYING VALUES BREE

At 31 March 2013 and 2014 RIEBE—=FR_FT—NF=ZA=+—H 61,646

For the purpose of impairment tesfing, the carrying amount of
goodwill has been allocated to the cash-generating units ("CGUs'")
of building construction in the management contracting segment.

The recoverable amount of the above CGU has been
determined based on value in use calculations. The Group
prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management for the next two
years and extrapolates cash flows for the following five years
with a steady growth rate of 5% (2013: 5%). The rate used to
discount the forecast cash flows is 9% (2013: 9%). The value
in use calculations is calculated based on the budgefed gross
margin, which is determined using the unit's past performance

and management’s expectations for the market development.

RETRENRMS  BHEREEDSEAFZRERE
DETRETRZEARSEM ((EXRESEM]) -

NEEARSBEUZAIROSEIIEREEAE
EFFE - AEEIRIEZE R E AR KM E 2 &H
M BRERRHRSMEAN  YUBEE KX
SH(ZE—=F 5% HEHERAFZHRERE -
A RIBBR M L E R RO% (ZE—=5F:
9%) - EMBEDRBEEMNFE - MBEEEF R
BRZBEUZBERALKEEEUTSER2BE
MmEE °

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HihEFLEE
2014 2013
—Z—mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TFHT FET
Other infangible assets comprise: Ht\EEEBE
Club membership in Hong Kong, at cost EBZEMEE  BEK 7,000 7,000
Motor vehicles registration marks, at cost BB KA 627 570
7,627 7,570
The above infangible assets have indefinite useful lives. The rEREERETRERER - BERA  ©FF

directors are of the opinion that the club membership and motor
vehicles registration marks are worth at least their carrying

amounts by reference to latest market prices.

CRLERBLRBZEELL2ERTTHER
BRELHENEREE -

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. BENTFER
2014 2013
il B2 —E—=F
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
TFHET FET
Cost of unlisted investments in associates WERIELTEE QR 2K 32,594 32,914
Share of postacquisition losses and other BEWEREBR
comprehensive expenses, net Hi2mEAX - Mk
of dividends received 2 U EL R B (5,571) (4,980)
27,023 27,934
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually BERITIEBERN B ENT 2 EEHEME :
material:
2014 2013
—F—QF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FET
The Group's share of (loss) profit AEEREFECEEBR
from continuing operations (E518) & 7 (757) 6,245
The Group's share of other comprehensive AREBESGEHEMEEKE
income 6 603
The Group's share of fotal comprehensive REBEEG2E(FX) B
[expense) income (751) 6,848
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REBMNBEDREE REAE
interests in associafes 27,023 27,034
Particulars of the Group's principal associates at 31 March AEBRFERERTIN_T—OFRZ
2014 and 2013 are set out in note 45(c). FZA=+—HZHBEHINAMFEL5(c)
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20.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2014 2013
ot B —T-=F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FERT FHET
[restated)
(&E7))
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures KRERFELITEEDE KA 51,773 37,233
Share of post-acquisition profits and other BB R ZEH &
comprehensive income, net of HEfh 2w -
dividends received kB WER AR B 37,736 36,549
89,509 73,782
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually BERWIEEBE R QLR Y EREE
material:
2014 2013
—F—@mF ==
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
[restated)
(&%)
The Group's share of profit from confinuing AEBBERELE
operations E37 i 1,296 2,662
The Group's share of other comprehensive REBEBGEHEMPE (X)W
[expense) income (109) 269
The Group's share of total comprehensive REBEEA 2 RE
income 1,187 2,931
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's FEBRSELEREE  REAE
interests in joint ventures 89,509 73,782

Particulars of the Group's principal joint ventures at 31 March rEEE
F=A=

2014 and 2013 are set out in note 45(d).

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR

21. BB BEFAENIRERE

CONTRACT WORKS
2014 2013
—E—|mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
THET FAET
(restated)
(E5)
Contracts in progress at the end of the RREARZERZALHTIIE
reporting period:
Confract costs incurred BEEEZEHKA 61,445,839 51,562,794
Recognised profits less recognised losses KRR R MR A MR B 1R 1,410,380 1,301,082
62,856,219 52,863,876
Less: Progress billings W ERE R (63,554,289) (53,287,622)
(698,070) 423,746)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERENTANR -
Amounts due from customers for contract works  FEURE P& #) T2 318 723,800 468,569
Amounts due fo customers for contract works EREFPAHIENRIE (1,421,870) (892,315)
(698,070) 423,746)
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22. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS

Included in frade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
are trade debtors, net of allowance for doubtful debts, of
HK$604,121,000 (2013 (resfated): HK$694,669,000) and
their aged analysis presented based on the invoice date af the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

22.

ESREMEWRIE ST RFBAFFRIE
BohEMERZRE FTekBNFREC
A604,121,0008 L (=2 —=F (&%) :
694,669,000 T0) 2 &KINBIEREHE R 2 B HE
WkE  BRRESR HURZAHMAEESR
ZEREOWAOT

2014 2013

—S—mE —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$' 000

FHET FHET

[restated)

(&851)

Within 90 days Q0HWW 554,075 655,483
More than 90 days and within 180 days H#iEO0BER 1808 A 15,504 543
More than 180 days H3®180H 34,542 38,643
604,121 694,669

Trade debtors mainly arise from management confracting
business. The Group's credit ferms for its management
confracting business are negotiated at terms defermined and
agreed with its trade customers. The credit periods are ranging
from 60 to 90 days.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of the frade customers. The collection is closely monitored

fo minimise any credit risk associated with these trade debtors.

BHRWFREERGAREEER - AEBEAR
EREBCEEPRNERFEFPHERANMAIY - FE
HAOO R £90H 155 -

AEEETHARGEERRAFEESITFPZEE
EE - WHRTERZINEZENRERETAEZS
BHREFERB 2 EERR
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22. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
The aged analysis based on the invoice date of the trade
debtors which are past due but not impaired is as follows:

—ME=A=+—HILEE

B RHEMEBWRIR - FIERBAMIE (&)

ERMERRECEZBRRFAREREAHAE
EZREDTIMT

2014 2013

—ZEZ—mE —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FTHET THET

More than Q0 days and within 180 days H#iEO0OBER 1808 A 15,504 543
More than 180 days H3®180H 34,542 38,643
50,046 39,186

The directors of the Company consider that there has not been
a significant change in credit quality of the trade debtors and
there is no recent history of default, therefore the amounts are
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.

Maijority of the trade debtors that are neither past due nor
impaired have no default payment history.

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts of individually

impaired frade debtors during the years are as follows:

$’ ﬂi%*’ / %%JEH&**IEZF%E\%,@\EK
5% 5 SRR e
%Hﬁl@ Z’K%@Ex;ﬁ%u\uﬁﬁiﬁ%IET{{ﬂ?&?ﬁﬁ°

REBo RE BN EBE B 5 E WAL EHE
RIS FRAEE ©

MREMER - BRI EREE 5 EUKHIA 2 RIREMHE
HEEERAT

2014 2013

—E—mE —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$' 000

THT FET

Balance at beginning and end of the year FH R FRERR 1,721 1,721

As at 31 March 2014, refentions held by customers for contract
works amounting to HK$625,192,000 (2013 (restated):
HK$617,162,000) were included in frade and other debtors,
deposits and prepayments of which HK$334,145,000 (2013
[restated): HK$309,561,000] are expected to be recovered
or seftled after more than twelve months from the end of the

reporting period.
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22.

TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Included in frade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
in the consolidated sfatement of financial position is an amount
of HK$585,870,000 (2013: HK$73,644,000) which
represents the prepayment made to independent sub-contractors
for undertaking construction projects. The amounts are then

utilised throughout the construction period of the contracts.

As af 31 March 2014, construction and material purchase
costs incurred and paid on behalf of sub-contractors for the
construction works amounting to HK$218,342,000 (2013:
HK$209,744,000) were included in trade and other debtors,
deposits and prepayments in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

Included in frade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
in the consolidated statfement of financial position as at 31
March 2013 is an aggregate sum of HK$282,532,000 (the

"Receivables”) representing:

(i) HK$266,138,000 (principal amount of
HK$187,040,000 carrying interest at the benchmark
lending interest rate as announced by the People’s Bank
of China plus 8% per annum) which mainly represents
amounts recoverable from an independent third party
property developer (the “Developer’], in respect of the
amounts paid by the Group in prior years for financing a
property development project in Beijing, the PRC (the “Project”);
and

i) HK$16,394,000 (principal amount of HK$ 10,000,000
carrying interest at the best lending rate plus 8% per
annum) representing an advance made to a related

company of the Developer in Hong Kong in prior years.

HK$187,040,000 of above aggregate total of
HK$282,532,000 as at 31 March 2013 was classified as a

non-current asset.

To protect the Group's interest, the Group entered info presale
contracts with the Developer for certain property units in the

Project in prior years.

On 28 July 2011, a writ of summons was served in the
courts in Hong Kong upon the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries claiming for, amongst others, damages in
a sum of approximately RMB780,000,000 (equivalently
HK$974,000,000] related to the Project (the “Claim”).

22.

B5 K EMBYROE « TR BAFE (&)
AAREMBIRRKRZE S R EMBEUKKRIE AT
T RENFIABIE—$/585870,0008 T (=&
— =% 73,644,000 7T) 2 FIE IR ART
128 B i [AB 5 H B AN 2 RN R - ZRIE K
BRANITIZMEASA -

RIBE-WF=A=+—0  StAGaBHHLRREK
ZESREMBWIEA T RBNFAERRERE
ETRRDHABEERIN ZZERM B ERBK
78218,342,000/% 7T (ZZE — =4 : 209,744,000
BIT) °

MRIB-—=F=ZA=+—HZEaHBKRRERSD
BHREMEYWTIE T MANRBERE —F48
#/3282,532,000/8 T2 FIA (R KIA]) - 15

(i) RE266,138,0008 T2 RIB(XEHER
187,040,000 7T P B ARRITAMZ
HEEBERMEMESS%HE) - TEHEK
—RBUF=IMEBRB(EHEE] 2K
B DERAEERBEFERPREILR—
EWMFHERER ((ZBREB D 2CNFE: &

(il A#16,394,000B T2 RIBE(KLHER
10,000,000 7T » I REBERF X NF B
8%t HE)  NBEFEMERB I —RKEAE
RERBRIELZBR -

RZEBE-—Z=ZF=Z=A=Z+—HB HLELEEEAR
282,532,000/ 7T 2 R IEH 187,040,000 7T 2 A
RIERBEE -

RREARE#EZ  AKECRBEFERBREY
MR BZETYEBMRILEERL

KRR RAETHEBEARAR -_ZE——F+tH
“tTNBEREFEBER —MHERASK  AZEER
& (K8 4E) 49 AR #780,000,0007T (F8E M 4
974,000,000/ 7T) 2 BKR ([RE]) -

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

On 25 February 2014, a sefflement agreement (the “Sefflement
Agreement”) was reached between, amongst others, the
Company, certain of its subsidiaries, and the Developer.
Accordingly, a consent order was filed with the Hong Kong
High Court on 31 March 2014 to discontinue the Claim with

no order as to costs. Pursuant fo the terms of the Seftlement

22. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 22.

B RHEMEBWRIR - FIERBAMIE (&)
RIE-—WF_A-+EHB  (EFEE)KRF -
HETHE D E R RBEA] AR 53 (05 5
#) Rl ERZZE-OE=A=t—HRAEE
m—nﬂ?uf/y:ﬂ BT ARIERE  MIEED
ERERREZSS - REBEMA G EZ K FTH
HRETABEREGE RSB BAEZ —

Agreement, the parties agreed fo irrevocably and unconditionally PR ENK  RE - RREFAFAR (BERE) -
release each other from all demands, claims, counterclaims or

causes of actions, including the Claim.

Together with the Setlement Agreement, the Group also BRINE RS AEENCDLHEBE—RBIE=
arranged, through an independent third party, recovery 75 ] IR B £9273,000,0005 7T+ LAAS < FE W 5K T8 K
of approximately HK$273,000,000 as sefflement of the SEE R E RS A A 49300,000,0008 7T o A A &
Receivables and legal and professional fees aggregating EE’\%Z “E-NFE=ZA=+-RIFEHRERE

approximately HK$300,000,000. A loss of HK$27,318,000
has been recognised in the consolidated sfatement of profit or
loss as an impairment loss in respect of other debtors for the
year ended 31 March 2014

As at 31 March 2014, of the recoverable amount of
HK$273,000,000, a balance of HK$82,500,000, which
is unsecured and non-inferest bearing, is oufstanding and

receivable on or before 31 March 2015

Also, the presale contracts entered into with the Developer of the

Project, have been released as part of the sefflement.

The Group's trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
that are denominated in currencies other than the functional

currency of the relevant group entfities are set out below:

a5 7% AR HL B M 5K OR 2 R (B B 1827,3 18,0008

7':0

RZZE—ME=A=+—8 " A&273,000,000/#
T AT E P - REE 2R EE82,500,000/
THEER R ERER_E-—RF=A=+—H
sz B m o

o BZBBEZERBAIVLCEE
b fERENZ—& D -

BHE T

AEBEUNEFREBERZEEBUIIZERR
BB S NMEMBYGRIE e RIAMNRELT

2014 2013
—E—QmE —E—=
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TH#T FHET
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR (TARED 3,705 267,802
MOP ek 193 129,566

] 64 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report



23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES/
JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/
OTHER PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS/
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(a)

Amounts due from (to) associates/joint ventures/non-
controlling interests

The amounts due from associates/joint ventures are
unsecured, interestfree and repayable on demand
except for amounts due from associates and joint ventures
of HK$31,006,000 (2013: HK$39,551,000) and
HK$362,591,000 (2013 (restated): HK$135,880,000)
respectively, which have credit period of 90 days and
are frade in nature. Amounts due from an associate and
a joint venture of HK$258,000 (2013: HK$258,000)
and HK$20,710,000 (2013: HK$26,788,000),
respectively, which represent refentions held by an
associate and a joint venture for contract works of
which HK$258,000 (2013: HK$258,000) due
from an associate and HK$6,019,000 (2013
HK$26,788,000) due from a joint venture are expected
to be recovered or seffled after twelve months from the

end of the reporting period.

The aged analysis of the frading amounts due from

23. W () E

e NTERERE S

A**%i‘“//\“i%%ﬁ@%ﬂ#/
FFER R TR

(a)

W () B AR, aEd
w2 A
FEd 2 AR, REREZRIBREERM
RENARERKEE  ERKBE QR R
BEEERED R R31,006,0008 T (—F
—=%:39,551,000% 7T) %362,591,000
B (ZF—=% (&%) : 135,880,000
BL) HEEEBHROBREZEZIHEE -
W —FHBERAR LR -—HagtERED
AM258,0008 T (ZF — =4 : 258,000
%) &20,710, OOO/%TE (ZF—Z=
26788 0008 TT) fE—HBE AR R—Ha
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁz/ﬁml%ﬁ%lﬁ Hep
— B & A A1 KIE258,0008 T (ZF —=
F: 258,000/575)&%1451—?5]’\%&\%
6,019,000 T (ZE— =4 : 26,788,000
B EHSERRERREBBE+ AR
Yo 1m0 3% 4555 ©

XRERE

RBEBMR UBEZAHR/ELEZRZEWR

associates presented based on the invoice date at the BENRESRBZERESTTAOT
end of the reporting period is as follows:

2014 2013
—Z—mF —E-—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET TET
Within 90 days Q0H A 466 9,634
More than 90 days and within 180 days HEOOB{ERI180R K 1,203 =
More than 180 days #38180H 29,337 29,917
31,006 39,551

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—Z—ME=A=+—HILtFE

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES/ 23. B () BENT S&ERE/
JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/
OTHER PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS/

A**%%%//\ ERBHEMBE

FFERERR ()

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

(a)  Amounts due from (to) associates/joint ventures/non- () EWUHBELR &L

controlling interests (Continued)

The aged analysis of the trading amounts due from joint

=2 FRIB (1)

XERRE

RBEBMR  NBERAHRELEZHZEW

ventures presented based on the invoice date at the end AETCEBGHEZERESTNOT ¢

of the reporting pericd is as follows:

2014 2013

—ZE—mE —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$' 000

TR FET

(restated)

(E51)

Within 90 days Q0H A 362,591 135,818
More than 90 days and within 180 days HROOBBR 1808 A - 49
More than 180 days #35180H - 13
362,591 135,880

The above balances with aged over 90 days are past

%EEAE@QOEI ZLEHRREBHERRE- K

due but not impaired. The directors of the Company NAIBERE  ZEBE NI RAETEZEEY

consider that there has not been a significant change

in credit quality of the associates and joint ventures and

SIBFER] T URE o

there is no recent history of default. Therefore, the amounts

are considered recoverable.

The amounts due to associates/non-controlling
inferests are unsecured, inferestfree and repayable on
demand except for an amount due fo an associate of
HK$30,716,000 (2013: HK$48,483,000) which
represents refention held by the Group for confract works,
of which HK$5,417,000 (2013: HK$48,483,000)
is expected fo be paid or sefiled affer more than twelve
months from the end of the reporting period, and an

125,000 (2013: R—FREER -

amount due to an associate of HK$13

5,417,000% T (=

Nil) which is unsecured, interest beorlng at a fixed rate of

1% per annum and is repayable within one year.

Included in the Group’s amounts due from associates is a
balance of HK$28,415,000 (2013: HK$29,920,000)

denominated in RMB which is not the functional currency

of the relevant group entities.
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(ZZ—=%:29,920,000#7T) °

EEBAEL AOHYETRRHE  ARBEF

FE B & AR IR Hﬁ%ﬁ?&Z%’IﬁﬁﬁﬁHﬁﬂ
RERARBREEE RN —EBE QG
830,716,000 T (Z T — =4 : 48,483,000
B EASERAFAZAENIRRES HF
— =% : 48,483,000/ 7T)
?Eﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁéi&iﬁﬁitﬁiﬁﬂ-:flﬂ?ﬁiﬁﬁ‘k,ﬁ%% :

i FE 1~ — Bk & R A1 3KIE 13,125,000 7T (=
—ZFE) REER T;zlmiﬂi]%d‘% 2,\

AEBREBEARFEDREUANGRAEEREEE
%ﬁﬁEMZAEMEEMZ & £428,415,000% 7T



23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES/

JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/
OTHER PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS/
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

(b)

The amounts due from (to) joint operations/other
partners of joint operations

Amount represents balances due from and to joint
operations, which are deemed to be borne by
other partners of such joint operations, amounting to
HK$3,121,000 (2013 (restated): HK$6,050,000) and
HK$120,803,000 (2013 (restated): HK$71,414,000)
respectively, and balances due from and fo other partners
of joint operations amounting to HK$128,291,000 (2013
[restated): HK$71,253,000) and HK$2,640,000 (2013
[restated): HK$2,350,000) respectively.

The amounts due from joint operations/other partners of
joint operations are unsecured, interestfree and repayable
on demand except for an amount due from a joint
operation of HK$6,049,000 as at 31 March 2013 (resfated),
which has credit period of 90 days, is frade in nature
and aged within 90 days based on the invoice date at
the end of the reporting period, and an amount due from
a joint operation of HK$3,121,000 (2013: Nil) which
represents retention held by the joint operation for contract
works which is expected to be recovered or seftled within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

The amounts due fo joint operations/ other pariners of joint
operafions are unsecured, inferestfree and repayable on
demand except for an amount due fo a joint operation of
HK$374,000 (2013 (restated): HK$500,000), which
has credit period of 90 days, is frade in nature and aged
within 90 days based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporfing period.

23. B (M) BERT a&dhx/
BEER SEEBHEMBE
iR R FR ()

(b)

FEW () BERESEXBHMBHEZ
MKIE
ZFREREREENEEEB ZHED
513,121,0008 L (=& —=F (£73) :
6,050,000% 7T) k120,803,000 T (=
T—=F (&%) :71,414,0008T) - &
REARMZEALEBEMBHAE IR
R R EMNEEEBEMB LR R
128,291,000 T (= F — =4 (&%) :
71,253,000 7T) %&2,640,000& T (= &
—=4 (&%) : 2,350,000/ 7T) «

EBRAEER AEEBEMBHEZKEAT
BEM RERAREBREEE HER_-F
—=F=-A=1+t—-H &I EKRAEES
A 56,049,000/ 7T - HIEEH RO0R -
BEZNE  AUNBZAHAEEZREKA
QOB M - AR E HIRE WS & E B HIE
31210008 T (=T —=%F: &) * ZHHE
EREEKMTAZANIRRES A
AP R B+ — B A Ak Bl sk 405 -

ERNAEEY AEEBEMBY ZKEAD
BEAR 2ENEARBREEE ERRSE
HIRE & & ¥ RIE374,0008 T (—F
—=F (£%]) : 500,000 7T) ZEER AR
Q0O BESMUE ANUBRAHAEEZ
BRiR ROOH A -
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24.

CRE R

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES OF
A SHAREHOLDER/LOAN FROM A SUBSIDIARY OF
A SHAREHOLDER

The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries of a shareholder are
unsecured, interestfree and repayable on demand except for
loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder of HK$ 15,489,000
(2013: HK$27,268,000) which are trade receivables with
credit period of Q0 days.

The trade receivables are aged over 180 days (2013: over
180 days) based on the invoice date at 31 March 2014 and
are past due but not impaired. The directors of the Company
consider that there has not been a significant change in credit
quality of the subsidiaries of a shareholder and there is no
recent hisfory of default. Therefore, the amounts are considered
recoverable.

In addition, included in the above frade receivables consists
of HK$14,442,000 (2013: HK$14,424,000) which is
interest bearing at a floating rate at the benchmark lending
rafe as announced by the People’s Bank of China or relevant
borrowing rate, whichever is higher, plus 8% per annum which
is approximately 15.20% (2013
March 2014

15.20%) per annum as at 31

The amounts due to subsidiaries of a shareholder are unsecured,
interestfree and repayable on demand except for an amount of

HK$15,300,000 (2013: Nil) which is repayable on or before
31 December 2014

The loan from a subsidiary of shareholder is unsecured, inferest
bearing at a floating rate at the best lending rate in Hong Kong
plus 2% per annum and repayable within one year.
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24, B () —

BRRZHERRRE
—BRRZ—EHE R FER

& U (ﬁ)—%ﬁ&%ZW% AlZREREERR
RERBEREBREERE HEERK-—B2RRZ—H
MBS X RIE SRR EL 5,489,000 T (ZF—=%F:
27,268,000 7T) 2 E HRUEER 2 FEHAR00R -

R-ZE-—WF=A=+—8" ?ﬁ%é‘i‘fﬁ%ﬁ?%%iﬁz
E‘Eﬁ‘\ﬁ_ﬂ 80R (ZZ&—= 180H) 2B 5 EH
BRRAEBHERBE - AR 7§$w, C BB
RZMBARIZEEERYEEAE L - BITHY
BETRLE  RRBR/ZEFAEEA TRE -

s RZE-—mMF=R=+—H" E%%H&Eﬁ?ﬂ
514,442,000 T (ZE—= 14,424,000
BIT)  %F IEL/{/%@JT'JT&EPI/\Efﬁﬁ ffa
ZEEEFNEZLABIERMNE (UBRSER
B)MEFE8% FMERYIS20% (ZF—=%F:
15.20%) 5t 8 -

B —2RRZMBARZHRANEER 28
RN EREEE - 581530000087 (ZF
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25.

26.

OTHER LOANS RECEIVABLE 25. HthEWER
The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at a floating rate ZREDREER  REBREEMNENERO%
af the best lending rate in Hong Kong plus 6% per annum is ZIFEFNEGFERR—FRATKE o
recoverable within one year.
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK 26. BEABRITER - EHRITERRIEIT
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH ERERRE
Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to banks EEBBETTEREAEBAER FTEREHRE
fo secure banking faciliies granted to the Group with maturity ST FARIBHZRITREMRAETRBZER - W
within one year from the end of the reporfing period and PEAEREBEE - BEMHRITERZRETEEFEN
therefore classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposits TV 04A%EN 5% (ZE—=F  B)etB
carry fixed inferest rates from 1.04% 1o 1.15% (2013: Nil| per
annum.
The short term bank deposits with maturity dafe of less than R PR=MEA 2 R EBIRT R 2 H0.01%
three months carry prevailing market rates ranging from 0.01% §]ﬂ%(g_—¢10m%§G%JZﬁﬁﬁ
to 1.52% (2013: 0.01% to 1.30%) per annum. The bank B K o RITEBWAERITTHE A X F 8 HO%LE
balances carry prevailing market rates ranging from 0% to T15%(ZE—=4% : 0O%&E1.27%) °
1.15% (2013: 0% to 1.27%) per annum.
The Group's short term bank deposits and bank balances and AEBUEBHEEEEHREBUIIZEE BE
cash that are denominated in currencies other than the funcfional 2 EIRITER R RITEBRRBR 20T
currency of the relevant group entfities are set out below:
2014 2013
—2—mF —E=fF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FET
RMB AR 1,145 1,550
MOP TP 10,471 3,391
Singapore dollar {"SGD" ) FansT ([#ransT]) 15,298 2,977

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2014  #ZE—

27.

CRE R

TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED
EXPENSES

Included in trade and other creditors and accrued expenses
are trade creditors of HK$739,557,000 (2013 (restated):
HK$727,923,000) and their aged analysis presented based

—ME=A=+—HILEE

R EAMENSFE R EF X

EoghEMENRBEREABEZE A
739,557,000t (= —=F (&%) :
727,923,000 7T) 2 B 5 IENM ZE - R RS H

on the invoice dafe at the end of the reporting period is as AABEZRAPAEE2HRIRESWAT :
follows:
2014 2013
—F—QmF —F=F
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
TR TET
(restated)
(E51)
Within Q0 days QOB A 727,803 712,708
More than 90 days and within 180 days H#iBOOBER180B A 298 369
More than 180 days H3®180H 11,456 14,846
739,557 727,923
The average credit period on trade creditors is 90 days. The BIRNREAZTFHEEHRROR - AEER
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure BBRRERRE  HRMBRENFIBEIEEER
that all payables are within the credit timeframe. FRIA o

As at 31 March 2014, retentions held by the Group for
contract works amounting to HK$491,046,000 (2013
(restated): HK$392,483,000) were included in trade and other
creditors and accrued expenses, of which HK$ 149,507,000
(2013 (restated): HK$105,675,000) are expected fo be paid
or seftled after more than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

Included in trade and other creditors and accrued expenses in
the consolidated statement of financial position is an amount
of HK$721,866,000 (2013 (restated): HK$244,884,000)
which represents advances received from the cusfomers for

undertaking construction projects.

Included in trade and other creditors and accrued expenses in
the consolidated statement of financial position is an amount of
HK$62,500,000 (2013: Nil) which represents payable to an
independent third party arising from the sefflement of Receivables

as disclosed in note 22.

Included in trade and other creditors and accrued expenses is
a balance of HK$14,367,000 (2013: HK$375,714,000)
denominated in MOP which is not the functional currency of the

relevant group entfifies.
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R-Z-—OE=A=+—B Bt \BEHKEM
BNREREARIAREERFAEZANIE
R E & %/491,046,0008 T (ZT—=%F (F7)) :
392,483,000/ 7T)  HH149,507,000% 7T (=&
— =% (&) : 105,675,000 7T) FEH A R &
HIREBA T —EARINIHAES -

HAEVBRRARTEFTARS REMENREAER
et N ARE21,806,0008 T (ZE—=F(&
5II) : 244,884,000 7T) 2 I8 - Thigpt AR T2
BB MR WERZ AR

HAEVBRRARTPEFTAES REMENREAER
FEETFA X M8k 62,500,000 T (ZF—=%F : &)
2R DERGEERUGRIAEMELR R BILH
=N 2R - BRI 229 K EE -

%3%&E@Fgﬁy’lﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁumEﬁ%‘%
BERBNEEBEUIIZRPIEREM 2 &R
14,367,000 7t (ZF — =4 : 375,714,000%
75 ©



28. BANK BORROWINGS 28. RITHEM

2014 2013
—2—mF —F=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Bank loans RITREK
Secured B 5 332,043 242,331
Unsecured g 111,501 197,758
443,544 440,089
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: IRITIERZ EEBMT -
2014 2013
—F—QmF —F—=F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TFHT FET
On demand or within one year BEMERS —FANEIH 440,926 402,048
More than one year, but not exceeding HiE—F - BETHBME
two years 2,618 35,425
More than two years, but not exceeding HBME  BETEARE
five years - 2,616
443,544 440,089
Less: Amount due within one year shown W —F R R BRI FIHER B
under current liabilities BEZHE (440,926) (402,048)
Amount due after one year shown —FRIELIIEIERD
under non-current liabilities BEZHE 2,618 38,041
The Group's bank borrowings carry inferest at floafing rates REBRZBFERGT B ZRITHER L EBFEHR
ranging from Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") plus EEFTREREEXR ([EEFRTREREXR])
1.50% to 120% of the benchmark lending rate as announced M1.50%Z B A RRIT IR A 2 BEEHF
by the People’s Bank of China from fime to time, with effective RZ120%:1 B BEFEMNENT.71%26.70%(=
inferest rate ranging from 1.71% to 6.70% (2013: 1.71% to T—=F:1.71%%7.20%) °
7.20%) per annum.
As af 31 March 2014, the secured bank loans are secured by RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H BEBBEITERD
the Group's property, plant and equipment with an aggregate AR ERE42(E81,873,0008 T (ZE—=%:
carrying value of HK$81,873,000 (2013: HK$107,391,000) 107,391,000 7T) 2 W% - M R ZBERAE
and charges over the Group's benéfit from certain construction ETEEASNELE ZFIRIEERR -

contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HEZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(i)

Convertible bonds issued on 5 February 2013
(the “February 2013 Convertible Bonds”)

The Company issued 1,202,000,000 February 2013
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an inifial
conversion price of HK$0.68 each [subject to antidilutive
adjustments] on 5 February 2013 for a total proceed
of HK$1,202,000,000 (the principal amount). The
maturity date is the twelfth anniversary of the date of issue
of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds (the “Maturity
Date”). The February 2013 Convertible Bonds entitle
the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the
Company af any time commencing on the dafe of issue
of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds and up to the
close of business on a day no later than seven days
prior fo the Maturity Date (both days inclusive). If the
convertible bonds have not been converted, they will
be redeemed on the Maturity Date at the face value of
February 2013 Convertible Bonds. The Company, from
the fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the February
2013 Convertible Bonds, may redeem the convertible
bonds in whole or in part, at principal and inferest of 5%
per annum accrued for the remaining period from early
redemption date to the Maturity Date. The proceeds of
the February 2013 Convertible Bonds were allocated
info two components, debt and equity elements on initial

recognition.

With effect from 27 May 2013, the conversion price
of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds was adjusted
from HK$0.68 each to HK$6.80 each as a result of
share consolidation (see note 31(b) for details of share
consolidation). With effect from 15 November 2013,
the conversion price of the February 2013 Convertible
Bonds was further adjusted from HK$6.80 per share to
HK$6.65 per share upon the completion of the General
Mandate Placing (as defined in note 31(f)). Upon the
complefion of the Specific Mandate Placing [as defined
in nofe 31{f)), the conversion price of the February 2013
Convertible Bonds was further adjusted from HK$6.65
per share to HK$6.55 per share.

On initial recognition, the fransaction costs  incurred
for the issuance of the convertible bonds totalling
HK$60,395,000 were allocated into the debt
component and the equity component of HK$8,662,000
and HK$51,733,000 respectively, in proportion fo the

allocation of the gross proceeds.
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Convertible bonds issued on 5 February 2013
(the “February 2013 Convertible Bonds”) (Continued)

Defails of the adjustments to the conversion price as a
result of the share consolidation, the General Mandate
Placing and the Specific Mandate Placing are set out in
announcements dated 24 April 2013, 15 November
2013 and 16 December 2013 respectively.

The February 2013 Convertible Bonds confain  two
components, debt and equity elements. The equity element
is presented in equity headed convertible bonds reserve.
The effective interest rate of the liability component is
approximately 18.1% per annum.

Convertible bonds issued on 16 December 2013
(the “December 2013 Convertible Bonds”)

The Company issued 299,942,350 December 2013
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an inifial
conversion price of HK$8.23 each (subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments) on 16 December 2013 for a total
proceed of HK$299,942 350 (the principal amount).
The maturity date is on 5 February 2025. The December
2013 Convertible Bonds enfifle the holders to convert
them info ordinary shares of the Company at any fime
commencing on the dafe of issue of the December 2013
Convertible Bonds and up fo the close of business on a
day no later than seven days prior to 5 February 2025
[both days inclusive). If the December 2013 Convertible
Bonds have not been converted, they will be redeemed
on 5 February 2025 at the face value of the December
2013 Convertible Bonds. The Company, from the fifth
anniversary of the date of issue of the December 2013
Convertible Bonds, may redeem the December 2013
Convertible Bonds in whole or in part, at principal and
inferest of 5% per annum accrued for the remaining period
from early redemption date to 5 February 2025. The
proceeds of the December 2013 Convertible Bonds were
allocated info two components, debt and equity elements
on inifial recognition. The equity element is presented in
equity heading convertible bonds reserve. The December
2013 Convertible Bonds have been valued as at 16
December 2013 on the basis carried out at that date
by Asset Appraisal limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group. The fair
value of the liability component of HK$47,391,000 is
determined using the effective interest rate of the liability

component at approximately 18.5% per annum.
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(ii)

Convertible bonds issued on 16 December 2013
(the “December 2013 Convertible Bonds”) (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fransaction costs  incurred
for the issuance of the convertible bonds totalling
HK$12,408,000 were allocated into the debt
component and the equity component of HK$ 1,960,000

and HK$10,448,000 respectively, in proportion fo the

—ME=A=+—HILEE

29. ARRMES (&)

i

(i) R-FB-—=F+ZAB+ NHBRTZABRRK

&% (=

R 2 HE R
%N

BB 5

sl 1)

JG °

allocation of the gross proceeds.

The movements of the debt component of the February
2013 Convertible Bonds and the December 2013

T-=Ft+-ATBRKES]) (&)
B ARTAMBRESFEEZR
712,408,000/ T 12 & 15 T 1S 3K R
BloEZERERS
7 511,960,000 7t % 10,448,000

> R AR AN 5B

BE—_ZT—=%=A=+—BR-Z—NF
— A=+ BUHFE-ZE—=F_A7BK

Convertible Bonds for the year ended 31 March 2013 BEHFERZE—=F+_AARKRESZEB
and 31 March 2014 are set out below: HoyzEBEF MW T ¢
February 2013  December 2013
Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds Total
2= —E-=F
) +=A
ARRE S ARRE S st
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FiET FHT TET
At T April 2012 RZZE——FMNA—H = = =
Inifial recognition of debt component NIRRT RRES
of convertible bonds ZEBHD 172,386 - 172,386
Transaction costs allocated fo liability DEERBRRERZ
component of convertible bonds BEBD ZRIEA (8,662) - (8,662)
Effective interest expense for the HRERTBERTEARZ
year capitalised in the hotel under FREBRMNERMX
development 4,286 - 4,286
At 31 March 2013 i =#=HA=+—H 168,010 = 168,010
Initial recognition of debt component 7 55& AR ES
of convertible bonds ZEBHD - 47 391 47,391
Transaction costs allocated fo liability SEEARERERZ
component of convertible bonds BEBSZRIEA = (1,960 (1,960
Derecognised upon exercise of RZB-=F Ak
conversion right attached fo the E5H Wi < R
February 2013 Convertible Bonds BT ML ILRER
las described in note 31(e)) (ZHF31)) (5,541) - (5,541)
Effective interest expense for the RERPEEHETER
year capifalised in the hotel under ZERNEBRNEMI
development 20,518 2,303 31,821
At31 March 2014 KoZ-mE=A=+-A 191,987 47.734 239,72
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

30. IEERIR
RAFREFAEFECERZ T RELERARE (B
E)ARIABEEFIT

years:
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
BB MEFE HEEE st
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHET FAET FHET
AR 1 April 2012 R-ZE——&#mA—H
- as originally stafed —REZ27 7,837 (7,837) -
— prior year adjustment —BEFERHE 359 (359) =
—as restated — &5 8,196 (8,196) -
Charge [credit) to profit or loss RiEmEnk GEA) 5215 (5,215) -
At 31 March 2013 (restated) RZE—=FZA=+—H (&%) 13,411 (13,411) =
(Credit) charge to profit or loss Kigss GtA) 1k (4,108) 4,108 -
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NMF=ZA=+—H 9,303 (©,303) -

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, the above deferred tax assets and liabilities

have been offset.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had unused fax losses of
HK$437,963,000 (2013 (restated): HK$329,997,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$56,382,000
(2013 (restated): HK$81,279,000) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax
losses approximately HK$381,581,000 (2013 (restated):
HK$248,718,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The unused tfax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had deductible temporary
difference in respect of tax depreciation of HK$244,000 (2013:
HK$477,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to such temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

tfemporary difference can be ufilised.

REEPBRRNRNZIIME  LAREERBEE
raffe FiEE -

RZZE—NF=ZRA=+—H FEBEERPAHM
1B [E518437,963,0008 0 (ZE —=F (&%) :
329,997,0007% 7t) 8] F A K $5 K 3 & 2R A 3t ) o
BB E BRIELERIBEESS,382,000% T
(ZZE—=%F (&%) : 81,279,000 T) - ARk
BERTEARASCEF R  MAEES ERFILTE
BB 49381,581,0008 L (ZT—=F (£%) :
248,718,000/ L) MRELEHBEE - XEAH
TBE A TERBALE -

R-ZZE-—WF=ZA=+—H FTKERBBNES
244,000 7T (ZE—=4 : 477,000% 7T) AI 0Bk
R ZH - AR T AR BE & A ERTUSE A ¢ AT kR
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 30. ELEHIIE (8)
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated R-ZE—NME=/A=+—H G858 BERExL kK
financial statements in respect of temporary differences RPBENBARN_ZEENFE—A—H ﬁ_ﬁﬁ BRER
attributable to undistributed eamings of the PRC subsidiaries ZARDERBRNK 36,594,000 (ZFE—=F:
arising since 1 January 2008 amounting to approximately 62,397,000/ 7T) FETEZ@?H#%gEVEﬁ?EkﬁIE@
HK$36,594,000 (2013: HK$62,397,000) as at 31 March B ARNEE S REERERE R Bl
2014 as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal L EEA AL NS A B R EE
of the temporary differences and it is probable that such
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B
Number of ordinary shares
EBRROBE
atHK$0.20 atHK$2.00
Notes per share per share Amount
izt S10.205% T F12.0078 T X
HK$' 000
TEX
Authorised: AT
AT Apiil 2012 RZE——FMA—H 10,000,000,000 2,000,000
Increase of authorised share capital EINETE R [a) 5,000,000,000 1,000,000
At 31 March 2013 RZE-—Z=5=ZA=+—H 15,000,000,000 3,000,000
Share consolidation Bin& B (b (15,000,000,000)  1,500,000,000 =
At 31 March 2014 RZZE-mE=RA=+—H - 1,500,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
AT April 2012 RZE——FWA—H 606,954,322 121,391
Issue of placing shares BITRERR (c) 2,938,236,000 587,647
Issue of new shares pursuant fo scrip RBARRK 252
dividend schemes BITH R (d) 1,438,021 288
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=5=ZA=+—H 3,546,628,343 709,326
Issue of new ordinary shares upon R AR B S E B RE
conversion of convertible bonds BT L Bk le) 56,911,764 11,382
Share consolidation 1A b (b) (3,603,540,107) 360,354,010 -
Issue of placing shares BITRERK (f) - 89,242,500 178,485
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-ME=A=+—H = 449,596,510 899,193
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31.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(o)

(c)

(d]

(e)

Pursuant fo an ordinary resolufion passed on 21 January 2013,
the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.20 each to HK$3,000,000,000 by the creafion of an
additional 5,000,000,000 new shares of HK$0.20 each. The
increased authorised ordinary shares rank pari passu with the

existing ordinary shares of the Company.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 24 May 2013,
every fen issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each
in the share capital of the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$2.00 each, and such consolidated
shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with each other (the “Share
Consolidation”). The Share Consolidation took effect on 27 May
2013.

On 5 February 2013, the Company allotted and issued
2,938,236,000 new ordinary shares at HK$0.68 each in the
Company to cerfain placees pursuant to a placing agreement
entered into between the Company and an independent placing
agent dated 19 November 2012. The proceeds were used
for acquisition of a parcel of land for its hotel development
in Macau. These new ordinary shares were issued under the
specific mandate granted fo the directors pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed in the special general meefing of the Company
held on 21 January 2013.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 21 January 2013
for a special cash dividend (the “Special Dividend”) and
arrangements for a scrip alternative in lieu of the Special Dividend
[the “Scrip Alternative”), the Company issued 1,438,021
new ordinary shares at HK$0.68 each in the Company to
shareholders who elected to receive scrip dividend in respect of

the Special Dividend pursuant fo the Scrip Alternafive.

On 22 May 2013, the Company issued 56,911,764 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each at conversion price of
HK$0.68 each in the Company as a result of the exercise of
conversion right attached to convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$38,700,000.

31.

[EEN
i

(a)

(b

(d]

(%)

RERFER-_Z—=F—-—A-+—HBBEZEER
R B BIEREHNS,000,000,0000% & #20. 207
TLZ R - AR R ZEE R H2,000,000,000%
7T (5 £10,000,000,0008% & A20.20% 7T 2 B %)
¥ 0= 3,000,000,000/8 7T © 3 N2 A TF & i AR Bl
ARRRAEBRZEREER -
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& BARRABRAFTETREREEC.208THE
BOIRKRBETERNAHAE - REREE200ET
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AE#ka ((ROHEaHD BROAHR-_ZE—=F
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2RI RAT o
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(MFRIR ) AR REF RIS 2 BB R
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MR EEITAR R AN, 438,021 GREEO.687 T2 ¥

AZTE—=FRA-+=H ARAETELAESE
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CRE R

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(h

On 8 November 2013, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with certain placing agents pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and the
placing agents have conditionally agreed, on a best efforts
basis, severally and not jointly nor jointly and severally with the
other placing agent, fo procure placees to subscribe for, up to
72,070,500 placing shares at a placing price of HK$8.23
each under general mandate (the “General Mandate Placing”)
and 17,172,000 placing shares at a placing price of HK$8.23

each under specific mandate (the “Specific Mandate Placing”).

The General Mandate Placing was completed on 15 November
2013 and 72,070,500 placing shares were issued at a placing
price of HK$8.23 under the general mandate granted to the
directors pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 August 2013.
16 December
2013 and 17,172,000 placing shares were issued at a placing

The Specific Mandate Placing was completed on

price of HK$8.23 under the specific mandate granted to the
directors pursuant fo an ordinary resolution passed in the special
December 2013.
Al the shares issued by the Company ranked pari passu with the

general meefing of the Company held on 11

then exisfting shares of the Company in all respects. Details of
the completion of the General Mandate Placing and the Specific
Mandate Placing are set out in an announcements dated on 15
November 2013 and 16 December 2013 respectively.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company during both

years ranked pari passu with the then existing shares of the

Company in all respects.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a)

Share option scheme of the Company

On 7 September 2005, the Company adopted a share
opfion scheme (the “Scheme”] for the purpose of providing
incentive or reward to any employees, executives or
officers, directors of the Group or any invested entity and
any consultant, adviser or agent of any member of the
Group or any invested entity, who have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group or
any invested entity (the “Eligible Person”). The Scheme will
remain in force for a period of ten years from that date.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may
at their discretion grant options to any Eligible Person to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Consideration fo be
paid on each grant of option is HK$1.00. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company and
will be at least the higher of: [i] the subscription price as
is permissib|e under Listing Rules from fime to time; and {ii)

the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual generdl
meeting of the Company held on 30 August 2013,
the Scheme has been amended that any new options
granted pursuant fo the Scheme will be exercised over a
period of not more than 10 years from the date of grant
of the relevant options (subject to the provisions for early
fermination contained in the Scheme) and any or all of
the options already granted pursuant fo the Scheme (and
which remain outstanding) could, subject to all relevant
vesting conditions, be exercised over a period of nof
more than 10 years from the date of grant of the relevant
options (subject to the provisions for early termination

contained in the Scheme).

32. BBIRfERTE
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

The maximum number of shares that may initially be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s| adopted
by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company as af ifs
adoption date, i.e. 57,669,939 shares of the Company.
Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company in general meefing, the limit may be refreshed
to 10% of the tofal number of shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting. Notwithstanding the
forgoing, the maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
opfions granted and yet fo be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemels) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. Pursuant
fo an ordinary resolution passed af the Company's annual
general meeting held on 30 August 2013, the 10%
scheme limit was refreshed to 36,035,401, representing
10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company

as at the date of such meeting.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted to each Eligible Person
under the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s|
of the Company lincluding both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue from time fo fime unless such grant has been duly
approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting at which the Eligible Person and his associate
los defined in the Llisting Rules) abstained from voting.
Options granted to a substantial shareholder and/or
an independent non-executive director of the Company
or any of their respective associates [as defined in the
Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1%
of the total number of the Company in issue and have
an aggregate value exceeding HK$5 million must be
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general

meeting in advance.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Defails of movements in the share options of the Company

granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year

32. W E (&)
RRBZBRE S (E)
ME=A=+—HIF

(a)

ARAREBE=ZT—

ended 31 March 2014 are as follows: R
Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share options Company's
RERBERTERAATRRTZROYE shares
Outstanding Granted  Re-classified  Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date at during during at pricc before date Exercise
Name of grantee of grant 1.4.2013 the year theyear  31.3.2014 per share of grant period
R=EB-=§ R=2-m& SERNAY
mA-H R =ZA=t-H HAARZ
RRARE REAH EEScd ERRRH EXipa WATE BRAEE RHOUDE T
Director
Stephen Hung 12.7.2013 = 3,600,000 = 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
B BEET
Peter Lee Coker . 12.7.2013 - 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Noe 1
it
LauKo Yuen, Tom 12.7.2013 - 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note |
LY i3]
Walter Craig Power 12.7.2013 - 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
=4
James Chiu 12.7.2013 = 360,000 = 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note |
ik liRa)
lee Chack Fan 12.7.2013 = 360,000 = 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
b Mz
lain Ferguson Bruce 12.7.2013 - 360,000 - 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
Bt lidl
Francis Goutenmacher 12.7.2013 - 360,000 - 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
=4
Sub Toil ~ 15,840,000 — 15,840,000
it

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)  Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

—ME=A=+—HILEE

BIRETE (E)

(o)

RRTF ZBRET B (4

Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share options Company's
REREEFERAAARBT 2 ROYE shares
Outstanding Granted  Re-clossified  Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date at during during at pricc before date Exercise
Name of grantee of grant 1.4.2013 the year theyear  31.3.2014 per share of grant period
R=B-Z% R-B-IE SERLAM
mA—-R g =ZB=t-H RSN
ARARE RiHAH i RATHE ERRM EXipi WATE SROEE ROKTE L
Employees (In aggregate) 1272013 - 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note |
E& (&) iEd
12.7.2013 = 800,000 (400,000) 400,000 6.80 6.45 Note 3
[Note 2] B3
(Wi#2)
12.7.2013 = 1,200,000 = 1,200,000 6.80 6.45 Note 4
(iRZ}
12.7.2013 - 1,160,000 - 1,160,000 6.80 6.45 Note 5
(I8
12.7.2013 - 1,150,000 - 1,150,000 6.80 6.45 Note 6
ftito
12.7.2013 = 400,000 = 400,000 6.80 6.45 Note 7
M7
12.7.2013 = = 138,000 138,000 6.80 6.45 127.201410%
[Nofe 8] 11.7.2017
(H3t8)
30.9.2013 = 985,000 = 985,000 6.90 6.89 Note 9
(i
15.10.2013 = 289,000 = 289,000 8.10 7.23 Note 10
HizE10
Sub Total - 9,584,000 (262,000 9,322,000
it
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 32. BREE(E)
(a)  Share option scheme of the Company (Continued) () AATZEREE (E)
Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share options Company's
REREEATERAAARBAT 2 ROYE shares
Outstanding Granted  Re-classified ~ Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date at during during at pricc  before date Exercise
Name of grantee of grant 1.4.2013 the year theyear  31.3.2014 per share of grant period
R=8-Z% RZB-B%F SERLAM
mA—-R ER =ZB=t-H RSN
RRARE RiBH R AT ERR EXNSR WATE SROEE ROKTE e
Other Participates
(In aggregate) 12.7.2013 = = 400,000 400,000 6.80 6.45 Note 3
A3 EE (B3 [Note 2) M3
(Wit2)
12.7.2013 = 150,000 (138,000) 12,000 6.80 6.45 12.7.201410%
[Nofe 8] 11.7.2017
(H38)
12.7.2013 = 1,270,000 = 1,270,000 6.80 6.45 Note 4
HizE4
12.7.2013 = 450,000 = 450,000 6.80 6.45 Note 5
liES
12.7.2013 = 60,000 = 60,000 6.80 6.45 Note 7
(IR
12.7.2013 = 260,000 = 260,000 6.80 6.45 Note 11
AN
28.3.2014 = 112,000 = 112,000 8.592 8.2/ Note 12
M2
Sub Total - 2,302,000 262000 2,564,000
it
Total - 27,726,000 - 27,726,000
st
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BB E (8)
(a)  Share option scheme of the Company (Continued) (o) RATZERETE (B)
Notes: Btat

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-hird
on 12 July 2013, as to a further onethird upon topping
out of the hotel under development in Cotai, Macau and
as fo the final onethird upon opening of the hotel under
development in Cotai, Macau. The share options are
exercisable from the dates on which the share options are
vested until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

BRES-HMBE =0 2BREN_ZF
—=FtA+= El??% RI=D—Z Bk
BPRMBRAERD ZEEHERRSE - &
B=p— Z BRENEPIK B R 2BEE
AERRE BRECBREEREZ PR
E_ZtFEA+-HYM(BEEREM
B) A FITHE

2. A grantee was re-classified from the category of “Employees” AREANBIEEIEFHHEAIHMhSEE]
to "Other Participates”. Z IR o

3. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one- BRESZIEE =D —2BRER=-Z
third on 12 Jul 2014, as to a further onethird on 12 July —mELA+= EEmE SIh=5— Zﬁﬁﬂx
2015 and as to the final onethird on 12 July 2016. The R =T — fﬁiﬁﬂ +ZBHE &&=
share options are exercisable from the dates on which the —ZBERER-_ZE-RELAT+=H EmE
share options are vested unfil 11 July 2017 (both dates RS bt ?IEEH,@?L?;_? tFtA
inclusive). +— BB (BEERMAR) A FI76 -

4. The share options shall vest in 8 tranches, as to 10%, BAREDS \HLEE - 10% - 15% 15% -
15%, 15%, 15%, 10%, 10%, 15% and 10% on 15%~ 10% ~ 10% ~ 15%%10%2 ¥ M #E 5 Bl
31 May 2013, 31 August 2013, 30 September 2013 RZE—Z=FRA=+—RH ZF—=FN
1 April 2014, 30 September 2014, 31 January 2016, A=+—RA - ZE—=FhAA=+RH- =
31 March 2016 and 31 December 2016 respectively, _@imﬂ_ﬁ _V_qijlﬂ =+8-
subject to the fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The Z-RE—A= ‘f’ B —~F=A
share options are exercisable for 18 months from the :‘f’ Ak—-%F /\i‘f'_ﬂ =+—B&H
dates on which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but B HEFEXRETEBIKG BRESSR
in any event, exercisable unfil 11 July 2017 (both dates TEHEBEGEEN 2 BHREI8EA R
inclusive). FIIE - EEBOARZE—+FLA+—

HZAl (BEERMR) Al FITHE -

5. The share options shall vest in 7 tranches, as to 15%, BRESCHEE - 15%15% 15% -
15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15% and 10% on 31 August 15%~ 15% ~ 15%%10%2 B AR # 5 B 7 =
2013, 1 April 2014, 31 December 2014, 31 March EZ—=FN\NA=Z+—H0 ZFE—NOFNHA—
2015, 31 January 2016, 31 March 2016 and A -Z2—Mm&+=-A=+—H -Z%—1
31 December 2016 respectively, subject to fulfilment F=ZA=+—H ZE-—RFEF-—A=+—
of certain vesfing conditions. The share options are B ZZ2-—RF=ZA=+—HBRZZ—KRF
exercisable for 18 months from the dates on which +ZA=+—HEHRE MEGFERETER
cerfain vesfing conditions are fulfilled, but in any event, R - BRERE TERBIGHFRERZ EIHH
exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive|. BE8E AR F1TE - HERWANKZ

—tHFLA+—HZA(BEEREMX) —JT_‘
1T -

6. The share options shall vest in 4 tranches, as to 25%, BARED UHALEE  25% - 25% ~ 25% %

25%, 25% and 25% on 31 August 2013, 1 April 2014
31 August 2014 and 31 January 2016 respectively,
subject to fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The
share options are exercisable for 18 months from the
dates on which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but
in any event, exercisable unfil 11 July 2017 (both dates

inclusive).
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)  Share option scheme of the Company (Continued) (a)
Notes: (Continued)

BB s 8l (&)
ARATZBRET 8 (&)
Wit - (&)

7. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to 30%, 7. AR D —HE 5B - 30% » 30%M40%2 fE
30% and 40% on 31 May 2013, 31 December 2014 BREAFINR=_FE—=FRAA=+—H =
and 31 March 2016 respectively, subject 1o fulfilment —mFE+_A=+—BRZIZE-RE=A
of certain vesfing conditions. The share options are =+ —HEB EEFEKRETHEBKRE -
exercisable for 18 months from the dates on which BRESETHBREEERZ A ML
cerfain vesfing conditions are fulfilled, but in any event, 188 A AR 171 - tEEm AN T —+
exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive|. FLA+—BZA (BREERMX) A 11 -

8. A grantee was re-classified from the category of “"Other 8. AFEABEM2EE &S5 EAEE]
Participants” to “Employees”. Z IR -

9. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one- Q. BEBRESZMUEE =0 —Z2BERER=-F
third on 30 September 2014, as to a further one+hird —mHERA= +E|Em§ BI=n— 2B
on 30 September 2015 and as fo the final one-third on R _E— ﬁiﬂﬂ THERE- E’{ﬁi’\
30 September 2016. The share options are exercisable —ZBRER-_Z-RFAA=TEE
from aforesaid vesting dates until 29 September 2017 (both fEhleEe Lt 3% HfE_—Z tij‘Lﬂ
dates inclusive). ZThEHE(BEERMXR) A FITE -

10.  The share options shall vest in 3 ftranches, as to one- 10. BRES=Z#E = —ZERER-Z
third on 15 October 2014, as to a further onethird —mF+A ‘f’fﬁﬁﬁm% %9\‘:9 2 AR
on 15 October 2015 and as fo the final one+hird on R _Z-—LFTHA+LBERE &E&=9
15 October 2016. The share opfions are exercisable —ZEBRER=Z—X~F+A +£E| -
from aforesaid vesting dates until 14 October 2017 (both EiREs T EBRBREE S —+F+A
dates inclusive). THAME(BIEERMKR) A FIT -

11.  The share options shall vest in 2 tranches, as to 75% and 1. BRESMALEE @ 75%M25%2 BRZHE »
25% on 15 Jonuary 2014 and 31 December 2015 MR —ZE—mMFE-A+REBR-ZZ—1F
respectively, subject to cerfain vesting conditions. The TZA=T—EEBE EAFEKRETRE
share options are exercisable for 18 months from the R o E%HQTEQ%:FEEEKW%EWZEHH
dates on which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but BE8E AR F17 - HERWFNKZ
in any events, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates —tFtA+—BZA(BEEREMX) TT_'*
inclusive). 1IfE -

12, The share options shall vest in 3 ftranches, as to one- 12. BRESI-HEB =5 2BEBRER_-Z

third on 28 March 2015, as to a further onethird on
28 March 2016 and as fo the final onethird on 28
March 2017. The share options are exercisable from
aforesaid vesting dates until 27 March 2018 (both dates

inclusive).

—nf= H RANE! ?:J% jj’ﬂl\*" P
BER_ZE-A"F_A-_1T/\BBE &K
=5 Zﬁ%HxTEEA_i tF=A= -H\EI
mmg"E%HX*EQJ:LEmEE,Hﬂti_g N\
FZA-TLtRABM(BEERMXR) AT 1T
e
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

—ME=A=+—HILEE

BIRERTE (E)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued) (o) RATZBRESTE (&)
No options were granfed, exercised, cancelled or lapsed BHE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLEFER #
during the years ended 31 March 2013 B 1TE SRR B -
In the current year ended, 26,340,000, 985,000, MAFEE 26,340,000 * 985,00017 -
289,000 and 112,000 share options were granfed 289,00017 112,000 BB #E S RIN = F
on 12 July 2013, 30 September 2013, 15 Ocfober —=F+tA+=-B - ZEBE—=Fhh A=+
2013 and 28 March 2014 respectively fo the directors H ZE—=F+A+RaBR-Z-—OF=
of the Company, employees of the Group and advisers A+ \BRTFTARRESZ FTEEES
which perform similar services as employees, of which FER (IRESMHREEBELURSE)  EF
19,440,000 share options were granted to the 19,440,000 BRER B —=F+ A+ =
directors of the Company and other members of key ARTFTARAESFRHMBEEREEZS - XK
management on 12 July 2013. The fair values of the EHEBFARIE - SFRTAETERXE
options determined at the date of grant using the Black- TEZBERERNFES R A63,813,0008 T
Scholes Option Pricing Model were HK$63,813,000, 2,575,000/ 7t *+ 886,000/ Tt &335,000/%
HK$2,575,000, HK$886,000 and HK$335,000 T EEHEBRGKGEIREARAERRDE
respectively. The key vesting conditions are mainly related JERRE TEAPTIR M 2 IRIE B -
to the completion of different construction stages of the
hotel under development relevant to the services provided
by the grantees.
The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes RNFEDFNARN -SRI AEEBER
Option Pricing model. The inputs into the model were as AE - HZEX 2@ ASURNT ¢
follows:
12July 30 September 15 October 28 March
2013 2013 2013 2014
= CZT-=F Z—T—=fF — e
tA+=H AhA=tRA +A+HEB =ZA=+N\H
Closing share price as REE BBz KT E
at the date of grant HK$6.647% 7T HK$6.908 T  HK$8.10% T  HK$8.307 T
Exercise price TEME HK$6.80% 7t  HK$6.90% T  HK$8.10/4 7T HK$8.502% T
Expected volatility TAHR R IR 36.90% to% 47.91% 47.82% 46.19%
49.71%
Expected life JEEtFH 1 to 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years
—EWEF U4 4 utges
Risk-free rafe £ B ) 2 0.29% toZ 0.85% 0.85% 1.19%
0.87%
Expected dividend yield TEERAR B X Nil & Nil & Nil Nil &
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model has been
used fo estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions
may result in changes in the fair value of the options.
An amount of HK$35,720,000 (2013: Nil) of share
based payment expenses has been recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2014 with corresponding
increase in share option reserve. Included in the amount
of HK$35,720,000 of sharebased payment expenses,
an amount of HK$5,127,000 (2013: Nil) of share-
based payment expenses was recognised as expense in
profit or loss and an amount of HK$30,593,000 (201 3:
Nil) was capitalised in hotel under development for their

contributions to the hotel project.

Share option scheme of PYI

The share option scheme adopted by PYl on 27 August
2002 (the “PYI Scheme”) expired on 27 August 2012 (the
"Expiry Date”) and all the then outstanding share options

granted under the PYI scheme lapsed on the Expiry Date.

No options of PYl were granted, cancelled, exercised

before the Expiry Date.

Share option scheme of Falloncroft
On 5 February 2013,

acquisition of the entire equity inferest in Falloncroft

the Company complefed its

Investments Limited (“Falloncroft”) from an independent third
party for a cash consideration of HK$2,000,000,000
[the “Acquisition”] in which Falloncroft become a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. Upon the completion
of the Acquisition (as mentioned in note 37), Falloncroft
adopted a share option scheme and granted options that
would, for a subscription and capital contribution, in cash,
of up to HK$600,000,000, entile Chief Wise Limited (“Chief
Wise"), an dffiliate of Mr Stephen Hung (joint chairman
and the executive director of the Company), to subscribe
for 600,000,000 shares of Falloncroft. Chief Wise may
assign these options to the management of Falloncroft as

it sees fit.

32. BAestE (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

RRTF 2 BRET B (&)

Bh 7 —&F BT EE AT AR A
Bz A FE BAHEBREAFEZE
ERBRNDREFZHEGBFBH -BER
REEHTEHERELAFERE -BE—
E-ME=ZA=+—RHILFEDBRARH
REM 7 MR X A B35,720,0000% 7T (=
T4 &)  HAEBINGABBRERE -
VAR ) 2 B0 2 1 5k 39 52 35,720,000/8 T &
o RES5 1270008 (Z B — =5 )
ZABM AERZNFAXERBRERR
FsZ - MA230,503,0008 L (ZE—=4F:
B) 2B RERZ N RAXEREEE
REZIERABERDBEZER -

REZBRETE
FRER-_ZZE-_FNA-+LARBZER
A (TREABDER -ZF——FN\A
—tERJTRHB) Em MRRRETS
ROHZHBERHRTREZERECKEIH
BRRK

AR ERERREER L - FEHNKTT
{5 o

Falloncroftz i B% #5121
RZT—=ZF_AAB AABEKMA
— & % % = 5 W BEFalloncroft Investments
Limited ([ Falloncroft |) 2 &t - HERE B
2,000,000,000% 7t ([ E1E]) - it -
Falloncroftf &4 A Rl 2 2 EWB AT - R5E
FOUL R B I (R R MI7E37) & - Falloncroftif 44
THEREEWER TERE  FRAUEER
88 & i & & %600,000,0007% 7t B it T Chief
Wise Limited ([ Chief Wise| + 2N A &) 2 B fE ==
FRATESHKKELEEZHB AR RE
600,000,0008%Falloncroftf 1 2 # F o Chief
WiseP] IBERRBEENZSHEREREZET
Falloncroftz E 2 fE

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(c)

Share option scheme of Falloncroft (Continued)

The scheme was structured such that the option holders
on exercise, will always have to pay the same pro rafa
amount (up fo the lesser of 10% of the equity capital (including
shareholders’ loan) of Falloncroft or HK$600,000,000)
for the shares of Falloncroft as the Company pays for ifs
interest in Falloncroft. Holders of the options subscribing
for Falloncroft Shares, on exercise of the options, have the
right to require the Company to purchase their respective
holdings of the shares of Falloncroft in exchange for
an allotment and issue of new ordinary shares of the
Company, determined based on a formular, with defails
set out in a circular of the Company dated 5 January

2013.

As Mr Stephen Hung is the joint chairman and the
execufive director of the Company, the fair value of the
above share opfions are measured at fair valve and
accounfed for in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment” with reference to the valuation at grant
date, 5 February 2013, carried out by an independent
valuer. The fair value of services fo be received from Mr
Stephen Hung as a director is determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted and is expensed
on a straightline basis over the vesfing period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve)
of Falloncroft which represents an increase in non-
controlling inferests in the Group's consolidated financial
statements. An amount of HK$10,157,000 (2013
HK$10,667,000) share-based payment expense has
been recognised during the year ended 31 March 2014
with a corresponding increase in non-controlling inferests
as the share options are granted by a subsidiary of the

Company.
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BIRETE (E)

(C)

Falloncroftz i IR #E 512 (&)

B TAHMS UEERESBE AR
FERHEVEREMNE RAQAAKRER
Falloncroftz # 2 AT 1+ SR I8 » = b BB R (k&
R AFalloncroftz 10%[% A~ (B 15 IR R & 7)) 8
600,000,000 L 2 EIEFH) - AR EEAREE
1715 B 3R B Falloncrofti& 15 < B IR HEF B A B
BERA QA E K E S 8 PR ZFalloncroft
R - ARMELBERBEITARRAF LB
EAFEARFHRARTBH A=
F-—HAARZBK

BAROK R ERA R T 2B FE EFERNT
B LABREZATEDNKESEBUM
BRNREBHEIZE—=F_ARA)#
ﬁZTETEEZ\\:FTE?‘l'% AR RE BB B R
ERIER AN BER 2RI AR -
fiém%ﬁ%iﬁﬁ%%ﬂ#ﬁ% R 2 ~F
BENRSEMBLHEREZATFEETE
Wi EEERFBHRZ I - [FR A8 EE M
Falloncrofti zx (FE I #E (% 1B) - MERAELE
GFEMBHRERZIFTFERERILM - ARER
BIBAARA—ERBARERLE  B#EZF
—MUE=ZA=1+—HILFEBERUKRNHAE
2 MR AE10,157,0008 T (ZE—=
F 0,667,000/%75) + [B) 5 AR FE 38 A0 JE =
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(c)

32. BkfestE (&)

Share option scheme of Falloncroft (Continued) (c) Falloncroft:z i iR #E 5T 2 (&)

There are 3 tranches of shares to be issued, in which WET =R REAR ZRFIBE & K

180,000,000 options are attached to each of Series A £180,000,0001n i f% #& - M R 5ICHt &

and B, and 240,000,000 share options are attached 240,000,000 BB R #E - R FEZRMA 7 —

to Series C. The fair values were calculated using the FRMATHETERERTE BERTCEBESN

Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The inputs based on HZSFEAZWABENT

assumed vesting period info the models were as follows:

Series A Series B Series C
ZIIA #5IB #JIC

Weighted average share price 2 &1 % 17 2 hn 4
of the shares of the Company B HK$0.607% T HK$0.60% 7T HK$0.607% T

Exercise price (Nofe) 1I(EE (K15t) HK$0.687 7T HK$0.687 7t HK$0.687 7T

Expected volatility FEEHR 8 49.25% 49.25% 49.25%

Expected dividend yield FEE R B X Nil & Nl Nil %

Expected life TaET A 5 years 5 yearsf 5 years&

Riskfree rate 42 a2 Bz ) 0.591% 0.591% 0.591%

Assumed vesting period upon REATIE AR 2

issue of opfion* BEm B ImmediatelyBN i 29 monthsf&@ A 41 monthsffEl A

Estimated fair value R HK$9,922, 0007 HK$11,472,000% 7 HK$15,709,000/ 7T

Note:  With effect from 27 May 2013, the exercise price Wit BRETROAM BT —=F1A
was adjusfed from HK$0.68 to HK$6.80 as a result Zt+tBRE - ITEEHOOSEITHAES
of share consolidation (see note 31(b) for details of 6.80/8 7T (FHAKIFE31(b) °
share consolidation).

* The vesting conditions for the 3 tranches of share * R SRR T
options are as follows:

Series A: Completion of the sales and purchase agreement for RIIA - TR W EEFalloncrofte] 32 2 B & i -
the acquisition of Falloncroft in which the agreement BRHER-_T-—=F_ARHTERK -
was complefed on 5 February 2013.

Series B:  Completion of the Acquisition and the roof fopping B EARWERIERSEREE GEMEI4
out in respect of the hotel (refer to the hotel under B BERPBEE) (DEE]) 2HIEL
development as disclosed in note 14) to be constructed (the 2o
"Hotel").

Series C: Completfion of the condition stated at Series B above ZHC: FER EXXRFIBPTI 2 & 1 R 5B S5 R AS

and the opening of the casino operated within the
Hotel.

No options were granted, exercised cancelled under the

share option scheme of Falloncroft during the year ended
31 March 2014,

BZHBRE -

HE—_ZT-—NE=A=+—HBItFEHER
¥EFalloncroftfi AR BT 8IIF ) « 1T sk aESH (T
AT BB AR AE o
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33. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE
FINANCING PLAN

(a)

Share award scheme

On 6 September 2006, share award scheme was
adopted by the Company. The share award scheme
allows the Company fo make bonus payments fo eligible
persons (including employees, direcfors, consultants,
advisers and agents of the Group) by way of the
Company’s shares acquired by and held through an
independent trustee until fulfillment of specified conditions

before vesting.

During the year, total of 1,258,000 Company’s shares
[2013: Nil) were acquired by an independent frustee
appointed by the Company for the share award scheme.
The aggregate consideration paid for these shares in an
amount of HK$8,000,000 (2013: Nil) was deducted
from shareholders’ equity.

On 15 February 2014, shares with fair value of
HK$6,000,000 were awarded to an individual consultant (the
"Consultant”) for his confribution fo the hotel project in
which the number of shares awarded will be calculated
at the market closing price on the date of fulfilment of
specified conditions rounded to nearest whole trading lofs
[500 shares per lof]. The shares awarded shall vest in 5
tranches, as to 30%, 10%, 10%, 30% and 20% on 26
March 2014, 31 July 2014, 30 September 2015, 30
September 2015 and 30 June 2016 respectively, subject
fo certain vesting conditions.

On 19 February 2014, total of 588,500 shares of the
Company were awarded fo a consultancy company for
their contributions to the hotel project. The shares awarded
shall vest in 5 tranches, as to 20%, 20%, 20%, 20% and
20% on 26 March 2014, 31 July 2014, 30 June 2015,
30 June 2016 and 30 June 2016 respectively, subject to

certain vesfing condifions.

These fransactions were accounted for as equity-sefiled
share-based payment fransactions in equity over the
vesting period based on the fair value of the relevant
shares.
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33. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE
FINANCING PLAN (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share award scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, sharebased
payment expense of HK$3,667,000 (2013: Nil) was
recognised over the vesting period and capitalised in
hotel under development with corresponding increase in
share award reserve for their confributions to the hotel
project.

March 2014, total of
332,500 shares of the Company have been vested upon

During the year ended 31

the fulfilment of specified conditions. Included in total of
332,500 vested shares, total of 214,000 vested shares
of the Company granted to the Consultant was calculated
at the market closing price on the date of fulfilment of a
specified condifion rounded to nearest whole trading lofs [500

shares per lof).

Upon vesting and transfer to the awardees, the related
costs of the vested shares of HK$1,883,000 (2013
Nil) are credited to shares held for share award scheme,
and the related fair value of the vested shares of
HK$2,801,000 (2013: Nil) are debited to share award

reserve.

None of the eligible persons of the Company were
awarded any of the Company's shares under the share

award scheme during the year ended 31 March 2013

Share financing plan

On 6 September 2006,
adopted by the Company. The share financing plan

share financing plan was

allows eligible persons (including employees, direcors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) to borrow
funds from the Company or from a company within the
Group to acquire new or old shares of the Company on
a nonrecourse basis with the subject shares pledged to

the Company as security.

None of the eligible persons of the Company acquired
any of the Company's shares under the share financing
plan during the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2014

(a)
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34.

5.

CRE R
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. EXEEEE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entiies in the AEBERHER  UBRASEETERGRE
Group will be able to confinue as a going concemn while Brrg TEBRBILEBRERERRBIRRERE
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation REHR - RBEFE  NEE 2 EBRREGESTE
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall sfrategy
remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of nef debts, which AEBzEAGEBEBEERFE  2ED IR
includes the bank borrowings and convertible bonds disclosed 28R2OF R 2 RITER R ATBMRES (HBRES R
in notes 28 and 29, respectively, net of cash and cash WS EZEER) RARAHAARGEZ (KB
equivalents, and equity affributable to owners of the Company, RBEBETRAE  HERREER) -
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure AAREEZEHRNEHNERERE - ERBRFT 2 —
regularly. As a part of this review, the directors consider the ROESEREAKANESERNENBB 2RR
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of AEBBBRBEZ 2 EZBBRBRNRE  BITHR
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group AR IR ERSBOIREESALEGEEEEAR
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of i -
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. €T A
(a)  Categories of financial instruments (o) SRETEZER
2014 2013
—S—MmE —E—=4F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TFHT TET
(restated)
(E51)
Financial assets THMEE
Loans and receivables BN R IE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREAeHEESEEHEE) 4,364,919 3,618,805
Financial liabilities THas
Amortised cost [REEE ] 2,373,774 2,049,375
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include frade and
other debtors, amounts due from associates, joint ventures,
joint operations/other pariners of joint operations and
subsidiaries of a shareholder, other loans receivable,
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits, bank
balonces and cash, trade and other creditors, amounts
due fo associates, joint operations/other partners of joint
operations, non-controlling interests and  subsidiaries of
a shareholder, loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder,
bank borrowings and convertible bonds. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mifigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures fo ensure appropriate measures

are implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Market risks

(il Currency risk
Several subsidiaries of the Company have trade
and other debtors, amounts due from associates,
short term bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, and trade and other creditors denominated
in foreign currencies, which expose the Group fo

foreign currency risk.

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetfary assefs and

monetary liabilities as at the reporting date are as

35. €M I A (&)

(b)

TREREEREREE
AEETESRMTAGIEE S MEMBEKK
HoRUBENR AERE SEERS
BEEBHEMBH R —BREZHERRRK
H-HtEREN SERARTER EH
RITEHR - RITEBRERE - EHREME
TRRIE  ERBEAR 58X/ AE%
BEMBH  FEREER —BRRZHE
RBEFIR - —BBERZMEARMER - ]IT
fERRAIBERES - ZFE2BRTAZFER
BRAREME - EEMTAMMSZEE
RaEmSERR (8RR &AM ERR)
EERRERBESER - BELERRZ
BHEHIA T -EEBEERERNSRA
@ AR Y I B BUN B A S 2 6 -

45 LB

i BE¥ER
ARBDHBEHBRARFAEUINERE
12 B 5 K H it 8 R IE - FE W e
NEFE - BHRITER  RITEHR
ReARE S REMENFIE - BA
S BAFINEE K

AEERBEAUIIMNEREML 2B
BERENAGEZEREENAT

follows:

2014 2013
—Z—mE —T-=fF
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
FExT FAT

Assets BE
RMB AR 33,265 299,272
MOP JRPIEE 10,664 132,957
SGD onig o 15,298 2,977

Liabilities afE
MOP SRPIEE 14,367 375,714
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risks (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group is mainly exposed fo the fluctuation of
the RMB and SGD against Hong Kong dollars
as MOP is pegged to Hong Kong dollars. The
following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% (2013: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB
and SGD against Hong Kong dollars. 5% (2013
5%) is the sensifivity rafe used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
year end for a 5% (2013: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number indicates a
decrease in posttax loss/an increase in post
tax profit where RMB and SGD strengthen 5%
(2013: 5%) against Hong Kong dollars. For a 5%
(2013: 5%) weakening of RMB and SGD against
Hong Kong dollars, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the postHax loss/posttax profit

for the year and the balances below would be

35. M I A (&)
b) =REMEEBBERIBEK (&)

A m R ()
i R ()
Pl 2 S0P W R T M A S B

BAXEKBARE R METEET
ZREBER - TRFAMFBAEERY
AR R FINE T B LT R T S5%
TEZF SR ZHRE-RAEE
BIE A BEAERSNEE [ B 3R 5 B 2
ZEBERSN (ZE—=F : 5%) ' It
EEEUHAREHRECABEXRE

fEH 2 7 - FURE ST ERFE A
BRBURABEZE®ER AN

WEBIRIES% (B —=4F : 5%) EX
BHREABRELBRE - B EHERT
AR RFMBE T HBE LA (ZF
—=F 5% MELBEEBRD Fik
S B0 o i AR B RE N T H B
BERNBS% (T —=F : 5%) @ HH A
FEBRBEER FEeRAERKSER
HRzZEE MATESELEA
el |- P

negative.
Decrease in Increase in
post-tax postfax
loss profit
2014 2013
—F—QF —EF=F
REBRED  BRENEM
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FTET THET
RMB AR# 1,389 12,495
SGD FTANE T 639 124
This is mainly aftributable to the exposure HTER AN ERRAEE Y UARK

outstanding on trade and other debtors, amounts
due from associates, short term bank deposits and
bank balances and cash denominated in RMB and
SCD at the end of the reporting period.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to fair value inferest rafe risk

in relation to amount due to an associate.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rafe
risk in relation to amount due from a subsidiary
of a shareholder, other loan receivables, bank
deposits, loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder
and variabletate bank borrowings. It is the Group's
policy to keep ifs borrowings at variablerate of

inferest so as to minimise the fair value interest rate

risk.

The Group's exposures fo interest rate risk on
financial liabilities are defailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this nofe. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly affributable to
fluctuation of HIBOR and benchmark lending rate

as announced by the People’s Bank of China.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure fo interest rate risk for
amount due from a subsidiary of a shareholder,
other loans receivables, loan from a subsidiary of
a shareholder and variablerate bank borrowings.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding af the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis points (2013: 50 basis points) increase
or decrease for amount due from a subsidiary of
a shareholder, other loan receivables, loan from
a subsidiary of a shareholder and variablerate
bank borrowings, is used when reporting interest
rate risk intemo”y to key management personne|
and represenfs management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rafes.

35. €M I A (&)

(b)
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risks (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

After the analysis performed by the management
of the Company, the 50 basis points change
in interest rate for amount due from a subsidiary
of a shareholder, loan from a subsidiary of a
shareholder and variable-rate bank borrowings with
all other variables held constant would not have a
significant effect on the Group's posttax loss (2013
postfax profit).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due fo the fluctuation of prevailing
market inferest rafe on bank deposits. The Group
considered interest rate fluctuation on deposits is

insignificant.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2014, the Group's maximum exposure
fo credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due fo failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from:

e the camying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation

to financial guarantee issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 40.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken fo recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual debtor af the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the direcfors of the Company consider that the Group's

credit risk is significantly reduced.

Due to the fact that there are only a few major property
developers in Hong Kong, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers. In view of
their credit standings, good payment record in the past
and |ong ferm re|oﬂonships with the Group, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk
is not material. At the end of the reporting pericd, the
outstanding balances from the five largest customers,
which have been included in trade debtors and amounts
due from joint ventures, amounted to HK$1,233,898,000
(2013 (restated): HK$973,194,000) in aggregate, of
which the sing|e |0rgesf customer represents opproximofe|y
24% (2013 (restated): 26%) of the total trade debtors and
trade balances of amounts due from joint ventures at the

end of the reporting period.

The Group has a recoverable amount of HK$82,500,000
[2013: advances together with inferest thereon fo non-
trade debtors with aggregate sum of HK$282,532,000)
[see note 22 for details) which expose the Group to
the concentration of credit risk on these counterparties.
The directors of the Company consider that there is no

credibility problem of the counterparty.

In addition, the Group's other loans receivable as af 31
March 2014 amounting to HK$74,247,000 (2013:
Nil) (see note 25 for details] exposed the Group fo
concentrafion of credit risk. The directors of the Company
continue o monitor and assess the financial status of the
counterparty, and they believe the exposure to credit risk
on this balance is not sigmficonf as the counterparty is of

good financial position.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts due from
associates, joint ventures, joint operations, other partners
of joint operations and subsidiaries of a shareholder, the
Group's exposure fo credit risk arising from default of
these counterparties is limited as these counterparties have
good reputation and a good history of repayment and
the Group does not expect fo incur a significant loss for

uncollected amounts due from these counterparties.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because these
counterparties are banks with high creditratings assigned

by international creditrating agencies.

Other than the above, the Group has no other significant
concentrafion of credit risk, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and mainfains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by management to finance its
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank

borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group's contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabiliies based on
the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that inferest flows
are floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived
from inferest rate af the end of the reporfing period.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. eI A (&)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) =rEEMREEBERBGK (H)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBELERE ()
Weighted ~ On demand Total Total
average or within 91 days- Over  undiscounted carrying
inferest rate 90 days 1year 1year cash flow amount
mEFY REX
= BE nt-H AERRE

AT BHRRE E-f —EN0E REAE REELR
HK§' 000 HK§' 000 HK§' 000 HK§' 000 HK$' 000
TR TR TAT TR TAT

At 31 March 2014 R-E-ME=A=+-H
Trade and other creditors m%&ﬁ‘rﬂﬁgﬁ% - 1217266 101,977 149507 1,468,750 1,468,750
Amouns due fo associates ERBELRR

~ nonvinferest bearing ~TE 8 - 15,296 10,833 5417 31,546 31,546

- fixed rate inferest bearing -ET8E:E 1.0% 6,271 6,920 - 13,191 13,125
Amounts due fo joint operations/ ERARER/ABER

other partners of joint operctions Hth B rezE - 123,443 - - 123,443 123,443
Loan from a subsidiary of o —ERR 2 B

shareholder INGIWA-E 7.0% - 39,326 - 39,326 38,000
Amounts due fo subsidiaries of R —2REZHE

a shareholder INGIENE - 345 15,300 - 15,645 15,645
Bank borrowings RITER 3.6% 402,972 41,160 2,636 446,768 443 544
Convertible bonds Rk ES 18.2% = = 1,463,242 1,463,242 239,721

1,765,593 215,516 1,620,802 3601911 2,373,774

At31 March 2013 (restated) R-E-=Z=A=+-R(EF)

Trade and other creditors m%&ﬁ’rﬁﬂgﬁ?ﬂﬁ - 1,068,170 135,064 105,675 1,309,809 1,309,809
Amounts due fo associates ﬁ UNGIE - 0,049 - 48,483 57,532 57,532
Amounts due fo joint operations/ 1A% %ﬁ/ AEX

other pariners of joint operations ,\ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ-\*—r R - 73,764 - - 73,764 73,764
Amounts due to non-controlling FERTIEE RS

interess HE - 171 - - 171 171
Bank borrowings RTEZ 4.0% 338,484 69,098 38,866 446,448 440,089
Convertible bonds nHRES 18.1% = = 1,202,000 1,202,000 168,010

1,489,638 205,062 1,395,024 3089724 2049375

The amounts included above for variable interest rate HWEBZEHEZENRERAREETZ2HE
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are FMEHIEZR S ALMIESTESHEREY
subject to change if changes in variable interest rafes FEIARZGBERgEE -

differ to those estimates of inferest rates deftermined at the

end of the reporting period.
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35.

36.

37.

CRE R

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c)  Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash
flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the

discount rafe that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

The directors consider that the camying amounts of
Group's financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group issued additional shares as scrip dividends during
the year ended 31 March 2013 as set out in note 31(d).

ACQUISITION OF AN ASSET THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On
and purchase agreement with Pride Wisdom Group  Llimited

19 November 2012, the Company enfered into a sale

("Pride Wisdom”), pursuant to which the Company acquired the
entire equity inferest of Falloncroft from Pride Wisdom for a cash
consideration of HK$2,000,000,000.

Upon completion of the Acquisition, Falloncroft is the invesiment
holding company of a group of subsidiaries, including
New Concordia Hotel limited, which has been gronted an
irrecoverable and exclusive power of afforney ("POA") in respect
of interest in a parcel of land situated on Cotai Strip of Macau
(the “Land"). Taken info consideration of a legal opinion, POA s
considered to be a legal instrument commonly used in Macau to
grant, assign or fransfer rights, interest and powers on or relating

to the Land.
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36.

37.

LRI A (&)
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& - B AR AR £ R E2,000,000,0005 LM
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37.

38.

ACQUISITION OF AN ASSET THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Also, according to one of the conditions precedent for the
completion of the Acquisition stated in the sale and purchase
agreement, Falloncroft and its subsidiaries shall have zero
assets and liabilities (other than those related to the interest of
the Land, and the MOU (as defined below) and construction
letter of intention signed between Falloncroft and a subsidiary
of the Company] at the date of complefion of the Acquisition.
Therefore, the acquisition of Falloncroft has been considered
as an acquisifion of an asset (i.e. the prepaid land lease

payments).

A memorandum of understanding ["MOU"| was signed between
Falloncroft and an coffiliate of one of the holders of a gaming
concession or subconcession in Macau on 16 April 2008, in
relation fo the management and operation of a casino proposed

fo be opened in the hotel to be constructed on the Land.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the schemes
are separately held in funds under the control of trustees. The
cost charged fo the consolidated of profit or loss represents
contributions payable to the funds by the Group af rates

specified in the rules of the schemes.

Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. At
the end of the reporting period, there were no material forfeited
confributions which arose upon employees leaving the schemes
prior fo their interests in the Group’s confributions becoming
fully vested and which are available to reduce the contributions

payable by the Group in future years.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
a Mandafory Provident Fund Scheme [the “MPF Scheme’).
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assefs of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
confributions fo the scheme af the rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme. Under
the MPF Scheme, there will not be any forfeited contribution

available to reduce the contribution payable by the Group.

37.

38.

il

ERWBHEARWBEE (&)

\

SN BIBEBBEHEMMTRKWESE 2 P —18
FoRAEN - RER W EEEE B 8 - Falloncroft & H i}
BAEIEBTEERAE (Faloncroftfd A 2 7] —
WBARZz2EBLH FHESSK(EERET
X) REEEREAERIN o Bt - WHEFalloncroftE,
WiR A —IHEE (BEM LB EFRIE) I -

Falloncrof M ZZEZE N FM A+ B E—FRBRFE
FHIEEERFBEAIDBERLEEFTEA B
RAEITREBEES (RRESE])  ABTBER
ERREERN T EFEHESRRZES -

RIREAETE
AEBERAEREBERAC AT R/IRKENG
g ZEFECEERRATRZIZHESHY
R REABEaRBh 2 BRARRAEEIRZ SR
B ZRAMEZ LRI N TFES ZHK -

HWEBEANZFAARBEHFKAM 2 ERATR D
%At 8l ARBE RN HFE AR B R 2 BIE
oo RIERR > SEREE NI ERAEE MK
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HHEAREEIRMERFEAREEERERL
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REAEHZESRE - REBBESFEZRA - B
TREEHAZBRRAFTAZ LKA EIHRK -
AEBEEARESTE2ERAEERREEE
HHEE 2 HFK - RIBRESAHE - BTEETER
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38.

39.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued) 38. EIREAIFHE (&)
Employees employed by the Group's operations in Macau AEBHRBRFEKERAZEEBBPIBNEEL
are members of governmentmanaged social benefits schemes BN ERBLESRAAEZKE - BFIEBAOLE
operated by the Macau government. The Macau operations are BB E AR EHRAAEMSEF - REEFH
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution fo the social benefits REABNEE Lt ERAGFEZE-—BEER/RE
schemes fo fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group sFEER TR -
with respect to the social benefits schemes operated by the
Macau government is fo make the required contributions under
the schemes.
The refirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF FagfEesralmER 2 RIKBFFFSHKEER
Scheme charged to profit or loss represent confributions payable AR - HERAEEIZFERAGETH LR mE
to the funds by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of the TREMNZHER -
scheme.
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries participate in retirement benefit AEBZHEMBAGRES PR E H BUT # RS
schemes organised by the local government authority in the PRC. B ZIRRERE S - BEERE AT E LRGN
They are required to make cerfain monthly confributions based BASNETHR AEERBERBEEL AT
on the local standard basic salaries. The only obligation of the R R BITRNER S 2 EE -
Group with respect fo the retirement benefits schemes is to make
the required contributions under the schemes.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. BARAEE
2014 2013
—ZE—mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TR FHET
Capifal expenditure in respect of hotel EREERITVEEREDBEE
under development authorised ZEARRX
but not contracted for 3,052,849 3,837,532
Capital expenditure contracted for but not ERTRERNEEPBRRA
provided in the consolidated financial BEAHENTHERE ZEARMX
statements in respect of
— hotel under development —BREAEE 123,382 -
— acquisition of property, —BEYE  BRER
plant and equipment 8,442 5,924
3,184,673 3,843,456
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. AAE

The Group has the following contingent liabilities: REBB TIHAEE
2014 2013
—2—mEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
THT FET
(restated)
(&%)
Indemnities issued to banks for performance HTIINALERRZ TREGHER
bonds in respect of construction contracts ZRBAOREMLG TRITZ
undertaken by: FERE
An associafe G N 5,589 5,589
In addition, the Company provided a corporate guarantee BN AR A T — B E 2 8 /20,000,000
for banking facilities of HK$20,000,000 (2013: BT (ZZE—=%F 20,000,000 7T) ZEITRE
HK$20,000,000) granted fo an associate. REDFER -
41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 41, KEBNAIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RIREMR - REBAETATHEE 2 BRAERYEE
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AT H A AR RFARIE S FIERE o W ERE
operating leases in respect of renfed premises which fall due as ZXATHRIAT
follows:
2014 2013
—F—mF —F=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TFET FET
Within one year —F R 42,760 17,003
In the second fo fifth year inclusive EF_EERAF(HEMFEBEEN) 43,035 22,177
85,795 39,180
leases in respect of premises are negofiated, and monthly ERMEREZEIREAHESNIRELAES A
rentals are fixed, for terms ranging from one o five years. —ERF2HEYET -
leases in respect of plant and machinery are negotiated based BRAKREKE Y BERAERS BTG AEER
on individual contracts and the Group had no significant ZERM R T RS EAE T E KRR
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- BIEBENRZ EAKIE -

cancellable operating leases of plant and machinery.
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 42. BEEA XX Z R4EER
(o]  The Group entered into the following transactions with its (o) FA AEEEEREALTIIINTRS :

related parties during the year:

Class of related party Nature of transactions 2014 2013
BEALZER REMHE HK$’000 HK$' 000
—F—mEFE —E—=F
THET FET
[restated)
(251)
Associates of the Group Project management fees charged by the Group 1,196 2,795
REE 2B R F AEBEKRIERERE
Construction works charged by the Group 7,038 39,753
REBRRENTIIZE
Consuliancy fees charged fo the Group 47 324
AEEXNEHRE
Inferest charged by the Group - 162
& B ERF B
Inferest charged to the Group 130 =
AEBEZNFE

Joint ventures Construction works charged by the Group 2,352,234 948,332

of the Group AEBKRBRAHNIREE

REBEZEEDRE Project management fees charged by the Group 2,892 -

REBWEIAEERE

Subsidiaries of PYI Inferest charged by the Group (nofe) - 2,255

REZHMEAR N5 EUWERF R (Ff5t)

Note: The subsidiaries of PYI were classified as subsidiaries of a Hier: BZTE—=-"F"_AFAR REZHNES

shareholder of the Company since 5 February 2013 and YNCIRAE VYN RaE Yl rd 1) VNE]
were not classified as related parties with the Company MU ESBRARRRZBEANT -
accordingly.
The related party transactions entered into  with TR BR R AR EE B B X R AT L 2 B
subsidiaries of PYI as disclosed above also constituted ALRGMA/ARR 2 FHEBERS (F
continuing connected fransactions of the Company as BREMBRAUFEILAT) - KARAIEER
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company EHRABIAZT 2 BT - BIEAF
has complied with the reporting requirements under WREBIHEEBSH [HBEMERS | — &
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by including the relevant Z I E -

disclosure in the section headed “Continuing Connected

Transactions” on pages 83 to 85 of this Annual Report.
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 42. BE A XX G N6k ()
(Continued)
(b]  The remuneration of directors who are members of key b) FRNEATEETBEAEBZEZ=2HMUOT :
management during the year was as follows:
2014 2013
—Z—MmF —E—=F
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
FET FET
Shortterm employee benefits HHEBEN 30,237 9,947
Postemployment benefits RRIEF 38 29
Share-based payment VARR (9 B 21 2 1P 3R 36,759 10,667
67,034 20,643
The remuneration of direcfors is defermined by the BRI BTN EESLE@BABZ
remuneration committee having regard to the performance RBETEBEMETE -
of individuals and market frends.
Defails of the balances with associates and joint ventures at the RIRERR  BRERFTREECEZEHFRBR

end of the reporting period are set out in note 23. SR RE23
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43.

INFORMATION ABOUT FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

ME=A=+—HILFE

43. AR T 2B BARRER

2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
THERT FET

TOTAL ASSETS HEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRAIKRE 3,050,479 2,302,918
Other debtors H b fE U SRR 427 404
Short ferm bank deposits RHARITIE R 1,143,289 660,404
Bank balances RITHE A 7,369 201,245
4,201,564 3,164,971

TOTAL LIABILITIES PSR
Other credifors and accrued expenses H e FRIE R BT X 2,040 6,605
Amount due to a subsidiary of a shareholder AT — R AR 2 — BB A a8 15,300 -
Amount due to a subsidiary JES — B A Rl kI8 56,961 56,961
Convertible bonds Al RRR & 5 239,721 168,010
314,022 231,576
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,887,542 2,933,395

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARKHE

Share capital & 2 899,193 709,326
Reserves (Note) & (K aF) 2,988,349 2,224,069
TOTAL EQUITY iR 3,887,542 2,933,395
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43.

INFORMATION ABOUT FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

Movements of reserves of the Company during the current and prior

years are as follows:

43. ARTzBBRRER (F)

RRRNAFRBEFRE 2 RELBNOT

Shares
held for
Converfible share Share Share  Capital
Share Contributed ~ Specil ~ bonds  award  opfon  award redemption  Retuined
premium  surplus  reseve  reserve  scheme  reseve  reseve  reseve profis Total
g RR#
REs REF8  BRE RORD 44EE
ROEE BHEBER HKARG i FRRH i @l @ REEA 3t
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKE'000  HK§'000
Thn TR TEn TR TEn  TEAR  TEn  TER  TEn AR
AT Apil 2012 RZE-—FmA-H 5,558 449,086 (150,000) = = = = 25 45601 350,500
Profitond total comprehensive income for he oo FEEFIR 2 EMELR = = = = = = = - 4853 4853
Issue of placing shares [Note 31(c) BORERD (Wit3iL) 1,410,353 - - - - - - - - 1410353
Transacton cosis ffribuable issve of plocing sheres—~ E{TRLE R (AR X KK [100,549) - - - - - - - - [100,549)
Issue of shares under scrip dividend [Note 31(d) REABRRK SETRA
(H#31d) 690 = = = = = = = = 690
Issue of convertible bonds (Note 29/ BBk ER (Hi229) - - - 1029614 - - - - - 1029614
Transaction costatrbuable fo he equity comporent AR EFRAH A

of convertible bonds EERAMA = - - (51,7393 - - - - - (51733
Final dividend recognised os distioutions [Note 12~ R Ak KBRS (i 12) - - - - - - - - 600 6070
Special dividend recogrised as distibutions BARLERIRE (Wit 12)

[Note 12) - (157,808) = = = = = = - (157,808
Disirbufion inspecie [Note 12) ENDE (W12 - [25578]) - - - - - - - [255781)
At31 March 2013 RZE-=§=A=1-H 1316052 35497 (150,000 977,881 = = = 255 44384 2224060
lossond olal comprehensive expense forheyear — FEBERZARXLE = = = = - - - - (30893 (30,893
Issue ofnew ordincry shares upon conversion RBBTAREHETZ

of convertible bonds (Note 31/e)) MEBR(W31f) 25,643 - - 31484 - - - - - 584)
Issue of placing shares [Note 31 BORERD (Wi31) 555,981 - - - - - - - - 555981
Tronsacfion costs affributable ssue of placing shores ~ B{TRLE R R HAA (27,539) = = = = = = = - 7539
Issue of convertible bonds (Note 29 BT RRES (WH290) - - - 252551 - - - - - 252551
Transaction costafrbuable fo he equity comporent R EHRAH 5

of convertible bonds FEER A - - - [10,448) - - - - - 10448
Recognifon of equitysefled sharebosed payment R AR AR MR IEETEI

expenses of he share option scheme of DREEEARGBER 2

the Company [Note 32(a] FIREX (Wit320) - - - - - 3570 - - - 35720
Recognifon of equifyseled sharebosed payment ~ BERAR AR B3 &l

expenses of he share award scheme of DRAGENRABER L

the Company [Note 33(a] FREX (Hit330) - - = - - - 3,667 - - 3,607
Purchose of shares under share award scheme RERRRETHEERD - - - - (8,000] - - - - 800
Shares vested under share award scheme BERDEZEHEEBRN - - - - 1883 - [2800) - - (918
At31 March 2014 RZZ-ME=A=1-H 1870137 35497 (150,000 1,188,500 (6117 35720 866 255 13491 2,988,349

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference

between the aggregate of the net asset value of, and

shareholder's loan to, Paul Y. Management Contracting
amounting fo HK$250,000,000 and the issue value of the
shares of HK$400,000,000 as consideration for the acquisition

of Paul Y. Management Contracting in prior year.

ARRIZBHFEEEEFERS TRERZRT
12 /3 8£250,000,0008 7T 2 IRER B 2 BB B 31T
{B {8 /3400,000,000/& 7T 2 Bt fn (1E 3 = F W IB R
EERIBZRE) 2ZH -
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44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 44, HEBEREBE
Below are the events of the Group occurring after the end of the LMTAERBEMEREREE T —NF XA
reporting period and up to the date of approval for issuing the “HRMETIEEE MR H AR AEEE
consolidated financial statements on 20 June 2014: HER)EIR
(@) On 11 April 2014, the Company entered info documents (@) RZZE-—HEHFEWEA+—B KRAFFHHRP
relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$3,045 million FBETRBEAE MR ERITII L 24
with @ Mainland China-based bank for ifs construction %130 4518 /%TEE’JEHE% IRENXH -8’
project of hotel in Macau. The loan facility is for a term FEEBBERERER R SR AHRE
of six years commencing from the date of the first draw fﬁ;ﬁ}%#'ﬁﬁ%pﬂﬁ%u IR B AR o
down, subject fo the terms and conditions of the relevant
facility agreement.
(b] In May 2014, the Group received approval from the b) R-Z—WERA AEEEERBRMARFY
Government of Macau for its general building plans for HERPABEz —REFER 28 E -
the hotel under development.
[c) In June 2014, the Group commenced preparation ) RZZE—HNFRA AEERFEREPBGEE
work on the building superstructure of the hotel under BFIEEECEHTIE-
development.
PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 45. TEMBEAR -HEQAE SELERE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EEKRER
OPERATIONS
(@)  Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries af @ ARREEZEHBRAAR-ZE—NFEER_-ZF
31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: —=F=A=+—HZHBEWNOT:
Place of Issued and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
R/ BEARAR BRITRE/HAMEL AL
MEAREH EXBE &/ ERELR WEARARE rEEER TERH
2014 2013 2014 2013
~Z-mE C-2-=f ZP-mE _—T-=%
% % % %
Challenge Shore Limited British Virgin US$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Islandls ordinary share REER
AERAEE 1ETEBR
China Earth Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 51 51 Invesment holding
ERBRAF & ordinary share REER
BT EBR
Corless Limited Briish Virgin Us$2 100 100 51 51 Invesment holding
Islands ordinary shares RARK
RERKES Vel
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(a)

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 45. TEMBEAT -HEQT SELERSE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EEBER (&)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at @ ARREEMBRAAR-ZE—NFEER_ZF
31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: (Continued) —CE-ASH—BZHENT (&)
Place of Issued and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group ~ Principal activities
R/ BEARER BRAIRE/HREAZES L
WEAREH EXBE RE/ERER WEARRE rEEES TERH
2014 2013 2014 2013
~E-mE -T-=f Z3-mE -E-=f
% % % %
Euro Dynosty Limited Briish Virgin Us$3 100 100 51 51 Invesiment holding
lslands ordinary shares RERR
ERRAES IETEBMK
Falloncroft Brtish Virgin 5,400,000,000 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
lslands ordinary shares RERR
EBRAHS of no par value
5,400,000,0008
ERELER
Louis Xl Monagement Hong Kong HKS$ 100 100 100 100 Management and
Limited B ordinary share secrefariol senvices
IETEBR BB RWER
Louis Xl Management Moacau MOP25,000 100 100 100 100 Managementand
Limited i registered capilcl secrefariol sewvices
25,000%F9% BB RWERK
EMER
Manlink Limited Briish Virgin US$1 100 100 100 100 Invesiment holding
Islandls ordinary share REER
RBRRES 1XTEBR
New Concordia Hotel Macau MOP25,000 100 100 100 100 Hoel development
Limited i registered capitcl BEERE
HHEBEERAR 25,0005
Paul Y. (E&M) Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 99.9999 09.9998 50.9999 50.9998  Provision of electrical,
Contractors Limited B ordinary shares mechanical and
REMETRBRAA 50,000,000% T building services
EaR RUBREZERS
Paul Y. Builders Group Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Investment holding
Limited Bk ordinary shares REER
RERESEERAA ETEBR

HK$ 1,000,000
nonvoling
deferred shares
[Nofe (il below)
1,000,000 T
BRERELR
(FXhi)
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT

OPERATIONS (Continued)

(]  Parficulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: (Continued)

45, TEMBAF - BELQ
EXBES (E)

() ARBETEMBRAR=
—=F=R=+— EIZ;#I m

G

T

R

n

E—NEER=F
(&)

Place of Issved and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
R/ BRARAR BRTRE/HRELZEDL
WELAREH EXBE RE/ERELR WEBLAARAE RREES TERH
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-mE —F-=F IZB-mNE —T-=F
% % % %
Paul Y. Builders Limited Hong Kong HK$102,000,000 100 100 51 51 Building construction
RERERRAT 3 ordinary shares BFEE
102,000,000% ¢
EaR
Paul Y. Building Materials ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Trading and
Company limited B ordinary shares installation of
2BTERR building materials
RENMHE 5 RER
Paul Y. Construction & Hong Kong HK$100,000,000 100 100 51 51 Building consfruction
Engineering Co. Limted &3 ordinary shares and specilist works
REREIRERRA 100,000,000 ¢ BYRERZEIR
TaR
Paul Y. Construction & Singapore $$300,000 100 100 51 51 Consfruction
Engineering Pre. Limited %7 AMIK ordinary shares RETR
300,000% A% T
EBR
Paul Y. Constuction PRC RMB120,000,000 100 100 51 51 Civilengineering and

(China) Limited
RERZ(FE)ERLR  +E

2] 0 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 45. TEMBEAT -HEQT SELERSE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EEBER (&)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(] Parficulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at @ ARREEMBRAAR-ZE—NFEER_ZF
31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: (Continued) —=F=ZA=1+—HZHBELOT : (&)
Place of Issued and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group ~ Principal activities
RI/#m/ BEARAR BRRE/EMEXZEAL
WEAREH Exuy R/ EREE WEBLREE KEBEL IERH
2014 2013 2014 2013
~§-mE -—T--f Z3-PF -%F-c=F
% % % %
Paul Y. Construction Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Civilengineering,
Company, Limited A ordinary shares building consfruction
RERERRAT 2ETERR and investment
holding
HK$50,000,000 - = - - TRIE BFEE
nonoling REERER
preferred shares
[Note (il below)
50,000,000/ ¢
ERFEERR
(FXHii)
Paul Y. Construction Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Investment holding
Holdings Limited A ordinary shares RERR
REREEEERAA 2B ERR
Paul Y. Construction Briish Virgin US$50,002 100 100 51 51 Investment holding
Infemational Limited lslands ordinary shares REER
EERAES 50,002% T &R
Paul Y. Contracting Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 51 51 Construction
Limited &k ordinary shares RETR
100E T & &R
PYE Brtish Virgin HK$123,868,229 N/A N/A 51 51 Investment holding
RERR Islands ordinary shares FER TER RERR
KBRS 123,868,229t
EFiD
PaulY. Faciliies Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Facilifies management
Management Co, limited ~ &7 ordinary shares senvices
RERMBERERAA 2ETERRK RIEEBRH
Paul Y. Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 51 51 Provision of finance
REHBERAA R ordinary share RERE
BT ERR

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2014  #ZE—

CRE R

—ME=A=+—HILEE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT

OPERATIONS (Continued)

(]  Parficulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: (Continued)

45. TEMBAT - HELQT - E

BT AR ()

() ARBETEMBRAR=

T

R

n

E—NEER=F

—=F=ZfA=+— ElZ;.il W (8)

Place of Issved and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
R/ BEARAR BRITRE/HMELCEDL
MEAREH EXBE k% /afEx WELAARE rEEES TERH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—¥-mE -%--f Z3-QBF -%F-=F
% % % %
Paul Y. Foundation (Macau] ~ Macau MOP25,000 100 100 51 51 Civilengineering and
Limited e regjstered capitol foundation works
REWE (BFT) BRAF 25,000%F1% TATRRBETR
Paul Y. Foundaion Briish Virgin US$1 100 100 51 51 Invesment holding
Holdings Limited Islands ordinary share REBR
AERAEE IZTERR
Paul Y. Foundation Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 51 51 Civilengineering and
Limited & ordinary shares foundation works
REBEBRAT 10,000,000% 1t TATRRBETR
TaR
Paul Y. Ceneral Confractors ~ Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 100 100 51 51 Civilengineering
Limited £ ordinary shares and building
REREREERRA 200,000,000 7 construction
TER TATIRREFRE
Paul Y. Inferior Confractors  Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Interior decoration
Limited A ordinary shares works and services
REXBHIRARAT 2B ERR REEIRRRS
Paul Y. Management Brish Virgin US$2,000 100 100 51 51 Investment holding
Confracting Croup Limited ~ slands ordinary shares RERR
RERRIREE RERAEE 2,000% L& Bk
ARARA
Paul Y. Management Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Management and
Limited 36 ordinary shares secrefariol senvices
REEEERAT 2B ERR BB RWERY

2] 2 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report



45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 45. FEMBAR - BEQR - BELERE

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EEBRER (E)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(] Parficulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at @ ARREEMBRAAR-ZE—NFEER_ZF
31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: (Continued) —=F=A=+—HBzZHBWT : (&)
Place of Issued and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Nome of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable fo the Group ~ Principal activifies
Hi/Em/ BEARAR BRARA /AMERZEAN
MEAREH EXBE &/ ERER WEARRE KEEES TERHE
2014 2013 2014 2013
Z§-mE -F-=fF Z3-RF —3-c=F
% % % %
Paul Y. Plont Hire Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Trading and letting of
RERHEEERAR  BR ordinary shares plant and machinery
2BTEBR BRREZEIR
e
Paul Y. Project Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Projectmonagement
Management Infemnational & ordinary shares senvices and
Limited 2BTERR investment holding
REARIERER ERERRER
ARAA REARR
Paul Y. Specialist Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 51 51 Constuction
B ordinary shares BETR
1,00087
LRR
PY Construction (Macau) Macau MOP25,000 100 100 51 51 Consfruction
Limited i registered capitl RETR
RERFRE(2F) 25,0002 5%
AR EMER
PYE General Contractors Macau MOP25,000 100 100 51 51 Consfruction
(Macau] Limited i registered capital BETR
BREEABERRA 25,0002 %
Unistress Concrete Products ~ Hong Kong HK$200,000 100 100 51 51 Mandfactuing, iading
(HK Limited B ordinary shares and installation of
BhERLER(EE) 200,000% 7 concrefe products
ARAR LER and consfruction
works
RETERRE-
HK$ 1,000,000 100 100 51 3l BHREHIAR
non+oling BETR
deferred shares
(Nofe (il below)
1,000,000/ T
ERREELR
(FXH)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HEZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(]  Parficulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at
1 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: (Continued)

All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company except PYE which is directly held by the
Company.

Notes:

(i) The holders of the nonwvoting deferred shares are
not entiled to vote, are not entiled to any dividends
for any financial year and are, on winding up or
otherwise, only enfifled out of the surplus assets of the
company fo a refun of the capital after a tofal sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the

holders of the ordinary shares of the company.

(ii) The holders of the nonvoting preferred shares are not
entifled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends unless
the net profits of the company available for dividends
exceed HK$100,000,000,000 in which case they
should be entitled to fixed noncumulative dividends at
the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year and are,
on winding up, only entifled out of the surplus assefs of
the company tfo a return of the capital after a tofal sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders

of the ordinary shares of the company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period or at any time during both

years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material fo the Group. The
principal activities of these subsidiaries, whose place of
incorporation/registration/operation are mainly in Hong
Kong or BVI, are construction, property development
management, other business, investment holding or

inactive.

2] 4 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report

45. TBMBRR  BELF  aEEXRS
ERBER (&)
ARBEEHBARN-B—HNFER-F

(a)

—ZF=RA=+—HZ#HBET : (&)

ERFABMBARSHARRMERSE I
REZERAAREEITH -

Kt

(i) HEERERECRISEAEERE 7
mIEERTATBREEZRE Hﬂﬁ%
EZAREBRFHREHMIBR T 9 IREE
100,000,000,000,000/% 7T T #% A &) & i A%
RAEANEHERBEEZB/RT  BRES
zlg o

i) HEEREREARREARRRE  TE
RERRALS - BRIEZ A R A UK S 48R #E 8
100,000,000,000/ 7T » FEULIER T + 1t
BRMEFNYRFEER—BFER%Z
BEFRZERE - BERBREZLAERE
5k #%810,000,000,0007% 7T T 7% 2 & &
BESAEARBDAERNBEEZBRT - BR

i %Hﬂﬂﬂzﬁ/\ﬁﬁ{lifZEﬁHﬁﬁW %
BB AREAEANERE
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

45. TEZMBAT  BELQT SEEERS

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EERER (8)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(b]  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have b) BAEEAERERZIFZENB LR ZEF

material non-controlling interests

The table below shows defails of nonwholly owned

subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

1B

TEREINEBE BRI AKEFE
BB AR ZFE

Proportion of
ownership of
Place of issued ordinary
incorporation share capital Profit (loss)
and principal held by allocated fo Accumulated
place of non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary business inferests interests interests
FERERRE
AR it B R BRTEBRREAZ PEREFERERZ
) NG E:E TEEEBY EEEEL A (1) RatkERER
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-ME —Z-=fF ZE-NE _—T-=-F ZEBE-WmE -—T-=F%
% % HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$' 000
% % THET TER TET TER
PYE BVI 49 49 21,513 4044 350,321 328,606
RERE HBRAHES
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling inferests (869) 499 20,472 12,677
BEFERESZ ZENFEAMBAF
20,644 4543 370,793 341283

Summarised financial information in respect of each of

the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling

interests is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts before intragroup

eliminations.

BREE GFHEBRESZAKESMBEARZ
MBERBMNT - LT BERRZIES
B RRIEEHATZ 28

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HE—ZF—NF=A=+—RHIFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 45. FEWBAT - BELF - EELERE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EERER ()
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(b]  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have b) BEEAFEZERERZIFZENB LR ZEF
material non-controlling interests (Continued) 1% (&)
PYE Remy
2014 2013
—Z—mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FT#ET FAT
Non-current assets FERBEE 346,106 533,385
Currents assets MENEE 4,792,186 3,244,870
Current liabilities mENAE (4,375,767) (3,067,580)
Non-currents liabilities FERBEE (2,618) (38,041)
Equity affributable to owners NATPEE AEIRER
of the Company 760,259 670,624
Non-controlling interests SRR 25 (352) 2,010
Turnover ] 9,243,908 7,131,575
Profit for the year F R 79,563 34,129
Profit attributable to owners KREEB AEEEF
of the Company 80,432 33,630
[Loss) profit attributable fo PR R (E518) )5 A
the non-controlling interests (869) 499
Other comprehensive income RRABHEE ARG EAM R E
atfributable to owners
of the Company 413 3,639
Other comprehensive income for the year 4F A L th 2 1 Uk 25 413 3,639

2] 6 Louis XlIl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report



45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

45. FEZMBERF

BEAT AELERA

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT BEKRER (E)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(b]  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have b) BAEEAERERZIFZENB LR ZEF
material non-controlling interests (Continued) 1% (&)
PYE (Continued) RERZE (8)
2014 2013
—E—MmE —ET—=F
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
TFHET THET
Total comprehensive income atributable AR 2 BB A FE 14 2 T W & 4258
fo owners of the Company 80,845 37,269
Total comprehensive (expense) income  3EIF i #Eas B 15 2T (B 52 ) Wz 4258
attributable to the non-controlling
inferests (869) 499
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 P 2 TH i 2 48 58 79,976 37,768
Dividends paid to non-confrolling interests & 15 JF 12 B 25 1% 2. (1,519) -
Net cash from operating activities REREEB R FR 465,407 168,761
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (FAR) 2R BB #7230 & 558 (178,623) 9513
Net cash from financing activities REMETH 2R FHE 75,787 80,192
Net cash inflow REeMmAFRE 362,571 258,466

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2014  #ZE—

CRE R

—ME=A=+—HILEE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 45. TEMBATF - BWEQAR FERERSE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EEBER (&)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
[c)  Parficulars of the Company's principal associates at ) ARREEHERRANAR-_ZT—NFEER_ZF
31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: —=F=-A=+—HZHBHOT:
Issved and Percentage of issued
Place of fully paid share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of associate registration registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
R/ BRTRME BRARE /AMERZESN
BENRER i RE/EREER WELAARE KEEES TERH
2014 2013 2014 2013
“®-mE -—®-zf Z¥-mF -—F-=%
% % % %
PE-RE-REIR PRC RMB200,000,000 14.39 34.67 7.2 1768 Civil engineering
ARAR (R # registered capitcl (Note (ii) (Note (ii) and building
CSCEC-PaulY. [Nofe i below) below) below) construction
Construction Company ARE200,000000c  (FXH ) (FX W) TAIER
Limited R (RE R AMER(FXHat) BTRE
BREHRT)
Zhong Yu=Paul Y. Project ~ PRC US$500,000 40 40 204 204 Project management
Management Company ~ FE registered capilcl and consuliancy
Limited (Nofe (il below) services
ERBFREIRER 500,000% L&A ERERR
TEARAF (FXHra) BRRS

All of the above associates are held by the Company

indirectly.

Notes:

(i)

These companies are sinoforeign equity joint venture

company.

li)  The Group is able to exercise significant influence over &

ERE—EETIZEMR AT because it has the power
to appoint three out of the seven directors of that company

under the Articles of Association of that company.

2] 8 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 45. TEMBEAT -HEQT SELERSE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EEBER (&)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(d]  Parficulars of the Company’s principal joint ventures at d ARREFEEECLER-_ZTHNFEER_ZF
31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: —ZFZA=t—HzZHFBAT
Issued and Percentage of issued
Place of fully paid share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of joint venture registration registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group ~ Principal activities
R/ BEARAR BRARA /AMERZEAN
RELEZR E b3 &/ ERER WEARRE KEEES TERH
2014 2013 2014 2013
~e-mE -—%2-=f ZB-mF _%T-=F
% % % %
Paul Y. - Lion Beng JV Singapore $§300,000 50 50 25.50 2550 Consfruction
Pie. Lid. AT ordinary shares RETR
300,000%7 M 7T
AR
Paul Y. - Omas Joint Venture  Macau MOP100,000 50 50 25.50 2550 Construction
Company Limited i registered capital BETR
RE-REREBRAA 100,000
EMER
IEBEXARAR PRC RMB53,000,000 50 50 25.50 2550 Invesiment holding
HE registered capill REER
AR53,000,0007
HEMER
MMEBREREER AR PRC RMB10,000,000 50 50 25.50 25.50  Property holding
HE registered capill NEER

AR#10,000,0007
M ER

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HEZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 45 TEMBATF  BEQF GEEXRKE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EEKER ()
OPERATIONS (Continued)
le)  Parficulars of the Company’s principal joint operations at o) ARARETEEGEEBR-_ZT—WOFR_-T
31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: —ZFZA=t+—RAZFBOAT:
Percentage of issued
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered capital
Name of joint operation registration held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
R/ BRARE /AMERZESN
REERER b3 WELARARE KEEES TERH
2014 2013 2014 2013
“¥-mE -—F--f Z3-@BF -%F-=F
% % % %
Laing O' Rourke ~ Hsin Chong - Hong Kong 2255 225 11.48 1148 Civil engineering
Paul Y. Joint Venture e TATE
Laing O' Rourke = Hsin Chong - Hong Kong 22.5 225 11.48 1148 Civil engineering
Paul Y. [WKCD) Joint Venture BE TAIR
Paul Y. - Omas Joint Venture Macau 50 50 25.50 2550 Construction
RE-BEHELA i BETR
Paul Y. Penta - Ocean Joint Venture Hong Kong 50 50 25.50 2550 Civilengineering
ElE TAIRE
Paul Y. - Yau lee Joint Venture Macau 60 60 30.60 30.60  Construction
i RETR
Note:  There is no issued share capital/registered capital for Mzt : BARNREREBZEE HUBAZEBZ
the joint operations as they are unincorporated bodies. BBEABRAEMELR -
The above tables list the associates, joint ventures and joint BEERRUNEBRMIIRIEREREEFEE
operations of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, BHEKNAEBABLEEFEZARAEERE R
principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial A AECEREEER -BEERR - S5 H AR
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other BAT - BEPERAEEBZEMNBTRIELE -

associates, joint ventures and joint operations would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Financial Summary

YRR A

For the year ended 31 March
HEZA=+-HLEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—E-FF —T——F T-—F —T-=F ZE-MNF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000  HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FET THERT
(restated) [restated) [restated)

(&%) (&%) (&%)

RESULTS E4

Revenue Wz 3,644,873 4,404,364 4,540,677 7,131,575 8,579,708
Profit {loss) before tax Bt AR A (B518) 47,811 42,272 37,064 25,799 (2,906)
Income tax expense GIRCEE- b (1,240 (8,509 (4,068) (3,624) (27,036)
Profit (loss| for the year FEERF (EE) 46,571 33,763 32,996 22,175 (29,942)

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: EREEER (BE)

Owners of the Company N/NGIEZ=DN 44,688 30,083 30,303 17,632 (50,586)
Non-controlling inferests FEIE R = 1,883 3,680 2,693 4,543 20,644
46,571 33,763 32,996 22,175 (29,942)

As at 31 March

R=B=+—-H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

—T-TF —E——% E--F T-—=F ZZ—ME

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000  HKS$’000

FET FHET THET FHET THET
[restated) (restated) [restated) [restated)

(&%) (&%) (&%) (&%1)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Total assets BMEE 2,551,814 2,821,379  3,445729 6,677,257 9,003,511
Total liabilities “wEE (1,962,401) (2,217,058) (2,804,678) (3,287,403) (4,649,482)
Total equity B 589,413 604,321 641,051 3,389,854 4,354,029
Equity atiributable fo: FEAG R -
Owners of the Company RREEE A 574,657 605,393 639,430 3,048,571 3,983,236
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R A 14,756 (1,072) 1,621 341,283 370,793

589,413 604,321 641,051 3,389,854 4,354,029
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Corporate Information
AREER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EER

Mr Stephen Hung Joint Chairman (Executive Director) ok B A A T (HITESE)

Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr. Joint Chairman (Executive Director) Peter lee CokerJr. 5t 4 BREEE(RTESE)

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Deputy Chairman (Executive Director) R REE BIEE (HTEE)

Mr Walter Craig Power  Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer  Walter Craig Power%t 4 HITEFRITIARE

Ir James Chiu, OBE, JP Independent Non-Executive Director HE RS TF2ED - OBE « JP BUENITEE

Professor Llee Chack Fan,  Independent Non-Executive Director FISF K * GBS * SBS ' JP B IHITEE
GBS, SBS, JP

Mr lain Ferguson Bruce  Independent Non-Executive Director mBtELE BUFBTEF

Mr Francis Goutenmacher  Independent Non-Executive Director Francis Goutenmachert & BYUIFHTEF

AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREES

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman) WS - OBE - JP(L)E)

lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP RS - GBS - SBS 0 JP

lain Ferguson Bruce mEt

Francis Goutenmacher Francis Goutenmacher

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FEEE

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman) S OBE - JP(EE)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 255

lee Chack Fan, GBS, S8S, JP FIETF - GBS SBS 1 JP

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZES

Llee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP (Chairman) FIe 2% GBS - SBS - JP(FEJE)

Stephen Hung St oK B

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom =R

lain Ferguson Bruce mEt

Francis Goutenmacher Francis Goutenmacher

FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE HEREREEZES

lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman) mEL(EE)

Stephen Hung otk B

Peter Lee Coker Jr. Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2= R

Walter Craig Power Walter Craig Power

DISCLOSURES COMMITTEE HEZER

lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman) mEX(FE)

Peter lee Coker Jr. Peter Lee CokerJr.

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2= R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE TEERELES

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman) TS - OBE JP(EE)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2= R

lain Ferguson Bruce mEt
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PYE COMMITTEE

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Llee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP

lain Ferguson Bruce

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Stephen Hung (Chairman)
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Richard Lico

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mui Ching Hung, Joanna
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DLA Piper Hong Kong (Hong Kong)
Winston & Strawn (Hong Kong)
Leonel Alves Law Firm (Macau)

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda)
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China, Macau Branch

Bank of Communication Co., lid, Hong Kong Branch
Bank of Communication Co., Lid, Macau Branch
BNP Paribas

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
China CITIC Bank International Limited

DBS Bank (China) Limited, Beijing Branch

DBS Bank [Hong Kong) Limited

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited, Beijing Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Wing Hang Bank, Limited
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Corporate Information
AREER

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
2901 AIA Central

1 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel : +852 2577 6113

Fax: +852 2577 6213

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www. IXIll.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 577
Reuters 0577 . HK
Bloomberg 577 - HK
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